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Directors’ Profile
BEEEN

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 55, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 20 years of
experience in international trading and investment in China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 35, is Managing Director of the
Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the University
of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring in
Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, Mr. Shum has
pursued a career in finance and accountancy in an international
accounting firm. He is the son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Cen Ziniu, aged 45, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and
has been involved in trading businesses in Hong Kong and China,
holding senior managerial positions. Mr. Cen has extensive
experience in dealership management, business formation and
marketing. He is responsible for market development of the
Group and overseas operations. He is a cousin of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung.

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, aged 55, has been executive
director and head of the Group’s liquefied petroleum gas
operations since August 2003 and is now in charge of liquefied
petroleum gas operations in China and worldwide. Prior to joining
the Company Mr. Chiu had over 20 years’ experience in banking
and management. He has been involved in the financing and
supervision of business projects in China since the late 1980’s
and was in charge of the management and control of a wide
range of projects.

Siu Ka Fai, Brian, aged 51, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
He conducted a further course of study in real estate at the
University of British Columbia in Canada and then had over 20
years experience in the investment and real estate field, working
with various reputable companies in Hong Kong and China. Mr.
Siu joined the Group in 2005 and is currently in charge of the
Group’s purchasing and re-export operations.
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Directors’ Profile
BEEEN

Wang Jian, aged 34, graduated from Guangzhou Jinan
University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and a Master’s
Degree in Finance. Prior to joining the Group in 2008, Mr.
Wang was engaged by a major bank in China and worked in its
banking business department.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 62, has been independent
non-executive director since August 2001. Mr. Cheung is an
associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Cheung has over 30
years of experience in account, finance and investment banking
profession specializing in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and
acquisition and corporate restructuring before working with
publicly listed companies undertaking corporate management,
planning and strategies development functions. Mr. Cheung is
an independent non-executive director of PetroAsian Energy
Holdings Limited, Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited
and Mobile Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited, whose shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 55, has been independent
non-executive director since March 2006. Mr. Chan is a holder
of a Master of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield
Institute of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional
engineer in Hong Kong and the U.K.. Mr. Chan is the recipient of
the U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding Project
Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan has taken
up key management positions in engineering and technology
businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping equipment
and control systems, mini-piling, and software and hardware
engineering businesses.
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Directors’ Profile
BEEEN

Dr. Xu Mingshe, aged 58, was accredited a doctor’'s degree
in economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and has
over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field. Since
1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of positions in the
top management level in banking sector in China, and has been
well connected in the finance and corporate sectors both in
China and overseas. Dr. Xu’s expertise includes public listings,
project financing, syndicated loan, debt restructuring and merge
and acquisition. He has taken part in a considerable number
of overseas listing of Chinese enterprises and other major fund
raising exercises. Dr. Xu was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 July 2006 and an
independent non-executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange) from 2006 to 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
F RS

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the report on the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013 to the
shareholders.

2013 was a year of outstanding performance and impressive
results for the Group, with a turnover from continuing operations
of approximately HK$14.433 billion, representing an increase
of 15.87% as compared to approximately HK$12.456
billion of the same period of 2012. Net profits after tax from
continuing operations was approximately HK$783 million,
up by 83.37% when compared with the net profits after tax from
the continuing operations of approximately HK$428 million of
the same period of 2012, marking the third consecutive year
of fast growth in profit. Moreover, the net current assets and
the net assets amounts of the Group have been strengthen in
2013. The net current assets amount has reached approximately
HK$1,842 million, increased by approximately HK$1,422 million
when compared to approximately HK$420 million as at year
ended 2012. The net assets amount also increased substantially
from approximately HK$2,585 million as at year ended 2012 to
approximately HK$4,117 million as at year ended 2013. Both
changes have indicated that the Group’s overall value has
reached to another upper level.

Since 2009, the Group has resolved to gear its development
towards the diversification of energy products. Through over a
decade’s operation in the liquefied petroleum gas sector, we
have accumulated invaluable market experiences that fit right in
for our present attempt to expand our oil product and liquefied
natural gas businesses, which will in turn fortify the Group’s
operating scale, profitability and market penetration and thereby
create greater value for our shareholders.

The Group has consistently adopted targeted operating
strategies. In respect of market exploration, we emphasise the
quality of customers and therefore has elected to concentrate
on investing in the enormous energy market in Guangdong in
order to secure a reasonable return. In respect of business
operations, we fully appreciate that securing a strong customer
base is a prerequisite for the building of a thriving business. In
respect of corporate development, we understand the need to
cultivate a relation of cooperation with our end users, which will
enable networking and synergies. We are committed to adopt
these strategies to promote the development of our oil products
and liquefied natural gas businesses, which will be our goal for
the coming few years. Paralleled to the efforts to extend our
customer base, we will constantly invest to perfect the operation
chain for each of our energy products, with the aim to ensure
that each product transaction will be carried out at the lowest
logistics cost and the highest delivery efficiency.
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NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 188 REBHBR D

Chairman’s Statement
F RS

The Board recommends a final dividend for 2013 of HK5.7 cents
per share.

| hereby take the opportunity to express on behalf of the Board
the appreciation we have to our staff for their contribution in the
past year, and look forward to the creation of a better future
where we all unite to brave any challenges ahead in the Group’s
spirit of perseverance.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 13 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 2 5lam Mo

NewOQOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Group”) entered a new
growth phase in 2013. During the period, the Group continued
to focus on the energy market in the South China region and
successfully kicked off the diversification of its energy products,
by expanding into liquefied petroleum gas (“‘LPG”) and fuel oil
and refined oil (“oil products”) coupled with a vast amount of
preparatory work to prepare our operation for the coming of
liquefied natural gas (“LNG”). At the same time when aggressively
building a development platform for our sustained expansion,
the Group once again achieved outstanding results for its regular
business, recording for the third consecutive year a fast growth
in profits. All these showcase the increasing business size of
the Group, its growing earning capacity, and the strength of its
market penetration and development.

With the enormous South China energy market bringing along
endless business opportunities to us, we will continue to
reinforce our product diversification and will strive to attain the
objective of becoming a major energy product supplier in the
region.

1. Group Overall Performance

In 2013, the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately HK$14.433 billion compared to the total
turnover of approximately HK$12.456 billion in 2012,
representing a growth of 15.87%. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company from continuing operations for
the year was approximately HK$783 million. Compared
to the profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$811 million in the year of 2012
(including approximately HK$384 million from discontinued
operations), it represented a remarkable increase in the
profit contributed by the continuing operations by 83.37%.

The Group’s principal businesses of LPG and oil products
along with its secondary business of electronics business
achieved an aggregate gross profit of approximately
HK$1.216 billion in 2013, representing an increase of
approximately HK$159 million from the aggregate gross
profit of the same period of approximately HK$1.057 billion
in 2012 (an increase by approximately 15.04%), whereas
the overall gross profit margin dropped slightly from 8.49%
of the same period of 2012 to 8.43% of 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 2 alam oA

The Group issued 166,500,000 new shares in April 2013
by way of top-up issuance. As at 31 December 2013, the
Company’s weighted average number of ordinary shares
was accordingly increased to 1,425,090,095 shares (31
December 2012: 1,305,853,374 shares). Basic earnings
per share (continuing operations) for 2013 was HK$0.55
(31 December 2012: HK$0.33), representing an increase of
66.67% as compared to the same period of 2012.

1.1

Segment Performance

The operating revenue from both continuing and
discontinued operations of the Group for the year
was mainly derived from the three businesses of
LPG, oil products and electronic products. Of these,
the percentage weighting of the LPG business in the
total turnover decreased from 85.95% of the same
period of 2012 to 76.60% of 2013, whereas the il
products business achieved a more than two-fold
growth during the year, with a corresponding increase
of its percentage weighting in the total turnover from
7.47% of the same period of 2012 to 17.16% of
2013. The percentage weighting of the electronic
products business in the total turnover also declined
from 6.58% of the same period of 2012 to 6.06%
of 2013 due to the significant increase in the oil
products business. In 2013, the Group has devoted
considerable resources to secure stable sales targets
for the future LNG business, but given that it is still in
the preparatory stage, there was no turnover recorded
for the LNG business for the period.

LPG Business

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$11.055 billion from the LPG business in 2013,
down by 4.45% from approximately HK$11.570
billion of the same period of 2012. The sales volume
was approximately 1,682,000 tons, at similar level of
approximately 1,676,000 tons in 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 2 5lam Mo

Having succeeded in achieving its growth target for
business volume by 2013, the Group has gradually
optimised the LPG customer portfolio by promoting
sales to customer groups with a high margin and
cutting back the volume of business that featured a
lower return. This brought a slow-down in our sales
growth, but has effectively enhanced the profitability
of the LPG business. During 2013, the LPG business
recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$1.171
billion, representing an increase of 26.87% from
approximately HK$923 million of the same period of
2012. Gross profit margin also climbed from 7.98% of
2012 to 10.59% of 2013.

Oil Products Business

At the end of 2012, the Group disposed of 51% equity
interests in a company (“Project Company”) which
was set up for the purpose of exploring the marine
bunkering market in Hong Kong to a company listed in
Korea. The project company was turned from being a
subsidiary of the Group to an associated company as
a result, and the marine bunkering business operated
by it in the territorial waters of Hong Kong has also
ceased to be consolidated in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and treated as
discontinued operations in 2012. Nevertheless, fuel
oil delivered by the project company remained to
be supplied by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. For the entire year of 2013, the wholly-owned
subsidiary supplied approximately 470,000 tons of
marine fuel oil to the project company, with the Group
recording a turnover of approximately HK$2.476
billion, gross profit of approximately HK$11.00 million,
and a gross profit margin of merely 0.44%. Apart
from this, the Group shared a profit of the associated
company (before amortisation of intangible assets)
of approximately HK$16.66 million under the equity
method of accounting from the operation of the
project company. These two revenue items summed
up to a total of approximately HK$27.66 million,
accounting for 1.12% of the sales of oil products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE 7w M AT

1.2

Electronic Products Business

Our major buyer in Thailand has made business
adjustments during the first half of 2013, which
involved a re-positioning of its overall development
such as sales items and sales products, entailing
in a suspension of purchase of a large part of the
electronic components and mobile phones from the
Group and accordingly a plunge in the business
for the first half of the year as a result. Subsequent
to the completion of business restructuring in the
second half of the year, there was a rebound in the
orders and the turnover for the entire year amounted
to approximately HK$874 million, comparable to the
turnover of approximately HK$886 million for the
same period of 2012. Contribution to the gross profit
decreased from approximately HK$88.00 million of
the same period of 2012 to approximately HK$22.29
million; whereas the gross profit margin of the
electronic products business also dipped to 2.55%
(same period of 2012: 9.93%).

Foreign Exchange Gain and Other Income

Since the beginning of the year the market has
gradually restored its expectation for the RMB to
appreciate. The change provided an opportunity for
the Group to structurally match its related payment
obligations against financing arrangements for the
purchase of imported gas (“Structured Matching”),
thereby reducing the cost of foreign currency
exchange from RMB to USD. These savings were
presented as foreign exchange gain and other
income in the statements, which were equivalent to
a reduction in the purchase cost of imported gas.
In 20183, the foreign exchange gain of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$173 million in
total, of which foreign exchange gain arising from
Structured Matching was approximately HK$102
million. On the other hand, the RMB deposit rate
was way higher than the interest rate for USD loans
with a substantially widen interest margin of the
two currencies, resulting in spread income from

1.2
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the Structured Matching aside from the net foreign
exchange gain. Other income (mainly interest income)
of the Group in 2013 amounted to approximately
HK$150 million in total, including interest income
from Structured Matching of approximately HK$104
million. Deducting the related interest for USD loans
of approximately HK$66.80 million, the spread income
arising from Structured Matching was approximately
HK$37.20 million in 2013. Together with the net
foreign exchange gain of approximately HK$102
million, the purchase cost of LPG was reduced by
approximately HK$139 million in 2013.

Cost Control
Finance costs

The Group’s total finance costs in 2013 amounted to
approximately HK$207 million, including the interest
expenses from Structured Matching of approximately
HK$66.80 million (same period of 2012: HK$81.20
million) set out in above item 1.2 and interest
expenses of USD short-term liquid capital loan for
actual operating needs of approximately HK$140
million (same period of 2012: HK$195 million). Since
the beginning of the year, the Group has increased
the amount of USD short-term liquid capital loan
raised in Hong Kong to replace RMB loans and to
satisfy the needs for RMB liquid capital in China. Due
to the timely implementation of this arrangement, the
Group’s finance costs were effectively reduced. For
the second half of 2013, the Group has intentionally
increased the number of three-year USD bank
loans to ensure the adequacy of capital and a lower
financing cost to support the continually expanding
business in the future years. Despite a relatively
significant increase in the amount of bank finances as
at the end of 2013, the financial expenditure for the
entire year has decreased by approximately HK$55.00
million.

1.3
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s total selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately HK$275 million,
representing an increase of approximately 21.15%
compared to the selling and distribution expenses of
approximately HK$227 million in 2012. The selling and
distribution expenses of the Group included the salary
of sales staff, depreciation for tools and equipment,
rental for the land on which autogas refueling
stations are located, LPG shipping costs, trucking
costs, warehousing cost, and brokerage costs etc.
Approximately 32% of this item came from the
consolidation of Lianxin Energy’s sales cost (autogas
refueling business), while 68% was attributable from
expenses arising from the LPG business, oil products
business and electronic products business. In
accordance with the joint venture agreement entered
into between the Company and China Petroleum
and Chemical Corp (“Sinopec”) dated 10 April 20183,
since November 2013, the Group has started to
subcontract the operation of 17 autogas refueling
stations of Lianxin Energy under the Group to a joint
venture, Sinopec NewOcean Energy Company Limited
(“Sinopec NewOcean”) established by NewOcean
and Sinopec. Under this arrangement, the selling
and distribution expenses of Lianxin Energy shall be
entirely borne by the joint venture in 2014, this may
lead to a corresponding decrease in the total selling
and distribution expenses of the Group in coming
future.

Administrative Expenses

The total administrative expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$226 million in 2013,
representing an increase of approximately 11.88%
as compared to the Group’s total administrative
expenses of approximately HK$202 million in 2012,
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The administrative expenses of the Group mainly
included emolument of management staff, business
trip and entertainment expenses, depreciation charge,
amortisation of land use rights and professional
fees etc. Administrative expenses only recorded a
moderate increase during the period, with items of a
more significant magnitude including: (1) emolument
of management staff — human resources were
increased significantly to cater for the needs of
business development (in particular the LNG autogas
refueling business in joint venture with Sinopec under
the joint venture agreement of 10 April 2013 referred
to above). This expense accounted for 18.14% of the
administrative expenses, representing an increase
of about 17.00% in 2013; (2) business trip and
entertainment expenses — expenses of this area
were significantly increased in response to the needs
to enhance the connection with industry counterparts
and to promote the establishment of business
network. This expense only accounted for 7.08%
of the administrative expenses, but the increase for
the period was at a high level of 60.00%; and (3)
professional fees — a relatively significant increase in
legal fees was entailed in relation to the preparation of
loan documents and letters of legal opinion due to the
completion of several consortium loans by the Group
during the second half of the 2013. This expense
accounted for 4.87% of the administrative expenses,
and the increase for the period was 57.14%. The
Group expects that part of the emolument of
management staff will be shifted to the joint venture
with Sinopec in 2014 after subcontracting out the
autogas refueling stations; administrative expenses
related to business development will continue on the
rise.
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1.4 Performance Conclusion 1.4 XBERE

As evidenced by the overall performance of the
businesses in 2013, the LPG business has obviously
attained a considerable scale of operation and
emphasis has been placed on further improvements
in return. During the year, with the concentration
of efforts by the Group in adjusting its customer
portfolio, the change in turnover was not significant
in contrast to the remarkable enhancement in the
sales margin, which has made major contribution
to the growth in profit in 2013. Via the adoption of
appropriate Structured Matching, the Group has
effectively lowered the foreign exchange costs during
the course of making the purchase payments for
imported LPG, which has in another way further
enhanced the actual gross profit of the LPG business.
In addition, the Group has adopted the measure of
replacing RMB loans taken out in China with US dollar
loans in Hong Kong, which has significantly reduced
the financial expenditures in 2013, and in turn helped
to push the profit of the Group in 2018.

The Group maintained strong profit growth in 2013,
while at the same time promoted the development
towards a diversification of energy products with
the objective of turning itself into a major supplier
of energy products in the region. The oil products
business is currently the one business receiving
the Group’s biggest efforts. Although this business
remained under the cultivation stage in 2013 without
a significant profit contribution, its turnover attained
an escalating growth of 2.46 times. The Group will
invest more resources to expedite the perfection of
the operating chain of the oil products business in
order to achieve the paralleled growth in turnover and
gross profit margin to generate lucrative profits to the
Group.
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2.

Major Changes in the Financial Position

2.1

2.2

Asset Liquidity

As 31 December 2013, the Group had total current
assets of approximately HK$10.321 billion, total
current liabilities of approximately HK$8.479 billion,
current ratio of 121.72%, representing a remarkable
improvement from 104.45% of 2012. The current
assets included cash of approximately HK$5.610
billion (including secured RMB deposits related to
Structured Matching equivalent to approximately
HK$3.859 billion), accounting for over half of the
current assets and reflecting the healthy operating
liquidity of the Group.

Fixed Assets, Investments and Issue of New
Shares

To align with the development of product
diversification, the Group invested approximately
HK$380 million into purchase of fixed assets and
increased the investments for the related businesses
in 2013.

2.

Annual Report 2013

—E_=xzER

MERAHEREH

2.1

2.2

BERDE

H £20134F12A831H 1t &€
MEBEERTH103.21 BT
RHAEATH847TIEBT R
Eth &R E121.72% » th2012F K
104.45% F K18 E B B8 © R &
BETPHEANE56.10EBETHIRE
(BRETHEBEEYZTHEMESDN
EEBARBIFHRAZN38.591E
BIL) R EESBA—F
ArREERERERENECERD
Moo

BERE  RRRERHR

BTRAEMZIL{ILERE 2013
FAEBEIRNT KRA3.80EAET
MESARMAENSEEEEE
MIEMEABEEERIRE -




NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 188 REBHBR D

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 2 5lam Mo

2013 A A RBIAN S EBRIF T
N, EET1T 7 166,500,000 BELFTHE - &
ETRLYT749EBBE T FRLE

In April 2013, the Company issued 166,500,000
new shares by way of top-up issuance, raising
approximately HK$749 million. The application of the

net proceeds during the year was as follows:

FETWEABRAT

Proceeds OQutstanding
Plan of used proceeds
use of during under the
proceeds 2013 plan of use
Project EHEan 2013/ HEIMKER  Actual project progress as at 31 December 2013
HA idih BERES BeE HE013F1283ALEANERER
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) {HK$'000)
(T87) (F87) (F:87)
1. Expansion and upgrade of the 388,130 44,351 343,779 Under construction
handling capacity of its LPG BR
facilities at the Group’s LPG
terminal in Zhuhai
SEGRRBNR RIBEREN
ETRIRRERENEARR
2. Registered capital of the Sinopec 62,322 62,322 — The joint venture “Sinopec NewOcean Energy Company
NewOcean joint venture Limited” was established on 1 September 2013
BARTEE ERRMRR BERATALEIER2013F9 A1 AR
g
18
3. Installation of LPG and/or LNG 62,100 - 62,100  Under pre-construction work
facilties in certain Sinopec et
Guangdong branch’s gas stations
EBAPRIERD ARFBIA
BABMAILRR/FLNG NF
HE
4. Building of two propylene tanks 116,440 86,296 30,144 Under construction
in the transit warehouse in Zhuhal jeEigy
Terminal
EREEERELRRAENG
i
5. Acquisition of LPG bottles and 116,440 6,808 109,632  Construction of transit warghouse in Tuen Mun was
building of transit warehouse completed on 5 December 2013; the permit to
in Tuen Mun in relation to the use was granted by the Electrical and Mechanical
Company's bottled LPG business Services Department on 6 December 2013; operation
in Hong Kong was commenced on the same date
REEAGEREANRERNS 013512 A5 ARKEMRERER  HETRER
REORRFEEMRRNREY 2Mo13¢12ﬂ 6 BRFRERNRATA  RAFR
£E
6. General working capital purposes 3,216 3,216 -
—#r9Es
Total 748,648 202,993 545,655
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2.3

Apart from the abovementioned approximately
HK$203 million, the Group has acquired other
fixed assets and land use rights amounting to
approximately HK$65.80 million. In addition, the
Group has also paid approximately HK$77.00 million
for ordering three bunker ships and one bunker
hull, and the Group has also paid approximately
HK$34.20 million in relation to the construction of the
headquarters in Zhuhai.

In 2013, the Group had no new real estate project.
The original small project near Shenzhen is now
slowly put to the market and approximately 4.71%
has been disposed in 2013. All the remaining
properties are expected to be disposed within 2014,
The other project which is located in Zhuhai is related
to establishment of the headquarters in Zhuhai by the
Group, which is under construction at present. Upon
completion, the Group intends to dispose of part of
the property to recoup the investment in the entire
project, whereas the remaining parts of the property
will be used as the headquarters in Zhuhai.

Gearing Ratio

Bank loans: as at the end of 2013, the Group’s
total bank loans amounted to approximately
HK$6.635 billion, including (1) US dollar loans
related to Structured Matching of approximately
HK$2.877 billion, (2) short-term working capital loan
of approximately HK$3.206 billion, and (3) long-
term working capital loan of approximately HK$552
million. Bank loans used as working capital for
operating needs (total bank loans minus loans related
to Structured Matching of approximately HK$2.877
billion) amounted to approximately HK$3.758 billion.
The total was approximately HK$1.253 billion higher
than approximately HK$2.505 billion as at the end
of 2012. Increasing the amount of short-term and
long-term bank loans was to raise sufficient capital
at a lower financial cost to support the continuously
increasing business volume.

2.3
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Equity capital: due to the significant increase in RA® - FAFEAE AN E#E
profit and the share placement during the year, 177 —IRHERRES) - A BRI ER A
the shareholders’ equity has increased from = 2012 F F K #4925.85 B8 7T
approximately HK$2.585 billion as at the end of 2012 E2013FFIRL 4 ATEETT »
to approximately HK$4.117 billion as at the end of
2013.
Gearing ratio: BELER
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
#HE2013%F HZE2012F
12A31H 12 H31H
Total bank loans RITERABEL HK$6.635 billion  HK$6.093 billion
66.35{8# T 60.93 18/ 7T
Bank balances and cash and RITEHR KRS R HK$5.610 billion  HK$5.252 billion
pledged bank deposits BEIBIRITIE N 56.10 {8 T 52.52 88T
Shareholders’ equity P& SR A HK$4.117 billion  HK$2.585 billion
41.17@ET 25.85 BB T
20 Bank loans/Shareholders’ equity RITER R E = 161.16% 235.71%
Net bank loans (after deducting bank FR7TE 2 CRA IR1TAEER
balances and cash and pledged KR e kB ERRT
bank deposits)/Shareholders’ equity 1Fiki2 ),/ IR 24.90% 32.53%
Despite a considerable increase in the amount of BR 2013 FNEEMRITERE R LB A
bank loans of the Group in 2013, the gearing ratio m-BERARE#EENRTS LA FTAEE
remained at a substantially healthy level due to a BB EAENEE ERAKE o

corresponding increase in the shareholders’ equity.
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3. Business Condition

3.1

LPG Business
Purchase

In 20183, approximately 962,000 tons of imported gas
were purchased, representing a increase of 3.89%
as compared to approximately 926,000 tons of 2012.
Approximately 720,000 tons of domestic gas were
purchased, representing a decrease of 4.00% as
compared to approximately 750,000 tons of 2012.
The total purchase of LPG in 2013 was approximately
1,682,000 tons, similar to approximately 1,676,000
tons of 2012.

Sales

Due to the adjustment of its customer portfolio by
the Group from the beginning of 2013, the sales of
LPG did not record a significant increase as in the
past years. The sales amounted to approximately
1,682,000 tons, similar to 1,676,000 tons of the same
period of 2012 with a mere increase of 6,000 tons
in the sales. Nevertheless, changes in the sales to
different customer groups varied:

Industrial Customers

Major customers included chemical plants,
aluminum mills, air-conditioner manufacturers, lighter
manufacturers, ceramics factories, glass factories,
refinery plants, automobile manufacturers and other
autogas refueling operators in Guangzhou. In 20183,
sales to this group of customers amounted to
approximately 744,000 tons, representing an increase
of 24.62% as compared to approximately 597,000
tons of the same period of 2012. In a change that
started from a few years back, many chemical plants
have planned to replace the use of naphtha with
LPG as the raw material for chemical products. Many
of these chemicals plants have selected to set up
their production facilities in Gaolan Port Chemical
Zone, Zhuhai. With the construction of new facilities
approaching completion, which will be followed by
commencement of production in the coming years,
there would be an enormous demand for LPG which
will directly invigorate the sales of the Group.
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Furthermore, the Group will continue to reinforce the
provision of technical and financial support to other
factories in order to promote the migration from
petroleum to gas, and in turn sustainably boost the
sales to the industrial customers.

Overseas Customers

During 2013, sales to overseas customers amounted
to approximately 350,000 tons, representing an
increase of approximately 11.46% as compared
to approximately 314,000 tons of the same period
of 2012. Despite only a thin profit generated from
this business, the Group needs to use the sales
to overseas customers to timely lower inventory
and mitigate the price fluctuation risk. Moreover,
all the Group’s overseas customers are renowned
international petroleum companies or LPG trading
companies. A close cooperation with them will help to
enhance the Group’s reputation and position on the
international market.

Other Terminals and Bottling Plants

In 2013, sales to other terminals and bottling plants
amounted to approximately 65,000 tons, representing
a decrease of 76.10% as compared to approximately
272,000 tons of 2012. Similar to the situation related
to overseas customers, despite only a thin profit
generated from this business, the Group needs to
maintain a certain level of cooperation with its industry
counterparts to enable the steady expansion of sales
to terminal markets in the region.

Bottled LPG

Sales of bottled LPG of the Group increased by
11.65% to approximately 278,000 tons in 2013 (2012:
approximately 249,000 tons). During the year, the
Group did not acquire any bottling plant in the PRC.
As at 31 December 2013, the Group continued to
own and operate 16 bottling plants and 220 retail
outlets located in 11 major cities in South China.
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Apart from sales to household users and commercial
users (including restaurants and eateries) by the
bottling plants in Guangdong and Guangxi through
self-owned and consignment sales points, the
Group also sells bottled LPG in batches to non-
contract distributors at the bottling plant. In view of
the difficulty in seeking shops for setting up sales
points, the Group has set up computerised customer
services centre in Zhuhai in 2009. Together with the
large number of bottle wagons across different areas
and a highly efficient communication system, the
centre forms a mobile sales point that has effectively
lifted the direct sales of bottled LPG. Furthermore,
the bottling plant of the Group located near Hengqin,
Zhuhai has become the source of supply of some
Macau bottled gas operators (including operators
representing international brands), and has continued
to provide stable cross border gas refueling service to
Macau operators during the year.

Through Rise Smart Industrial Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary), the Group has officially
commenced its bottled LPG business in Hong Kong
in December 2013. On 5 December 2013, the
Buildings Department of the Hong Kong Government
confirmed the full completion of the construction of
the transit warehouse in Tuen Mun (the Terminal).
Immediately following on 6 December, the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department of the Hong
Kong Government also granted the “Permit to Use”
for the transit warehouse in Tuen Mun (notifiable
gas installation in accordance with the relevant
provisions). At 8 p.m. on the same date, the first
batch of filled LPG steel bottles was transported into
Hong Kong via Huanggang Port by the Group’s fleet
of cross-border bottle wagons. Rise Smart Industrial
Limited accomplished the first case of bottled
LPG importation in Hong Kong in the capacity of a
“registered gas supply company”. The Group is the
first company to make use of its LPG import terminal
in Zhuhai and very large gas carriers (“VLGC”) to
import high quality LPG from the Middle East, bottle
it in Shenzhen and re-export it to Hong Kong for the
use by its people. Despite the commencement of the
bottled LPG business in 2013, only an insignificant
turnover was recorded from the around 20 days of
operation.
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3.2

Autogas Refueling

Through the 17 autogas refueling stations in urban
areas of Guangzhou, the Group recorded sales
of approximately 207,800 tons during the 10
months from January to October 2013. Starting
from November, the joint venture with Sinopec
Guangdong commenced official operation to operate
and manage the 17 autogas refueling stations and 3
autogas refueling stations under Sinopec Guangdong
(20 autogas refueling stations in total) by way of
subcontract. Since then, the Group has changed from
being an autogas refueling station operator to the
exclusive LPG supplier to the joint venture, and has
provided approximately 37,200 tons of merchandise
to the joint venture during the last two months of
2013, with the annual total sales of autogas refueling
of the Group amounting to approximately 245,000
tons in 2013.

Oil Products Business

Purchase of Fuel Oil

The fuel oil for our oil products business was used to
be purchased from an oil company in Hong Kong (with
oil storage depot in Tsing Yi Island). At the end of
2012, the Group disposed 51% equity interest of the
project company that engaged in marine bunkering
business in Hong Kong. Since then, the fuel oil was
purchased through a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. A total of approximately 470,000 tons of fuel
oil (including approximately 418,000 tons heavy oil
and approximately 52,000 tons marine diesel) was
purchased in 2013. Apart from approximately 84,000
tons heavy oil being imported from Singapore, the
remaining was all supplied by Shell Hong Kong,
Sinopec Hong Kong and Mobil Hong Kong.
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Sale of Fuel Oil

The Group’s marine bunkering services is the whole
responsibility of the project company, and is provided
through two main channels: (1) a floating barge
(marine bunker station) anchored in Yau Ma Tei
Typhoon Shelter is supplying marine diesel oil to pilot
vessels in the territorial waters of Hong Kong, cruises
anchoring in the Victoria Harbour, jetfoils of Cotai
Water Jet sailing between Hong Kong and Macau,
engineering ships in the territorial waters of Hong
Kong, small cargo vessels and fishing vessels sailing
between the PRC and Hong Kong. The station has ail
storage of around 2,000 tons, and can refuel up to 4
vessels at the same time. This marine bunker station
is also performing a contract granted by the Hong
Kong Government to supply not less than 15,000,000
litres ultra-low sulphur diesel to vessels of 11 Hong
Kong Government departments in two years (2013
and 2014); (2) a number of bunker ships with different
loading capacities to draw up alongside anchored
ships for fuel oil transfer with fuel oil from oil storage
depot. The bunker ships serve import and export
merchant ships, container ships, cruises and even
foreign warships visiting Hong Kong.

Logistics Facilities

Despite that the Group no longer participates in the
end-point sales of the marine bunkering business in
Hong Kong, the Group continues to hold and develop
various infrastructure and operating licenses (including
the oil storage depot in Zhuhai, the application of
operating license for bonded warehouses and the
acquisition of a number of bunker ships completed
and under construction) that are key elements in
the entire supply chain. Apart from the plan to use
bonded oil storage depots to facilitate the purchase of
oil products, the Group owns a fleet of ship leased to
the project company for the operation of the marine
bunkering. The fleet owned by the Group include:
one existing floating barge of 1,700 tons, 2 bunker
ships (1 x 270 tons, 1 x 370 tons) and 4 bunker ships
under construction (1 x 2,500 tons, 1 x 3,500 tons, 2
x 4,500 tons).
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Beside the Group’s fleet, the project company also
leases 6 bunker ships (1 x 200 tons, 1 x 250 tons, 2
x 300 tons, 1 x 1,100 tons, 1 x 1,200 tons) for the
operation of business.

BT EBMMEIN - IBEARNS
MNEE 62 MM (1 x 2001
1 x 250MF ~2 x 300ME ~1 x 1,100
WE 1 x 1,200 F) AR EFEHLEE o

4. Business Outlook 4, EBEwilE
4.1 LPG Business 41 BEFEE

As a continuance of the LPG operating strategies in
2013, the Group will move towards priority of quality
over quantity in the proactive exploration of business
with industrial customers, bottled LPG business (in
particular bottled LPG business in Hong Kong) and
autogas refueling business with higher profitability,
while simultaneously reducing the wholesale business
with a low profitability.

To further enhance the efficiency of logistics and
delivery, the Group has added two berths (each of
5,000 tons class) and commenced construction of
two propylene tanks (1 x 2,500 tons, 1 x 1,500 tons in
the Group’s LPG terminal in Zhuhai). The construction
works in relation to warehousing, logistics and
distribution will be completed in 2014 successively,
by then, the logistics and distribution capacity of the
Group will be greatly enhanced.

Industrial Customers

It is expected that plants using LPG as raw material
for production of chemical products will successively
complete construction in Gaolan Port, Zhuhai. As the
LPG importation port of the Group is also located
in Gaolan Port and has the ability to provide LPG of
different specifications designated by the customers,
the Group is able to extend a stable and timely
supply to the customers in this business at the lowest
logistics costs giving the Group a competitive edge in
canvassing new customers.
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Expansion of LPG Autogas Refueling Business

Starting from November 2013, the joint venture with
the Guangdong branch of Sinopec commenced to
operate and manage the 17 autogas refueling stations
of the Group and 3 autogas refueling stations under
Sinopec Guangdong by way of subcontract. LPG
resources required by the joint venture are entirely
supplied by the Group. The joint venture will invest
in 5 selected existing autogas refueling stations
of Sinopec Guangdong branch to install auto LPG
refueling facilities. In alignment with the increases
in the number of refueling stations, there will be
adequate refueling facilities in Guangzhou Municipal
to support automobiles renovation to replace the use
of petroleum with LPG, which in turn will facilitate
the smooth expansion of the LPG autogas refueling
business in Guangzhou.

Bottled LPG

In respect of the bottled LPG business in the PRC,
the joint venture is planning to use the existing
refueling station network of Sinopec in Guangdong
Province to enhance the delivery efficiency of bottled
LPG. The joint venture will also combine the available
land resources of Sinopec Guangdong branch and
the well-established sales network of the Group to
further expand and enhance the sales channels of
bottled LPG, with the objective of increasing the share
of both parties in the Guangdong market. The bottled
LPG business in Hong Kong officially commenced in
mid-December 2013, mainly relied on the contracted
distributors to explore commercial and household
customers in the New Territories and the Kowloon.
Alliance with more distributors is the top priority
at present with the expectation that the Group will
increase the market size to a considerable level in the
bottled LPG market in Hong Kong within three years.
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4.2 Oil Products Business 4.2 HRER

28

Within the one year and more since the commencement
of the marine bunkering business in Hong Kong by the
Group in May 2012, the operation of the oil products
business has achieved tangible results based on the
business orientation of taking the end-point customers
as the primary business target the wholesale business
as the secondary.

The Group is committed to the establishment of a
comprehensive operation chain for the oil products
business within two year. The construction of the oil
storage depots of 70,000 tons in Zhuhai Terminal has
completed and is now under pre-delivery inspection. It
is expected that it can commence operation in around
March to April 2014. By then the Group can leverage
on its logistics advantages to smoothly tap into the
marine bunkering market in Zhuhai region (with the
territorial waters of the PRC). On the other hand, the
bunker ships ordered last year will be delivered and
become available for use successively in 2014. The
Group intends to lower its purchase costs through
importing overseas marine fuel oil by using its self-
owned oil storage depots located at the terminals
and the leased warehouses, and at the same time to
lower the transportation costs through enhancing the
logistics efficiency in oil delivery and distribution by
using the newly ordered bunker ships sailing between
Zhuhai and Hong Kong. It is expected that the
combination of these two measures will enable side-
by-side significant increases in the sales and gross
profits of the oil products business.

Besides, the Group is planning to apply for the
addition of a berth of 100,000 tons within Zhuhai
Terminal. Leveraging on this large berth, the Group
will be able to increase the quantity and categories
of the oil products being purchased while lowering
the cost of sea transportation. It will also enable the
mixing of oil products to further lower the purchase
costs.
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4.3 LNG Business 4.3 LNG¥#

The LNG end-point market in Guangdong Province
is still in the formative stage. It is expected that its
demand will not be the growth track until several
years later, and the application of LNG is also limited
to heavy trucks instead of all types of automobiles in
the market. Consistent with the Group’s long-standing
principle for the development of autogas refueling
business (that is, to select prime locations for the
stations and to secure customers with high usage),
the Group has already set down the development
direction of cooperation with terminal users (including
bus companies, logistics companies, transportation
companies and special vehicles etc).

In May 2013, the Group and Guangzhou Xinshui Bus
Company (formerly known as Guangzhou Yiqgi Bus
Company) have entered into an agreement for joint
construction of LNG refueling station. The parties of
the cooperation intend to apply for the establishment
of two LNG refueling stations within the public
transport station of Xinshui Bus, in order to provide
exclusive refueling services to Xinshui Bus’ 1,000
diesel buses to be placed by LNG buses.

Also, the Group has gained the support of the relevant
departments of the Government of Guangzhou
Municipal which has agreed to the allocation of
additional land areas to the sites of three LPG
refueling stations of Lianxin Energy to be leased to
the Group for the construction of new LNG stations.

The joint venture with Sinopec Guangdong branch has
obtained the approval from the National Development
and Reform Commission for the construction of 6
LNG refueling stations. Currently, two stations have
commenced construction, and the LNG refueling
station located on Guangyuan Middle Road,
Guangzhou is expected to be handed over to the joint
venture for operation in the second quarter this year.
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As its long term plan to perfect the operation chain
of LNG, the Group intends to acquire a land parcel of
100 mu in the proximity of Zhuhai Terminal, which will
be reserved for the construction of LNG storage tanks
by the Group for the integration of the LNG storage
tanks with the terminal and transform them into a
receiving terminal to serve as the key infrastructure for
LNG importation.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

The Group derives its sales revenue principally in RMB, and
its cost of sales is mainly denominated in USD and RMB. As
a significant portion of the cost of sales is dominated in a
different currency from the sales revenue, the Group manages
its exposure to exchange risks through natural hedges between
purchases and sales and appropriate use of forward exchange
contracts.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2013 and 2012.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2013, the Group pledged its bank deposits and
bills receivables amounting to approximately HK$3,862,030,000
and HK$205,916,000 (2012: HK$4,056,010,000 and
HK$235,603,000) respectively to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed 1,135 (2012:
1,100) full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC. The Group remunerated the employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing market practice.
Employee benefits provided by the Group include a mandatory
provident fund scheme, medical insurance scheme and an
employee share option scheme.
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The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are both
essential to the Company’s long-term development. Set out
below is the corporate governance report prepared by the Board
in accordance with Appendix 14 “Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report” of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2013 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
as set out in the corporate governance code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 for the Listing Rules, save for a
deviation from the provision governing tenure of non-executive
directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to re-
election. The Company deviated from this provision in that none
of the non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed term,
instead their tenure of office are governed by the provisions
for retirement by rotation and re-election as provided in the
Bye-laws of the Company. (These provisions are described in
the paragraph headed “Non-executive Directors” below). The
Board believes that the fixing of the tenure of non-executive
directors by way of provisions contained in the Bye-laws, and
the shareholders’ right to re-elect retiring non-executive directors
as contained in the Bye-laws, will serve the long term interests
of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, the measures
adopted by the Company are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises six executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. Biographical details
of all directors of the Company are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Profile” on page 4 to page 6. The current
structure and composition of the Board have provided it with an
appropriate mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
and the Board reviews its structure and composition from time to
time to ensure that appropriate expertise and independence are
maintain.

Membership of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2013 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

All directors have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of offices they held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitment, including the identity of the
public companies or organizations and indication of the time
involved. Managing Director Shum Chun, Lawrence is the son of
Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a cousin of Cen
Ziniu, executive director of the Company.

The Board establishes the strategic direction for the development
of the Company and sets out the objectives of the management,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management. The Board also approves annual budgets, major
funding proposals and investment proposals, and oversees the
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processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk
management, financial reporting and compliance. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions of the Group,
including the development and review of the Group’s policy and
practices on corporate governance.

With the assistance of the company secretary, Board meetings
are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are consulted on
the agenda. Procedures are established for all directors to have
free access to board papers and related information, to review
the Group’s internal controls, and to have the services of the
company secretary to ensure matters are transacted in the Board
in accordance applicable rules and practices. Directors may seek
independent professional advice upon reasonable request to
discharge their duties. All committees of the Board have specific
terms of reference clearly defining their respective powers and
responsibilities an committee meetings are held as required
under these terms of reference. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions or recommendations.

The following table shows the attendance of directors at
meetings of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2013:

Name of director

EERS
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Number of Meetings

Executive Directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Attended
HEEERE
HITEF -
BLE(ERE) 4/4
BB (EFAAEEE) 4/4
=74 4/4
AR 4/4
e 4/4
FEX 4/4
BUIHITEE -
K958 4/4
PR B JE 4/4
‘rATEL 4/4
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During the year, all directors received regular briefing and
updates on the Group’s business, operation and corporate
governance matters. They also attended training relevant to the
industry, regulatory updates or directors’ duties to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills as listed company directors.

Through participating in the Company’s board meetings and
committees meetings, and review of briefings and updates
on the Company’s business and affairs, all directors are able
to make contribution required from them to the Board and to
the development of the Company. The Company has received
confirmation from each director that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company during the year under
review. The Company has also received from the directors a
record of training received by the them during the year which is
summarized as follows: —

FR MEEECTEHRIARREBHE
WEEH HERERPEERFHE -HF
INE2METTERERE - R A KRB IEE K
BEERENEY UEBREERIEALETA
RIE RN L IRE -

PREFEBL2HEARANEFERENZE
BEegd KEHAQRANEBREHRZE
BREH  EHEFHTEEFTERAQAHE

RUHMEBRLWER - AAFZREBLE
SR REABRHARANFEHERATE
REIRET ARATERIETRFAE
XFz s WHRKIT ¢

Type of Training

Name of director Attended

EENS HE BRI E A

Executive Directors: HITESE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) BDE(ERE) A B

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) LR (EFETE) A B

Cen Ziniu ZF4 A B

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR A B

Siu Ka Fai, Brian EES: A B

Wang Jian FEX A B

Independent Non-executive Directors: BB TESE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony iR $97%6 A B

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRABIZ A, B

Dr. Xu Mingshe mEMELT A, B

Notes: et -

A Attending briefing and updates on rules and regulations related to A i B & K ST BI B B8 A9 AR Bl K 48 {6
corporate governance law and practice HY

B  Reading of material and updates on the Group's operation and B HIEEAEENEREITENLERMIEEN

finance and on the industry generally

ZEH
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Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
are separated by written guidelines adopted by the Board to
ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The responsibilities
of the Chairman include leadership of the Board, providing
relevant information and mobilizing the collective resources of
the directors in the Board’s roles and functions. The Managing
Director is responsible for leadership of the management, and for
execution of business strategies and front-line execution.

Non-Executive Directors

As at the date of this report, three members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The term of appointment
of non-executive directors is governed by the Company’s Bye-
laws pursuant to which at each annual general meeting one-
third of the directors of the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the
definition of the Listing Rules.
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Mr. Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (“Mr. Cheung”), who is to retire
by rotation in the coming annual general meeting, has served as
an independent non-executive director for more than 9 years.
The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence
of Mr. Cheung for re-appointment as non-executive director
and concluded that he has satisfied the independence factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, that there are no
relationships or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of his independent judgment in taking up his role
as independent non-executive director, and that he has the
required professionalism, integrity and knowledge to continue
to fulfill his role as an independent director despite his length
of service of more than 9 years. The Nomination Committee
also noted the positive contributions of Mr. Cheung to the
development of the Company’s strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed contributions supported
by his valuable professional knowledge and experience, and
from his active participation at meetings. Hence, the Nomination
Committee recommended to the Board that Mr. Cheung be
nominated for re-election as independent non-executive director.

During the year, arrangements were made for the non-executive
directors to meet with the Chairman without the presence of the
executive directors, to consider and discuss various matters in
respect of the management of the Company.

Board Committees

The Company has set up three Committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. In addition to the above 3
Committees, the Board has set up an Executive Committee
comprising all executive directors on the Board. Under its terms
of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible for the
oversight of the management of the Group and the formulation
of administrative guidelines.

REBERE(TRALE DEERRRIBULIEH
TEFBBEIF  BRKERRBFAE LK
WERE REZBECIARRELEER
FARTEFZHE LM YRERESTAERN
FHRAESABGNBILMEREE - R ILE
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EHEBIF  RELHBEMTHNERER =
EUEMABAEEHERSBLIES - AR
REZBEIBINREENEFIZNBLE
B UWEBEG2EEGE  FHBEY B2
FMENMRE ZER - AR R ZRE KRR
HRAZILAZE -t REZEERE
EEHBRIAERETRABIIFNTES -

FRERIFNTESERENTESHE
THIFEH UEELRFA®BARRERS
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Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee
comprises all independent non-executive directors and two
executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal control
procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship
with the external auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the system of internal control covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. Through direct communication
and meetings with the management, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the financial reporting of the Company, including the
Company’s interim and annual reports, and the financial position
of the Company as disclosed in the financial reports, and it
has also reviewed the engagement of external auditors and the
effectiveness of the audit process.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year 2013 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

° Auditing and financial reporting matters;

° Appointment and remuneration of external auditor;

° Non-auditing work of external auditor;

o Financial reporting process and risk management functions;
° Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system; and

° Review of interim results and audited financial statements.
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Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at meetings
during the year is as follows:

Name of Member

541 £

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee, which are in line with the principles
of the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and two executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and senior management. It takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once
a year to access the performance and review the annual salaries
and bonus of the senior executives.

RNEEABZEZESBUKEHFERELT

Number of Meetings

Attended

HESHRE

REB(ZEELEE) 2/2
PRIBIE 2/2
‘rALEL 2/2
=& 2/2
T4 2/2

FHESE
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors, reviewed and discussed,
among other matters, the Remuneration Policy of the Company
and its implementation. 2 meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held in the year to review, among other things,
the remuneration packages of the Chairman, the executive
directors and senior executives.

Attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:

Name of Member

541 £

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Nomination Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Nomination
Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two executive directors as follows:

Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman)
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board, identify suitably
qualified individual for appointment to the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.
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During the year, the Company has adopted a Board Diversity
Policy setting out the approach to achieve a diverse Board.
Taking into account factors including the size of the Board, its
composition of executive and non-executive directors, and the
Company’s principal activities and needs, selection of candidates
shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. 2 meetings
of the Nomination Committee were held in the year to review
and discuss the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and to assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors of
the Board. The Nomination Committee has also reviewed the
Board Diversity Policy and their implementation, and made
recommendation to the Board on the appointment of directors.

Attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:

Name of Member

541 £

Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman)
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company’s corporate governance policy is formulated
with an emphasis on transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
our operations with applicable laws and regulations.
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During the year, all members of the Board have discussed and
reviewed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. They have also reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as well as
its disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. A code of
conduct applicable to employees and directors setting out the
standards of behaviour that the Company expects from them and
the guidelines on how they should handle different situations in
business dealings with the Group were formulated and adopted
by the Board. The board also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Model Code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by employees of the Company, or directors or
employees of the Company’s subsidiary or holding companies,
who are likely to possess inside information of the Group.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness and for this
purpose has maintained an internal audit function which is
internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s permanent
establishment. The management of the Company has established
a set of comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in
areas of operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding
assets against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of
financial information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance
against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
is conducted by the internal audit function on an on-going basis,
and the responsible personnel will directly report to the Audit
Committee on any significant finding on internal controls.

The Board considered that throughout the year 2013, the
Company complied with the code provisions on internal controls
as stipulated in the CG Code. During the year the Company
conducted a full review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and discussed the assessment bases with
the management. The Board considered that the existing internal
control systems of the Group are effective.
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Inside Information

The Company adopted a policy for disclosure of inside
information which sets out guidelines for the release and control
of inside information to ensure that the Company, its directors
and employees meets the obligations for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. A framework has been
set up to assess whether any particular information is inside
information, to ensure that any information considered to be
inside information should be kept confidential before the relevant
information is fully disclosed to the public, and to coordinate the
disclosure of the information in accordance with the requirements
of the Securities and Future Ordinance and. The Chairman, the
Managing Director, executive directors responsible for the control
of the Group’s operation and the Head of Investors Relations are
authorized as spokespersons of the Company.

Shareholders’ Rights

Rights of shareholders of the Company are provide under, and
are subject to applicable laws and regulations (which include
the Bermuda Companies Act and the Listing Rules) and the
Bye-laws of the Company. Set out below is a brief summary of
certain rights of the shareholders of the Company, which is for
easy reference only. The relevant laws and regulations and the
Bye-laws of the Company should be referred to for a full account
of such shareholders’ rights.

Convening Special General Meeting on Requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to require an special general meeting (the
“SGM”) to be called by the Board by written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholder(s) making the requisition and stating
the purposes of the requisitioned SGM, deposited at the
registered office of the Company.
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If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to convene
such SGM, the shareholders making the requisition, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an SGM, provided that
the SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 2
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Proposal may be made by shareholders in the form of resolutions
proposed at an annual general meeting, or in the form of
statements circulated to shareholders with respect to matter(s)
referred to in any resolution or matter to be dealt with at any
general meeting. Shareholders, representing at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders, may by written
requisition request the Company to: (a) give to shareholders
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved at the
next annual general meeting of the Company, and which the
requesting shareholders intend to move at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the next general
meeting.

In the case of shareholders requesting the Company to give
notice of a resolution, the written requisition must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office not less than 6 weeks before
the date of the annual general meeting. In the case of any other
requisition, the written requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office at not less than 1 week before the
date of the annual general meeting.

In order to notify the Company at the earliest opportunity of
the deposit/intended deposit of a written requisition referred to
in the above, a copy of the requisition may be delivered to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F.,
The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong or email to cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.
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Proposing a Person for Election as Director

Procedures have been set up by the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a director. Details of the procedures are
available on the Company’s website.

Contacting the Board for Enquiries

Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of
the Company’s information, to the extent such information can
be made available to the public. Shareholders may at any time
make enquiry in respect of the Company in writing at our head
office in Hong Kong by post or facsimile via the numbers and
email address provided on the Company’s website or email to
cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Investor Relations

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy. The use and effectiveness of such policy will be
monitored and reviewed regularly by the Board. The Company
recognises the importance of shareholders’ privacy and therefore
will not disclose shareholders’ information without their consent,
unless required by law to do so.

To achieve equal access to information on the Company’s
latest major development, measures have been taken to
ensure all necessary information and appropriate updates
are made available to investors in a timely manner through
corporate communications and other corporate publications
on the Company’s website under the column of “Press Room”.
Corporate communications required to be given under the
Listing Rules, any applicable laws and corporate procedures
will be provided to shareholders in plain language and in
both English and Chinese versions to facilitate shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 22/F., Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. For enquiry about
the information of the Company, shareholders may contact the
company secretary.
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Shareholders are encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings. Members of the Board will attend to answer
their questions.

The Company has also posted its constitutional documents on
its website and there was no significant change in them during
the year under review.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is set out as follows:

Services rendered

ARFNE LA R FEEXHE A F@%
o RAFER - LEAMEABE -

A &

FR-ERN/ BN TAREZEENEE o B
ERTGEMITZERWET

Fees paid/payable

RIS IR Bft EER

HK$’000

FET

Audit services B R®E 3,050

Non-audit services IEE T ARTS 882

Total =) 3,932
Accountability and Audit RERERZE

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group and ensuring that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 59.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group was
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”), oil products business and sales of
electronic products.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 61 and 62.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK5.7 cents per share to the shareholder whose names appear
on the register of members of 22 May 2014 amounting to
approximately HK$84,554,000. On 13 March 2014, the number
of shares issued and fully paid is 1,483,398,216.

Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 200 of
the annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spend approximately
HK$156,940,000 (2012: HK$224,329,000) on property, plant
and equipment to expand and upgrade its LPG and oil plant.
Details of the movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Share Capital

During the year, the Company issued 166,500,000 and
11,044,842 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for placement and
exercise of share options by option holders respectively. Details
of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves of the Group and the Company
Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves during the year
are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”

on page 65 and page 66.

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2013 were as follows:

Bz &

FRBFESERBRESEATEER
¥ AN E B 5 B #17166,500,000 % K&
11,044,842 [ F R EEO0. 108 T Ay E @R -
AR AR E IS D BN R A T SRR MIFE S5 -

*RERFLFIER
A B N R DR F 65 k66 H
ZIEARRERAIRN -

ARBIF2013F 12 A31 B EH Dk TR R
REBIT

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAEIT TFET

Contributed surplus AR 1,667 1,667
Retained earnings RE = 101,948 86,205
103,615 87,872

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

RIEBRZEIGIFRREWBITA) - AR
ZHABRBAIHDIR o AT - WHHRTIE
o BIRRB A ERAARGT T IR
BESFE DI -

(@ ARRBREHARMREENERDHNE
%

& BEBTRARKROGER AN -
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 17% and
51% (2012: 13% and 37%) respectively of the Group’s total
turnover for the year, including discontinued operations.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 25% and 64%
(2012: 27% and 54%) respectively of the Group’s total purchase
for the year, including discontinued operations.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Charitable Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$71,000.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2013.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent non-executive directors:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Mr. Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, executive director, Mr.
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony and Mr. Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict,
independent non-executive directors, shall retire by rotation
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. All directors retiring at the annual general meeting
have offered themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2013, the interests of the directors and chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of
the Company
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EERERTHRARIRKNRIEMKG
hziia

MR2013F12A31H  EERTEBTHAE
MEEHE BB ARKNR T REMREEE 2K
MEBEBERDT  BBEARRAREESR
HAE 1515 55 352 1648 T 5L 8 A IR A& B B il i 77
EZEEMAER  IBREFELTRAE
FHTEARH2EETARE  BAHNgR
NE| REE T ST

(@) FLTFISHREMEO0.10BTHBERPZLF
|

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital of
issued ordinary the Company

shares held R E LT
Name of director Capacity RISERIT BERTERR
EERR 4 TERBA [=}V:]:4
Executive Directors:
HITEFE
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 35,244,358 2.38
2 EmEEA
Corporate interest (Note 1) 490,779,280 33.08
RicEm (faz 1)
526,023,638 35.46
Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneficial owner 55,623,558 3.75
2E BB A
Other (Note 2) 73,616,892 4.96
HM(Htiz2)
129,240,450 8.71
Independent Non-executive Director:
BTIHNTESE -
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony Beneficial owner 614,484 0.04

5K $96 BEa A A
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= % = S
Notes: BiaE -
1. These represent the block of 490,779,280 shares beneficially 1.

(b)

owned by Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”) which
were held as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung,
and were the same block of shares as referred to in note
1 under section (a) in the paragraph headed “Substantial
Shareholders” below. Uniocean is owned as to 70% by Mr.
Shum Siu Hung, 15% by Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, and
15% by Mr. Shum Ho, Neo, both are sons of Mr. Shum Siu

ZERG ESBIZERER AR &
A 2 490,779,280 B A% 1 - It & D 1
FEHENRRIEREE  BTRIEZRFIM
MR BB O RBRSDEEE  BEE
EREBEEE(RERSVEREZRT)E
B70%  15% K 15% °

Hung.

2. These interests reflect 15% proportional interest of Shum 2. ZERmNEZABRLHEEHES
Chun, Lawrence in the 490,779,280 shares held by 490,779,280 AR {0 89 15% ## 2
Uniocean.

Share options (b) FER%IE

Outstanding

share option

as at

Exercise Number of 31.12.2013

Date price underlying 7 31.12.2013

Name of Director of grant per share  Exercise period shares MERITEZ

EENE EHAHY BERTER TEEY RSB MERR e
(HKS)
&)

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 16/6/2006 0.625 17/6/2006 - 6,626,905 6,626,905

AR 31/12/2015

Siu Ka Fai, Brian 15/5/2006 0.625  17/6/2006 - 4,970,179 4,970,179

FRE 31/12/2015

Note: The share options in this section are held by the relevant
directors in the capacity of beneficial owner.

Other than disclosed above and nominee shares in certain
subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for the Group,
none of the directors, chief executive nor their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December
2013.

et - ABRPEBRAET RAHESAESR
BAEANGOREA -

bR EXFEEERETEEREAEE
IEAFEAMRE THBARRE ZR
BARMIN - BR2013F 12 A31H &
EE FETRABAEEZSAZHE
AT W EEEARB RSB E QAT 2 E
FiEm IR R °
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Share Options Mg

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in AABZBRETEFBHNGRAETBIRE
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. MI5E36 -

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share TREEARRQRFAEREAE &
options during the year:

Category 1: Executive Option type Outstanding Exercised Outstanding
Directors amu at 1.1.2013 during the year at
S RITESE 71.1.2013 FRETHE 31.12.2013
RRITE 7 31.12.2013
RR T
Shum Siu Hung 2006B 9,940,358 (9,940,358) —
R
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 2006B 6,626,905 — 6,626,905
HHA R
Siu Ka Fai, Brian 2006A 4,970,179 — 4,970,179
EEV
21,637,442 (9,940,358) 11,597,084
Category 2: Independent
Non-executive Directors
2 BIAFERTES
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony 2006B 1,104,484 (1,104,484) —
SR $906
Category 3: Employees 2006A 9,940,358 — 9,940,358
SW3:BET
32,582,284 (11,044,842) 21,537,442
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set out in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly in any contract, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2013, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and chief
executive, the following shareholders had notified the Company
of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company:

MAROBRRFZRH

B EXPrREESN - ARA] - REEAFH
HEMMERRRFAEMERESE BT E
Mz EARAEZAHRBARARE
I B AE N E B 2 B D KBS MEUS ek o

EE RRERREXGHCHER

FRAZBMEXSHECENGRE M REM
45 e

BEXFRESN  AAT - HERADRE
AMEMBARYEBRTTAADE SR
B REE S BN R EE EARRM
RO [ 1R 50 R 7 A E IS A
BAAHK -

FERRE

MR2013F 12 A31H  BREARRKRBES
M ERE 65125 336 IR E AR L FEWREE
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N BE Em N TIRRAE AR A
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Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the

Company

Name of shareholder

RN

Capacity
5%

Annual Report 2013

REAFSHREEI0ERHERZFR

Percentage of
the issued

—E-=EEH

Uniocean Beneficial owner

et Bl

Tong Shiu Ming Family interest (note 1)

&/ KikER (Wt 1)
Family interest (note 2)
RikE=(Hit2)

FIL Limited Investment manager
RERE

Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited Interest of controlled corporation (note 3)
REHARRRES (M 3)

Fullerton (Private) Limited Interest of controlled corporation (note 3)
REHRAERER(HiZ3)

Temasek Fullerton Alpha Pte. Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation (note 3)
REHARIREEE (W 3)

FFMC Holdings Pte. Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation (note 3)

REHRAEREE(HiZ3)
Fullerton Fund Management Company Ltd.  Investment manager (note 3)

RERB(WZ3)
Notes:

1. This represent the same block of 490,779,280 shares held
as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms.
Tong Shiu Ming as referred to in note 1 under section (a) of the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and were deemed to be the
family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

2. These represent the same block of 35,244,358 shares held
beneficially by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms. Tong Shiu
Ming as referred to in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and
were deemed to be the family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

Number of share capital
issued ordinary of the Company
shares held s LH
LT ERITRSF
BERTEERSE ALt
490,779,280 33.08
490,779,280 33.08
35,244,358 2.38
119,616,000 8.06
91,193,000 6.15
91,193,000 6.15
57,514,000 3.88
91,193,000 6.15
91,193,000 6.15

At -

1. ZERMNDERDBHZ L ZEMBS DML
A BBRAFEREREAE 2 490,779,280 % %
B (RIEERFEZSITHRABRBRMD LA
Benrh 2 iz (@) BRI RE1) - AR BB/
B TURERERFE °

2. ZEBROHHEE/|BEZLIZEBZ EREE
A 235,244,358 R HRA(RIE =
MEZITRASRBEMD RBBRG T Z#E
=) WERAE/N AR UREEREE -
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3. Fullerton Fund Management Company Ltd. as investment manager
is deemed to own a total of 91,193,000 shares through various
funds under its management. Fullerton Fund Management
Company Ltd.’s entire interest is indirectly owned by FFMC
Holdings Pte. Ltd., and Fullerton (Private) Limited indirectly owned
100% interest in FFMC Holdings Pte. Ltd. Amongst the total
91,198,000 shares, 57,514,000 shares are held in the name of
Temasek Fullerton Alpha Pte. Ltd. and its entire interest is directly
owned by Fullerton (Private) Limited. Fullerton (Private) Limited’s
entire interest is indirectly owned by Temasek Holdings (Private)
Limited. Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited, Fullerton (Private)
Limited, FFMC Holdings Pte. Ltd are all deemed to be interested in
the above said 91,193,000 shares by virtue of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Change in Company Secretary

On 30 June 2013, Mr. Wu Hong Cho (“Mr. Wu”) retired from the
office of company secretary of the Company and Mr. Cheung
Man Kin (“Mr. Cheung”) is appointed as company secretary with
effect from 1 July 2013. Mr. Cheung has extensive experience
in accounting and auditing, is a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of Certified Public Accountants of Australia. The Board
wishes to take this opportunity to express its gratitude to Mr. Wu
for his valuable service and contributions to the Company.

3. Fullerton Fund Management Company Ltd.
RIELE BAHEENTRAESHR
B ¥ B #£91,193,0008% B 5 ° Fullerton
Fund Management Company Ltd.H #&
¥ % B FFMC Holdings Pte. Ltd. [ # #%
& + il Fullerton (Private) Limited B 45
FFMC Holdings Pte. Ltd. 100%# 3 » %
91,193,000 % f& 17 2 # - 57,514,000 I& A%
5 Temasek Fullerton Alpha Pte. Ltd. &%
B - H4REZS M Fullerton (Private) Limited
B #% ¥k A - Fullerton (Private) Limited B 42
#e25H Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited
MEER - HREFHREEKD - Temasek
Holdings (Private) Limited ~ Fullerton
(Private) Limited &2 FFMC Holdings Pte. Ltd.
BWAR BEE £ 91,193,000 B AR D ©

B R
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WEZEW - ERREENFIET

RRREEFZME N BHFNEESLERAE
NFE T @ @ AEERA BTSSR
ST TIRERT -

AERERE

MR2013F 6 A30H » tAEMLA([EBEE D)
FRARMEBERRWMEZBS - R EXAE
([REEDEEZEAARRZARIME -
WH2013F7A1HRBRER - RAERBED
M AENET M ENS M AE
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FeEA LRSI ALETRQBELH
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules

On 1 August 2013 the Company entered into a facility agreement
A for a term loan facility divided into two tranches: (a) an
aggregate amount of US$60,000,000 and (b) an aggregate
amount of HK$156,000,000 for the purpose of financing the
general working capital requirements of the Group. The loan to
be made to the Company upon utilization of the facility will be
repayable in instalments, with the last instalment falling due 36
months from the date of the utilization.

On 27 November 2013 the Company entered into facility
agreement B for a bilateral term facility of US$20,000,000 for the
purpose of financing the general working capital requirements of
the Group. The loan to be made to the Company upon utilization
of the facility will be repayable in 8 quarterly instalments,
commencing 15 months after the date of first drawdown.

On 27 November 2013 the Company entered into facility
agreement C for a bilateral term loan facility US$20,000,000
for the purpose of financing the general working capital
requirements of the Group. The loan to be made to the Company
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in 6 quarterly
instalments, commencing 15 months after the date of first
drawdown.

Under the above facility agreements, in the event the Shum
Family (comprising certain family members and relatives of Mr.
Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company as set out in the
facility agreements) cease to remain as the largest shareholder
and maintains less than 30% shareholdings of the Company,
the facilities available to the Company will be cancelled and all
outstanding amounts will then become immediately due and
payable.

As at 31 December 2013 the Shum Family beneficially own
approximately 39.21% in aggregate of the issued share capital of
the Company.
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Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to

re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Deloitte.
Zan

s

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWOCEAN ENERGY
HOLDINGS LIMITED
MR FRERRAR

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 61 to 199, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that gives a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

Annual Report 2013 =—Z—=FF#f
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

= ANE =AY
2‘\/ g P \
For the year ended 31 December 2013
EE2013F 12 31 HILFZE

H b2 U e

1R

2013 2012

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaE FAET FET
Continuing operations BEES
Revenue WA 6 14,433,446 12,456,376
Cost of sales SHE AN (13,217,938) (11,398,888)
Gross profit EH 1,215,508 1,057,488
Net exchange gain (loss) b 5 PT1S (8518 ) F 58 8 172,945 (83,889)
Other income H b YA 8 149,757 143,345
Selling and distribution expenses SHE LD (275,045) (227,264)
Administrative expenses T (226,353) (201,909)
Impairment on goodwill recognised EREERE 20 - (10,000)
Gain on deemed disposal of available ?ﬁ’i?ﬁﬁﬂ:‘%ﬁfﬁﬁ%
for sale investment "ERTS 38 - 23,724
Changes in fair values of convertible —Hﬁ‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁ ANTEZ
bonds & 39 (4,564) (701)
Changes in fair values of derivative Miﬁﬁ%lﬂﬁ$ﬁz
financial instruments i (26,793) 19,637
Finance costs Eﬂ‘l’ﬁﬁ$ 9 (206,640) (275,701)
Share of profit of a joint venture DE—REELERF 1,127 1,219
Share of profits of associates /‘15 B A B 12,283 —
61
Profit before taxation [ 75 A2 ) 11 812,225 445,949
Taxation TIE 10 (29,378) (17,725)
Profit for the year from continuing BEEBTIRZFN
operations i A 782,847 428,224
Discontinued operations EIFEES
Profit for the year from discontinued — JE#F4E ¥k 2 R
operations i ) 12 - 384,317
Profit for the year F N A 782,847 812,541
Other comprehensive income HE2mkes(EH)
(expense)
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEHHEL
profit or loss: BmE AR :
Exchange differences arising EinE B3| ERE
on translation to presentation EECZERZER
currency 64,363 (1,194)
ltem that may be reclassified BEE A e B D AR
subsequently to profit or loss: BmxsHEE
Fair value loss on available for AHEERE Y
sale investment NEEEE (19,658) —
44,705 (1,194)
Total comprehensive income for the FRE2E RS
year 827,552 811,347
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

EE2013F 12 31 HILFZE
2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaE FAET FET
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to 282 B1#E A A JEG E R
owners of the Company i ) (E518)
Continuing operations FEETS 783,308 426,617
Discontinued operations IERFEETS - 384,317
783,308 810,934
Non-controlling interests FEfEHil i (461) 1,607
782,847 812,541
Total comprehensive income EREmEkES () ¢
(expense) attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARHERA 827,950 809,740
Non-controlling interests VbR (398) 1,607
62 827,552 811,347
Earnings per share FRET 16
From continuing and discontinued RN IEREER
operations
Basic HAK HK$0.55 i#& T HK$0.62 /& 7T
Diluted i3 HK$0.54 # T HK$0.61 7T
From continuing operations FHEZET
Basic HA HK$0.55#& T HK$0.33 7 7t

Diluted g HK$0.54 i#& 5T HK$0.32 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARe MR LR

At 37 December 2013

R2013% 12 431 HiF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
oria F#EITT FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment L/EN ST 17 1,507,951 1,362,710
Land use rights s A 18 246,759 231,298
Prepaid lease payments for coast A ETAMNAERIE 19 9,403 9,963
Goodwill kS 20 296,060 289,608
Other intangible assets Eﬁﬂﬂﬁ/EF 21 342,315 359,036
Interests in associates AN e 22 306,327 231,722
Interest in a joint venture *%/\Aﬁ%%ﬁé 23 11,893 10,420
Available for sale investment AHHERE 39 136,534 —
Deposits paid BEffiES 24 112,135 1,068
Deferred tax assets RIER I EE 37 1,358 1,304
2,970,735 2,497,129
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 25 732,710 705,155
Trade debtors and bills receivable EWE SRR EWREE 26 2,376,246 2,069,137
Other debtors, deposits and EMERER - ke kB
prepayments NG 26 751,203 1,104,393
Amounts due from associates JE Uk Bt 2 N B BR 7R 28 418,965 137,084
Derivative financial instruments PTEMKTA 47 1,313 6,906
Land use rights + M A 18 10,321 9,515
Prepaid lease payments for coast BEBNEENIE 19 872 846
Properties held for sales BEEEYE 29 211,541 221,989
Properties under development for SEERTYE
sales 30 208,218 188,060
Available for sale investment A ERE 39 = 80,809
Convertible bonds ARRES 39 - 79,971
Pledged bank deposits BIHIEITER 31 3,862,030 4,056,010
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 31 1,747,612 1,196,143
10,321,031 9,856,018
Current liabilities mEN R
Trade creditors and bills payable Fﬁﬁ,%f%ﬁﬁmﬁfgﬁmf 32 2,173,145 3,258,442
Other creditors and accrued HibENERER R ETER
charges 161,276 198,788
Amount due to a joint venture B —REELEZR 33 509 493
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMKT A 47 20,302 31,418
Tax liabilities MBEE 40,770 40,063
Borrowings fully secured by pledged B2 I RITER 2 82
bank deposits — repayable within REOBER — BAR—F
one year NEE 34 2,876,760 3,588,551
Borrowings partially secured by B ERIRIRIT I D
pledged bank deposits 1%9’115 &
— repayable within one year BER—FNEE 34 1,661,424 31,007
Borrowings secured by other assets EEE11E§JZ?J*1%E’J1%
— repayable within one year AR—FRNEE 34 192,166 228,987
Borrowings unsecured — repayable ﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁ ZENN
within one year —FNEE 34 1,352,309 2,058,250
8,478,661 9,435,999
Net current assets mEEESRE 1,842,370 420,019
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBBE 4,813,105 2,917,148
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= AR 7 4R
Re AR
At 31 December 2013
R2013F 12 31 A1t

2013 2012

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
izt F#&iT FET
Capital and reserves HE R R

Share capital f& A 59) 148,340 130,586

Share premium and other reserves B9 i (B & E A i 15 3,947,196 2,437,818
Equity attributable to owners of the /NG e S 2PN )

Company s 4,095,536 2,568,404
Non-controlling interests JEIE SR = 21,261 16,572
Total equity R 4,116,797 2,584,976
Non-current liabilities EREBIAR

Deferred tax liabilities BIEMEEE 37 144,031 145,661

Borrowings unsecured — repayable mHERER — R—F1%&

over one year Big 34 552,277 186,511

696,308 332,172

4,813,105 2,917,148
The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 199 were BEEQER2014F 3 A 13 HEM RIRHEEE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on FO1E19E ZHREWB®RE  WHTHE

13 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: BEREREE
Shum Siu Hung Shum Chun, Lawrence
=i Wi
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

] /_\ —H= N\ 7 %—;’%
IREEREER
For the year ended 31 December 2013

HZE20134F 12 31 AILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
FOFARERAARS

Statutory Share Investment Contributed Non-

Share Share Special surplus  Exchange options  revaluation surplus Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  accounts reserve profits Total interests
; {1
ks RHER  BRER ERRE HBBEGE ARER MARRE  AREE  REEA BEE FnaHR
HKB000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKB'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
77 77 77 7T 77 7T TAT TR T 7T 7T AT A7
(Note j (Note i
&) iG]}

At January 2012 R2012%
161H 190586 711250 122085 27771 144178 5,663

1,667 3,600 644864 1,823,754 23,781 1,847,535

Proft for the year A = - - - - - - = - B9 B09% 1607 812541
Exchange R#E 7%
differences ERELE

aising on b=

translation to

presentation

currency - - - - (1,194 - - - - - (1,194 - (1,194)
Total EREE

comprehensive (ks

(expense) g

income for the 65
Jear - - - N R - - - - G004 BMT0 167 81
Disposal of a HE-FHE

subsidiary A

Inote 40) (H40) - - - - - - - - - - - pen B
Appropriations A1k - - - 8,449 - - - - - (8.449) - - -
Aoqustionof — BA-FHE

addtional AEE

interests in a Ea

subsidiary (W)

(Note i) - - - - 762 - - - (35,817) - (35,055) (4.945) (40,000)
Dividend paid Bfiks

(note 13) Hiz1s) - - - - - - - - - (3008 (3003 - (30,03
A3 Decomber 20126

2012 1A3E 13056 TIL280 12085 %220 36 5663 -8 () 14731 2508404 16572 2584976
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
B E2013F 12 431 HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
FOFARERAARS

Statutory Share Investment Contributed

Share Share Special surplus  Exchange options revaluation surplus

capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve reserve reserve  accounts
i {1

k% BRER  BARRE ERRR MREEE ARER GARRR

Other
reserve

Retained
profits

Non-
controlling
Total interests

AR REEN #Hg  FruEe
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FET FET T  FET  TET  FET  FET  TET  FET  FET  TET FET FET
(Note ) Note )
) (Wi
Profit (oss) for the ~ EAEF|
year (BR) - = - - - - - - - 783,308 783,308 (461) 782,847
Exchange RAERIR
diferences EREL
arsing on EizE
translation to
presentation
currency - - - - 64,300 - - - - - 64,300 63 64,363
Farvaluelosson ~ AIHERE
avalable for sl HIATE
investment BR - - - - - - (19,658 - - - (19,658 - (19,658)
Total EREE
comprenensive AR ()
income a5
(expensg) for
the year - - - - 64,300 - (19,658) - - 783,308 827,950 (398) 827,552
Incorporation of 8~ BRI ~% %
subsidlary with ~ #RIES 2
nonconroling ~~ HEAR
Interests - - - - - - - - - - - 5,087 5,087
Appropriations Ak - - - 4519 - - - - - (4579) - - -
Dividend paid Bfiks
(note 15) 1) - - - - - - - - - (56,369) (56,369) - (56,369)
Issued of shares ~ REEEETT
pursuant to a ki3
placement (i)
(note 39) 16,650 762,570 - - - - - - - - 719,220 - 779,220
Issued of shares R
pursuant to BETRG
exercise of share (47 95)
options
(note 35) 1,104 17,119 - - - (1,920) - - - - 6,903 - 6,903
Transaction costs ~ ZARIEM
airbutableto ~ AYRFAA
issue of shares - (30,572) - - - - - - - - (30,572) - (30,572)
M1 December 120135
2013 12A318 148,340 1,450,967 122,085 40,799 208,046 3,743 (19,658) 1,667 (127) 2,139,674 4,095,536 21,261 4,116,797
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

W
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A EREER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BB 2013F 1231 HIFFE

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(ii)

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve of
the Group’s former ultimate holding company whose shares were
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of
the share capital issued by the Company pursuant to a scheme of
arrangement dated 14 April 1999.

The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise development
and general reserve funds appropriated from the profit after
taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC laws and
regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company acquired
10% equity interest of a subsidiary from the non-controlling
shareholder at a consideration of HK$40,000,000. The difference
between consideration paid and the carrying amount of the 10%
non-controlling interests and the exchange reserve related to the
acquired 10% equity content of the subsidiary was charged to
other reserve.

Wizt :

(i)

(ii)

ANER B2 R R e IR ] ENR R R B £

RSB SRIERAR ZEAN - BRHOEE
MERBEOFE  BARAIRE 19994 4 A

14 BRI 2 BB EIE ZHEat 31 M 31T A D
[EE =7

EEBBRBEERBEFEARLME(H
B ) 25 RAR IR B SZ KB A AR B
BENADIR EEERE —RFEES -

HZE2012F 12 A1 HIEFE » AAFMUK
{& 40,000,000 7 7T A1 FE 4% 1] 3% 3R U B — SR
Eﬂﬂw%Z%%cawmmﬁFﬁm%%
THIESMREE REELEZMBEA
m%%‘mtﬂﬁ%ZE@EﬁAﬁ@ﬁ%
q: °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

68

EE2013F 12 31 HILFZE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaE FAET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXE
Profit for the year F R Al 782,847 812,541
Adjustments for: THEE
Income tax P15 29,378 20,425
Share of profit of a joint venture DE—REEDLE R T (1,127) (1,219)
Share of profits of associates DAGE & R B A (12,283) =
Other finance costs A B & AR 139,845 194,546
Interests on bank trust receipts UARE(TARE IR
loans pledged with Renminbi TR IRITIE
(“RMB”) bank deposits FEUUR AR Z R 66,795 81,155
Interest income A 2 A (140,898) (130,505)
Loss (gain) on fair values changes of  $TAEME T ERAFENRK
derivative financial instruments 2 EBEAs) 26,793 (19,637)
Loss on fair values changes of AR EH A EE
convertible bonds ZEE 4,564 701
Gain on deemed disposal of AR AL E ] EER
available for sale investment BF1S - (23,724)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE W B QRS — (876,277)
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - MR RREITE
equipment 72,856 80,643
Impairment on goodwill recognised EREERE - 10,000
Loss on disposal and written off of HE RMEE Y - #as
property, plant and equipment K& EE 7,208 262
Amortisation of land use rights kb {55 PR ARE A 10,360 12,962
Amortisation of prepaid lease B TEN AR E SR
payments for coast 857 843
Amortisation of other intangible H b fmp & s
assets 27,458 27,023
Operating cash flows before LEESEBEP LLER
movements in working capital EnE 1,014,653 689,739
Increase in inventories FE®EmM (25,511) (271,975)
(Increase) decrease in trade debtors B E 5 BRI & fE K%
and bills receivable (38 hn) R (298,985) 96,621
Decrease (increase) in other debtors,  HAEUERE « 2 & KT8
deposits and prepayments R IER A (3E0) 431,829 (169,229)
Increase in amount due to a joint FEAS—& & EFRIEIE N
venture 16 493
Increase in amounts due from JFE U Bt % 2 B FRIE L 0
associates (281,881) —
Increase in properties under HEBEAYELN
development for sales (14,025) (2,227)
(Decrease) increase in trade creditors BT E 5 8RN E R 24
and bills payable Rk ) &N (1,102,908) 2,084,641
Decrease in other creditors and EMEMERERRERTEA
accrued charges Vs (69,982) (180,109)
Decrease (increase) in properties held A ZFEWER A (1 0)
for sales 29 17,400 (221,989)
Increase in derivative financial PTAE B 7% T EE AN
instruments (29,977) (25,499)
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EE2013F 12 31 HILFZE

Annual Report 2013
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2013 2012

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat FET FET
Cash (used in) generated from wmEEE(FTR) RS
operations (359,371) 2,000,466
PRC income tax paid XAt EIFTI (38,383) (32,645)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REXB(FAEERS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BE (8397,754) 1,967,821
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest received 2 U H 2 89,206 10,719
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash UsE& B~ 71 (2 & Fr
and cash equivalents acquired) BrzHReMERREE
B) 38 - (523,295)
Addition of land use rights N £ Hb (5 A A (18,936) —
Purchase of property, plant and EEWE  HBERRE
equipment (187,136) (231,395)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits U@l & #EIRER1T1F 70 5,571,180 3,790,012
Placement in pledged bank deposits 77 2 BRI T1E K (5,323,433) (3,633,695)
Proceeds from disposal of a HE—WBARFAME
subsidiary 40 — 146,086
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - #es R RE
plant and equipment Fri5 16 302
Capital contribution to an associate ML R R HE (62,322) =
Refund of deposit for acquisition of RO BEE MR E R L 2
LPG stations in Guangzhou BEffikE - 104,848
Subscription of convertible bonds RIBARRES = (80,672)
Entrusted loan repayment from RE—EBREZETLENR
an entity BN - 644,423
Purchase of available for sale BANHEERE
investment - (80,809)
Loan advance to an independent party BT & 7 26 (20,350) (246,655)
Increase in deposits paid Bz &1 0 (111,135) =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BRETEFMARERE
ACTIVITIES (62,910) (100,131)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
EE2013F 12 31 HILFZE

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAETL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A EE
Interest paid BEAFE (174,898) (211,656)
Proceeds from issue of shares RIBREZE TR G
pursuant to a placement 779,220 —
Proceeds from issue of shares RIRITE BRI TR (D
pursuant to exercise of share Fris
options 6,903 —
Expenses on issue of shares TR (30,572) =
New borrowings raised L3 ER 13,689,428 10,879,838
Repayment of borrowings EEEN (13,163,521) (12,140,514)
Acquisition of additional interests U B — BB R AR SME 2R
in a subsidiary - (40,000)
Dividend paid EfTARE (56,369) (30,035)
Capital contribution from a non- RE KB A E 8L
controlling shareholder of a IR 2 HE
subsidiary 5,087 —
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) MEFTBEE(FMA RS
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B8 1,055,278 (1,542,367)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HeRERFAEBEHEN
CASH EQUIVALENTS B8 594,614 325,323
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE Ef#EzHE
RATE CHANGES (43,145) (6,775)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNReRERTRLER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,196,143 877,595
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FEXASRERATRLER
AT END OF THE YEAR 1,747,612 1,196,143
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF B &RERHRLER SR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITRB RS 1,747,612 1,196,143
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
E—E——FEf =+ —HIFE

General Information

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding
company is Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).
The address of the registered office of the Company is
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are sales and distribution of
liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”), oil products business and
sales of electronic products.

The functional currency of the Company is RMB, the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates. For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements and convenience of the financial
statements users, the results and financial position of
the Group are expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to Annual improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 cycle

Amendments to Presentation of items of other
HKAS 1 comprehensive income

Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting financial
HKFRS 7 assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to Consolidated financial statements,
HKFRS 10, HKFRS joint arrangements and disclosure
11 and HKFRS 12 of interests in other entities:

Transition guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised  Employee benefits
in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised  Separate financial statements
in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised Investments in associates and joint
in 2011) ventures

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20 Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”, HKFRS 11
“Joint arrangements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in
other entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) “Separate
financial statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
“Investments in associates and joint ventures”, together
with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12 regarding the transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group
as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and separate financial statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12
“Consolidation — special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10
changes the definition of control such that an investor has
control over an investee when a) it has power over the
investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and c) has the ability
to use its power to affect its returns. All three of these
criteria must be met for an investor to have control over an
investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance
has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor
has control over an investee.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10 (Continued)

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
Group’s investees in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 10. The directors of the Company concluded that
there was no impact to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the adoption of HKFRS 10.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures”,
and the guidance contained in a related interpretation,
HK(SIC) — INT 13 “Jointly controlled entities — non-
monetary contributions by venturers”, has been
incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS
11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control should be classified and
accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only two types
of joint arrangements — joint operations and joint ventures.
The classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 is
determined based on the rights and obligations of parties
to the joint arrangements by considering the structure,
the legal form of the arrangements, the contractual terms
agreed by the parties to the arrangement, and, when
relevant, other facts and circumstances. A joint operation
is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31
contemplated three types of joint arrangements — jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled operations and jointly
controlled assets. The classification of joint arrangements
under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based on the
legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that
was established through a separate entity was classified as
a jointly controlled entity).
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 (Continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and
joint operations are different. Investments in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint
operations are accounted for such that each joint operator
recognises its assets (including its share of any assets
jointly held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue
from the sale of the output by the joint operation) and its
expenses (including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the assets and
liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, relating to
its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the
applicable standards.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
classification of the Group’s investment in joint arrangement
in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 11. The
directors of the Company concluded that the Group’s
investment in & M T % ¥ M R B R A &, which was
classified as a jointly controlled entity under HKAS 31 and
accounted for using the equity method, should be classified
as a joint venture under HKFRS 11 and continuous
accounted for using the equity method. There was no
impact to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the adoption of HKFRS 11.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has
resulted in more extensive disclosures in the Group’s
annual consolidated financial statements of note 22.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7
“Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities” for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about:

(@) recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32 “Financial instruments:
Presentation”; and

(b) recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 have been applied
retrospectively. The application of the amendments has
had no material impact on the amounts reported in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements but has resulted
in additional disclosures included in note 47C.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source
of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 183 is broad: the
fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply
to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net
realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories
or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has
not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for
the 2012 comparative period (please see note 48 for the
2013 disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures,
the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material
impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income”.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed
as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

Based on the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2013, the application of
HKFRS 9 will affect the classification and measurement
of the Group’s available for sale investment, in which the
available for sale investment will either be reclassified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss or fair value
through other comprehensive income.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and ‘simultaneous realisation and settlement’.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 32 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the application of the other
new and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective is not expected to have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

FEEMHBEE)

NFERRFERNMHS2EERRE
FRELEEEMBRBREZRABMX
NZER  MIAwmZEBRERAER
S A E M A ERM GRS o RfbaE
BEXABZATER  MZETHE2
HEERFEAPRAEEXREEERH
ZREEXRBZRH NAKEEE
BERH RUFRAMBHRRTIE
HER/ERERGR I ATEYRZE
HET EBRBEUBREEE2
HMBEEANZARDSER ZNR - B
REBGAENFEI7TREEANZEE
RS NRERAFEMRUBELIERFE
(fInEE et ERISE 258 2 A] 23 FE
BB ERNFEICHR2EREE)Z
HERIN

BAN - MM B mEMS - R FEFETS
PEAE—R BE_R/AE=H X
RHEFEBABBEZAIBERERE
ABBHAFEFEREBME 2EEN
gl T

s FHABABBEREENEAH
ARBzHEREEXRBERNERT
5 Z PR B (CRIGHE)

s FE_ABABEBREESLREZE
EXEZRAERHARE - HFA
1R PTRERERSN + &

s FABABBEREENEBZE
EBRBARE

EREHERREIINT -



Annual Report 2013 =—Z—=FF#f

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

R E =1 —HILFE
3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consideration of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

FEEMHBEE)

FAEMBBREEARRRARRTHES
ZERUREMBARZHBEHRER - K
RARATNE R ARSI -

s HREBEHREEEN

. FERTHAHSBBEHRES
P AR E R BB R FIA ¢ R

s FAENMEAERIFZERDR -

HEERBRBR —BRZE X5
Z-EBEHIETRHAES  AAKE
CEMFEERETEFIRESR -

BASEEUSH B QR 2 FE R R 1A
EZRMBLAR  YIRNARBEREMEL
Bl Z B AR LL - BRI - RFEAK
BREEZMBRRZBARRAXTIA
AEEDSEFNEENEEAKREL L
ZHINEARER  stAGRABRm A
b2 EKEmRE

B kEembs & EEE HER
AREERARIFEZERER - KB AR
ZEHPRaEBBRNBEARRERAR
FErE R as - BB L 2 B BRI
@B A AR

REFER MBRRcMBHRREE
AR USHSHRREANKREEM
B RARIFIRAERFF—2

ESERARRIBCEERGE  #
7@ WA FAXREAEEXKEAFME
RPERHEREDINGEEAERE

83



84

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1882 REBHER D 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

R E =1 —HILFE
3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”
respectively;
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Business combinations (Continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date (see
the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable on the
basis specified in another HKFRS.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose other than construction in progress,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and amortisation are recognised so that to
write off the cost of assets, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. For vessels,
the residual value of each vessel is equal to the product of
its light weight tonnage and estimate scrape rate.

Vessel components costs include the cost of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed at
dry dockings. The Group capitalises dry docking costs as
they are incurred and depreciated these costs using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or administrative purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and for qualifying assets,
borrowing cost capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property, plant
and equipment, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid
lease payment provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development for sales are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both
the land use rights and development cost for the property.
Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses
and the anticipated costs to completion.

Development costs of property comprise construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the
Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable cost
incurred during the development period. On completion,
the properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

FEEMHBEE)

ARREIBAZREPET

EEFRITRAGERT - AIRERB
BB A HE RN RIBEE T AR
EEEFTRAZHEPIRD - EEEFTTD
BRAEREM S BB EEIRYIR
EHEERTAMHERBIE LEBUEE
BEERELESAMTHEEMN)
5 D RRIREITINE -

FEIRPYME

FEBRRTMEDERAR AR FE
MEZBEEIR - KABRZDEZ
THERENERRAME - Al & ﬁ@
Bt RFAMREEER 2B - BUE
$HE S NIRRT TERARCAR -

%%Z%E&$&%%k&$ RIBA
BeHREMEZBERAE AR

K%E%ﬁ@éiZE&ﬁﬁﬁK S

TE  REVMEEREFREDE -

HRAFEMR

FRBEREMERERARAIEEFEL
BIEETIRR -



Annual Report 2013 =—Z—=FF#f

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

R E =1 —HILFE
3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
live less impairment losses, if any (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to made the sale.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs (Continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “land use rights”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets except for derivative financial
instruments (see policy below) are classified as loans and
receivables, held for trading investments and available
for sale investment assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
(Continued)

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL (including convertible bonds
and derivative financial instruments) are measured at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets and is included in the other gains
and losses line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 48.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held to maturity investments.

Equity held by the Group that are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale
equity investment are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss or
financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables including bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits, trade debtors, amounts due
from associates, bills receivable and other debtors and
refundable deposits are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant on
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financing re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors and bills receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors and other debtors, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investments revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

FEEMHBEE)
MBIRE)
MEZERE(E)

A E M E ERR SR TRE -
WmeﬁﬁiﬁW SRR e T
HREH D EE B -

IZESHA AR B EEMS - W
EREREE  BEBESERD > ME
M ERSE L BERREREECF
B R - RIEAERER 2R EREE /S
B T ARE - MEZEERBE R
BlE B Z AR E B TS 8 8 K T SRR (B
B -

AL ERRREREERST2E8
B EmE - RERRR IR EE
MHEERNEMEEREER - ARG
RIE SRS -

MBERRRERRZIR

SEERRTZEBERATADRE
R sHEEREYHABREATA
ZEBENDBAM A EELS

BRATLA

BATADFEAEEBNHBMABEREBR
ZEETHAENSERZEMER - &
SEBTZRATAZMBRERETR
A2 B WERFT S SRIBRERR ©



Annual Report 2013 =—Z—=FF#f

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE=—F—=F1+=-HA=1—HIFEF

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial liabilities)
including trade creditors and bills payable, other creditors
and accrued charges, amount due to a joint venture and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contracts) that are not
designated as hedging instrument are classified as held for
trading.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit
and loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustments to
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the management are required to
make estimates about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets
relating to the sales and distribution of LPG and acquired in
a business combination are impaired that requires estimation
of the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. The
group performed impairment assessment by estimating
the value in use of the cash-generating units in which the
goodwill and the intangible asset are attributable to, which
approximately the fair value less cost to sell. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The discount rate represents the rate that reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates
have not been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected or where there are revision in future
estimated cash flows due to unfavourable changes in facts
and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 December 2013, the carrying amounts of goodwill and
other intangible assets are approximately HK$296,060,000
and HK$342,315,000 respectively (2012: HK$289,608,000
and HK$359,036,000). For the year ended 31 December
2013, there was no impairment loss recognised. For year
ended 31 December 2012, there was an impairment loss of
HK$10,000,000 on goodwill recognised due to continuous
thin profit margin and low cash inflows generated in
three CGUs in recent years. Details of the goodwill and
other intangible assets are disclosed in notes 20 and 21
respectively.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimate of net realisable value of properties under
development for sales and properties held for sales

As at 31 December 2013, properties under development
for sales of approximately HK$208,218,000 (2012:
HK$188,060,000) and properties held for sales of
approximately HK$211,541,000 (2012: HK$221,989,000)
are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value
respectively. The estimated net realisable value represents
estimated selling price less selling expenses and estimated
cost of completion which are estimated based on best
available information. Where there are any decrease in the
estimated selling price arising from any changes to the
market conditions in the PRC, there may be impairment
loss recognised on the properties under development for
sales and properties held for sales.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings as disclosed on note
34, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, share premium, reserves
and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues, payment of dividends and the raise of
bank borrowings or the repayment of the existing bank
borrowings.
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Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the
year.

Categories of financial instruments

RERRETERMBIA S

BEEBER(E)

FRAEERBERRETE -

MBIRZER

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets MEEE
Loans and receivables (including cash B3k & fEU I8 (B 35
and cash equivalents) HehERIE£ER) 8,802,538 7,900,535
Convertible bonds AR ES - 79,971
Available for sale investment AEHERE 136,534 80,809
Derivative financial instruments DTS T A 1,313 6,906
Financial liabilities HMBAR
Amortised cost BEE RN 8,918,165 9,493,360
Derivative financial instruments DTS T A 20,302 31,418
Financial risk management objectives and policies HBERBREEEEREE

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, borrowings,
trade debtors and bills receivable, other debtors, deposits,
convertible bonds, available for sale investment, amounts
due from associates, trade creditors and bills payable,
other creditors and accrued charges and derivative financial
instruments. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial HEXABREERMBIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERMEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Market risk e mEE
(i) Currency risk B s

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Certain trade debtors,
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and
borrowings of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies as disclosed in notes 26, 31 and 34
respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RABETHB ARG AINEHE
Z2EBE  SHAREEATINERR o
AEEETRRE SRR  R174
#HERE BEERBETEREE
R AN TE B (FEBE 2RI
726 31 N34HE) °

REBIINESIEZ B EERE
BRERERPRZREEDOT

Liabilities
AR\
2013
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET F#ETT FET
United States Dollars ETT
(“USD”) (EZA) 29,170 173,794 985,122 1,266,270
RMB AR 2,788,452 2,553,571 - 366,641

During the financial years, the management has
entered into several derivative contracts to reduce
the exposure of currency risk. As at 31 December
2013, the Group has outstanding cross currency
interest rate swap contracts with an aggregate
notional amount of approximately USD153,150,000
(2012: foreign currency forward contracts and
cross currency interest rate swap contracts with an
aggregate notional amount of USD433,313,000) in
relation to RMB. The details of the derivative financial
instruments are disclosed in note 47.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)

In addition, two (2012: two) subsidiaries of the Group
with functional currency of USD have intergroup
balances that are denominated in RMB, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.

Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HKS$ is pegged with USD,
the currency risk is mainly arising from exchange USD
against RMB and RMB against USD. The following
table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in USD against RMB and a 5% increase
and decrease in the RMB/USD spot rate and forward
exchange rate. 5% represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in the
RMB/USD exchange rate and the RMB/USD forward
exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and derivative financial instruments and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% change in foreign currency rates or their
fair value at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in forward exchange rate. For monetary assets
and liabilities, a positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against USD. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit and the balances
below would be negative. For derivative financial
instruments, a negative number below indicates an
decrease in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against USD. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit and the balances below
would be positive.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial HEXABREERMBIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERMEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miEmEE(E)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

() EEERZE)

BREDWT(E)

USD impact RMB impact
E P 4 AR#BRE
2013 2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET F#ET FET
Increase (decrease) EF Nm A8 N
in profit for the year OR)
(Note) (K1) 113
— monetary assets — BEBEER
and liabilities BfE 44,118 41,918 123,031 94,375
— derivative financial — DTHET
instruments TA (6,393) (9,449) — —

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding
on bank balances, receivables, payables and
borrowings denominated in USD or RMB and
derivative financial instruments as at year end.

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in USD against RMB in
respect of the Group’s foreign currency exposure on
intergroup balances. 5% is the sensitivity rate used by
the management in the assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding RMB
denominated amounts due between subsidiaries of
the Group and adjusts its translation at the year end
for a 5% change in RMB rates. A positive number
below indicates increase in post-tax profit for the year
where RMB strengthens 5% against USD.

Wit EEBRNFREBELRARE
EBZAREERTHERS  BUER
B BN RS EFARST N
BTAGRZER -

AR B 7 & E R SR 2 I
BB E @ TRFAVETHARE
ERARTEE% 2 HEE - 5% 5
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Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
For a 5% weakening of RMB against USD, there

would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-
tax profit for the year below:

RERRETERMBIA S

MERBREEARRBE(E)

mEmEE(E)

()

EEm R (&
BREDWT(E)
HARBHETTES% - AlgH

VAN RBR B R i M E A AR5 KA
Rz#E :

2013 2012

Increase in post-tax profit for the year 4 K[ B 18 3 F3EZ A0

HK$’000 HK$°000
FExr TAT
37,607 35,752

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank loans have exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on variable-rate bank
loans which charge interest at prevailing market rates.
As at 31 December 2012, the loan receivable included
in other debtors also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk.

(i)
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has exposure to fair value
interest rate risk through the impact of the rate
changes on pledged bank deposits and borrowings
which are at fixed interest rates. As at 31 December
2013, the loan receivable included in other debtors
exposed to fair value interest rate risk as the loan
receivable bore at fixed interest rate. The Group’s
fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-
rate borrowings (see note 34 for details of these
borrowings), loan receivable included in other debtors
(see note 26 for details of loan receivable) and
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed
and receive floating interest rate swaps. The purpose
of the Group to enter interest rate swap is to reduce
the cash flow interest rate risk but does not fulfill the
hedge accounting requirement.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising from
the Group’s variable-rate borrowings and partially set
off by the derivative financial instruments including
pay fixed and receive floating interest rate swaps.
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mEmEE(E)

(i)
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate borrowings, excluding the exposure from the
bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial
instruments including pay fixed and received floating
interest rate swaps. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of outstanding balances at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2013
would decrease/increase by HK$11,123,000 (2012:
HK$6,691,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank borrowings, excluding the exposure from
the bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial
instruments including pay fixed and received floating
interest rate swaps.

RERRETERMBIA S
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group
has significant concentration risk on certain customers and
the loan advance to an entity. As at 31 December 2013,
eight (2012: eight) customers amounted approximately
HK$1,764,066,000 (2012: HK$1,385,745,000) and
comprised around 82% (2012: 81%) of the Group’s trade
debtors. Among the eight customers, seven (2012: seven)
of them are customers engaged in sales and distribution of
LPG who are located in the PRC and Thailand (2012: the
PRC and Thailand), representing 71% (2012: 68%) of the
total trade debtors, while the remaining one (2012: one)
customer is engaged in sales of electronic products who
is located in Thailand (2012: Thailand), representing 11%
(2012: 13%) of the total trade debtors as at 31 December
2018. Most of the customers of the Group are large
wholesales and trading companies in the PRC or overseas.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group is responsible to implement credit monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debtors, other
debtors and deposits at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ranking assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Equity price risk on available for sale investment

The Group’s available for sale investment as disclosed
in note 39 are measured at fair value as at 31 December
2013. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. A 10% (2012: 10%) change is used when
reporting equity price risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in equity price. For the
year ended 31 December 2013, if the market bid prices
of the listed investments had been 10% (2012: 10%)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s investment valuation reserve for the year
ended 31 December 2013 would increase/decrease by
HK$11,401,000 (2012: HK$6,748,000). This is mainly
attributable to the changes in fair value of the listed equity
investments.
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Equity price risk on convertible bonds

The Group was required to estimate the fair value of the
convertible bonds as disclosed in note 39 as at year
ended 31 December 2012 with changes in fair value to
be recognised in profit or loss as long as the convertible
bonds are outstanding. The fair value adjustment would
be affected either positively or negatively, amongst others,
by the changes in market interest rate, share price and its
volatility of the convertible bonds issuer. These convertible
bonds had been converted by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below has been determined based
on the exposure to the change of share price and its
volatility of the convertible bonds issuer at the end of the
reporting period. If the share prices of those convertible
bonds issuer had been 5% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2012 increase/decrease
by approximately HK$3,042,000, as a result of changes in
fair value of convertible bonds.

If the volatility of share prices of those convertible bonds
issuer had been 5% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$3,042,000, as a result of changes in fair
value of convertible bonds.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the valuation of convertible bonds involves
multiple variables and certain variables are interdependent.
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 20183, the Group has undrawn
short term borrowing facilities with floating rate
amounting to approximately HK$9,511,392,000 (2012:
HK$8,872,725,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derive from interest rate carries at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
net cash (inflows) and outflows on derivative instruments
that settle on a net basis. When the amount payable is
not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined
by reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated
by the yield curves existing at the end of the reporting
period. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the contractual
maturities as the management consider that the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing
of the cash flows of derivatives.
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Capital Risk Management and Financial
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Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table

2013
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade creditors and
bills payable
Other creditors and
accrued charges
Amount due to a joint
venture
Fixed interest rates
borrowings
Variable interest rate
borrowings

Derivatives — net
settlement

Cross currency interest

rate swap/interest
rate swap outflow

2013
FHTEMBRR

EREAEAR
ARES:

Rft R &RAR
JEsF 2R

EN-FaELE
LA

EEER

TR -
BERE
RN EHF|=
8 /F%
bkl

Weighted
average

effective
interest rate
miEFsy
ER7E

2.36

2.21

RDELmEE(E)

REBE T RFF RS FR

—E_=zER

RERRETERMBIA S

MERBREEARRBE(E)

Carrying

amount at

Total 31 December

undiscounted 2013

Within Over 2 years to cash flows R2013F

1 year 1 year 5 years HRAB 12A31H
15/ 1£EHE 2EZ5% RenE ZIGE{E
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
2,173,145 - - 2,173,145 2,173,145
143,974 - - 143,974 143,974
509 - - 509 509
2,794,718 7,503 - 2,802,221 2,779,279
3,353,405 324,833 236,510 3,914,748 3,855,657
8,465,751 332,336 236,510 9,034,597 8,952,564
16,376 2,186 427 18,989 18,989
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Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued)

2012
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade creditors and
bills payable
Other creditors and
accrued charges
Amount due to a joint
venture
Fixed interest rates
borrowings
Variable interest rate
borrowings

Derivatives — net

settlement

Foreign currency
forward contracts
outflow

Cross currency interest
rate swap/interest
rate swap outflow

2012
FHTEMBRR

EREHHRAR
ARES:

Rft R RAR
JEsF 2R

EU-FRELIR
B

TEER

73 B

s

fTHIE -

BERE

I R
AN
RN EHF|x

B8/
R

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

ML

ERFE

%

3.14

2.70

5. REEREERMBIAE)

MERREEARRBE(E)

RDELmEE(E)

B E D RFFREERS % (&)

Carrying

amount at

Total 31 December

undiscounted 2012

Within Over 2 years to cash flows M 20126

1 year 1 year 5 years BREH 128311
15/ 1550 £ EFESE HEnE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT TAT FAT TAT
3,258,442 — — 3,258,442 3,258,442
168,678 2,061 - 160,739 160,739
493 - - 493 493
3,530,761 45,512 6,527 3,582,800 3,522,543
2,449,237 127,163 23,119 2,599,519 2,570,763
9,397,611 174,736 29,646 9,601,993 9,512,980
3,166 - = 3,166 3,166
15,736 5,384 637 21,757 21,346
18,902 5,384 637 24,923 24,512
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis and dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

o the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices;

° the fair value of derivative financial instruments
is made of discounted cash flow analysis using
the applicable vyield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative financial instrument) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The details of fair value measurements of financial
instruments are set out in note 48.
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6. Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discount, related taxes and returns, sales
of properties and rental income of oil vessels and LPG
bottles and subcontracting fee for the year. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations for the
year is as follows:

A

WA EAFEARERIIREFPHE
Eml B kKR 2 RORFTH - A
BMRANRE)  HEMERHEEHMN
RBIERMBARZBERZAFE -
RAFE  AEEHRFEREHER2WK
ADHTET

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Continuing operations FEX®
Sales and distribution of LPG HE RS HBRIER 11,013,807 11,544,049
Sales of oil products 455 M EE Gh 2,472,813 =
Sales of electronic products HEETEM 873,631 886,410
Sales of properties HEWZE 28,500 =
Rental of LPG bottles HER(ERIE 39,212 25,917
Rental of oil vessels HE M 3,400 =
Subcontracting fee B E R 2,083 —
14,433,446 12,456,376

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION SEEHE

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on nature and location of
the goods being sold. These revenue streams and the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
are regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

REBHERH RRIHETAAA
ER(MEEMEREE(EBELR
#EDERZENEFRUEES 21
B RIS - TBEEREETHENR
SN HR B B EB D PO 4R
&2 EW - UHRERTEH BRI
HER - RREARE L ZHH B -
EBEEREELESEHH 2L EED
HES -
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7.

Segment Information (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group is
engaged in selling of oil products to wholesaler customers
and leasing of oil vessels which is included in oil products
business segment. The Group currently organises into
the following major operating segments, each of which
represents an operating and reportable segment of the
Group:

1. Sales and distribution of LPG — This segment derives
its revenue from selling of LPG to various customers
including industrial customers, auto-gas operators,
overseas wholesaler customers, bottled LPG end-
users, auto-gas end-users etc. The operation is
carried out in Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau for
both onshore and offshore customers.

2. Qil products business — This segment derives its
revenue from selling of oil products to wholesaler
customers and leasing of oil vessels.

3. Sales of electronic products — This segment derives
its revenue from trading of electronic products such
as integrated circuit and mobile phones etc.

In December 2012, the Group lost control on subsidiaries
that engaged in the segment of selling of oil products
to marine transportation customers in Hong Kong and
thus became discontinued operations. The details of the
discontinued operations are set out in note 12.

SEEH(E)

HZE2013F12A31HILFE - K5 E
HERRL R E SR MR R E M
ZEB T ARBBEBSE - A%
ERBAEBUA T EBLESE  HEH
BAEBEEREFRSE ¢

1. HERISHBIER — KOHEAHE
ERERTIAES  BREIER
P~ mmEEm - BIMLERR -
MR BRI B P TR IR
mAPEFEEWA - ZEBRHET
BE HEMRFMZFE ERERER
B o

2. HmFEHS — W EHEEKmH
THEEP - WREERMEL R
A °

3. HEBETEmM — UNHAHHEESR
FEM * NRABRIR M FHEATE
A e

R2012F 12 8 - AEEXEHMHB AR
A EHEKRBTEBZCHERE
MEPDE) 2ESIE - Bt - ZHB
REIBIEFEET - EFBEEH 27
BEHRMFE12 ©
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7.

Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

SBRHEE)

SR AR RS

UWTAEE

SEWAREEDHT ©

THRREESEE D 2K

BFE2013F 12831 HILFEE

Sales and (o]]] Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Consolidated
HERDH e
. |41 p:E £ BEFER 3=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FETT FET
Continuing operations BEES
Segment revenue DU A 11,055,102 2,476,213 873,631 14,404,946
Segment profit 7 58 5 916,045 7,641 22,575 946,261
Share of profits of DAL E A B
associates 2,586 9,697 — 12,283
Share of profit of a joint DE—REEDE
venture S A 1,127 — — 1,127
919,758 17,338 22,575 959,671
Other income E g A 140,898
Profit from property FRZYERER
investment and BER
development in the PRC 11,100
Central administration costs ~ FRE IR A K
and directors’ salaries EEHe (61,447)
Changes in fair values PTEBMBITARYF
of derivative financial BzE
instruments (26,793)
Changes in fair values of AR ES A FE
convertible bonds 2R (4,564)
Finance costs L= Do (206,640)
Profit before taxation ek F2 BiT Vs A 812,225
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7. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

7.

SERHEE)
SEABMARRRE(E)

#HF 2012 F12 31 ALLERE

Sales and Qil Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Consolidated
BIER o ST BEFfEm RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Continuing operations SEXY
Segment revenue o FRUA 11,569,966 — 886,410 12,456,376
Segment profit SaE bl 528,246 — 87,650 615,896
Share of profit of a joint AME—REEDLHE
venture ikl 1,219 = = 1,219
529,465 — 87,650 617,115
Other income Efbug A 130,505
Central administration costs ~ FR R & IR A K B
and directors’ salaries E (58,630)
Changes in fair values TEMBITARYT
of derivative financial [EPae
instruments 19,637
Changes in fair values of ARRES N FE
convertible bonds 2 R (701)
Gain on deemed disposal R A HE R
of available for sale BB
investment 23,724
Impairment on goodwill REERE
recognised (10,000)
Finance costs B AN (275,701)
Profit before taxation FR 754 AT A 445,949

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. All of the segment revenue reported above is
from external customers, associates or a joint venture.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of interest income, profit from
property investment and development in the PRC, central
administration costs and directors’ salaries, impairment on
goodwill recognised, changes in fair values of derivative
financial instruments and convertible bonds, gain on
deemed disposal of available for sale investment and
finance costs.

EBNBPZEFBREFRMEIZA
KEZGFTBRAR - EXAE2HRZA
B BRBABRBINBES  BE QA
HEEDRE - N REMNEESBRIE
MBWA - PEMERERBERAESE
A PREERAREZHE - E
REERE  TEMH TR R BARE
HRVEZRE  HKASHEAHEE
REZWEMBEKA »
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEBHEE)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) SRk AR¥EE(Z)
The total reportable segment revenue can be reconciled BERSFRATHEGEEZREMS
to the revenue as presented in consolidated statement of HWERAZSZBALERNAT -

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Total reportable segment revenue BEWMHFERA 14,404,946 12,456,376
Add: Revenue from property investment #7 - REI¥)218E MR
and development in the PRC FTEE A 2 WA 28,500 =
Revenue as presented in the reEmkEMmEEWNER
consolidated statement of profit or 2% 2 WA
loss and other comprehensive income 14,433,446 12,456,376
128 The Group has a subsidiary engages in the property REFBZHBARNPRMEEYEIRE
investment and development in the PRC which is NREBER > DEHEIEEBER - LB A
considered as ordinary course of business. The operating Al EEREE N A MM EER I ELE
result and other financial information of this subsidiary are BENKREER  UMEBRDEREK
not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of resources LG o

allocation and performance assessments.
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7.

Segment Information (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segment:

Segment assets

SERHEE)
SEARERAR

AT RIZEENRED 2 AKRBEER
BEDT

DHEE

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FAETL
(Restated)
(&%)

Continuing operations SEXY
Sales and distribution of LPG HE RS HBRILA 4,538,210 4,868,880
Oil products business JH R S 1,272,686 591,570
Sales of electronic products HEBTFTEM 698,448 606,410
Total segment assets BAKEEE 6,509,344 6,066,360
Available for sale investment Al ERE 136,534 80,809
Convertible bonds AR ES = 79,971
Deferred tax assets RIEFR IS E E 1,358 1,304
Pledged bank deposits BHEIEITER 3,862,030 4,056,010
Bank balances and cash RITERAES 1,747,612 1,196,143
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBIA 1,313 6,906
Properties under development for sales &R 3% 208,218 188,060
Properties held for sales BEEEEWE 211,541 221,989
Other unallocated assets HERnEEBEE 613,816 455,095
Consolidated assets REBE 13,291,766 12,353,147
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Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment liabilities

Segment Information (Continued) 7.

SWEHE)
SERERRARGE)

DEAR

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Continuing operations BEXS
Sales and distribution of LPG HERDHEBRIER 2,279,918 3,416,868
Oil products business JH on FE 7S 4,181 -
Sales of electronic products HESBFEM 7 15
Total segment liabilities wOEBE 2,284,106 3,416,883
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMB TR 20,302 31,418
Tax liabilities =N 40,770 40,063
Deferred tax liabilities RIER S EE 144,031 145,661
Borrowings B 6,634,936 6,093,306
Other unallocated liabilities BEmRoEaE 50,824 40,840
Consolidated liabilities REaRE 9,174,969 9,768,171

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments (other
than available for sale investment, convertible bonds,
deferred tax assets, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, derivative financial instruments,
and certain deposits paid, certain other receivables,
properties under development for sales, properties
held for sales and certain property, plant and
equipment); and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and
certain other payables).

The Group has allocated goodwill to the relevant segments
as segment assets without allocating the related impairment
of goodwill recognised to the respective segment.

7

L EEOBRAMADBESREERM

i [[le

BEENNEEZE2H/ S R(AIH
HERE « AHARES - BEHRK
BE - BEEMRITER - RITHER
ERE  TEMBTARETEN
Be  ATHMREERER  FE%
RTYE HBEGENERETY
% BERRREHN K

s MARBNIEEEHNB(AIH
MEERBAGE - |RITER - T4
M TARETEMREMAFERS)

AEECRBHBIRERRYBIERSS
BEE  HXESECEREEEER
EEREIHE -
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Segment Information (Continued)

Other segment information

Continuing operations

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit or segment

assets:

Addition to non-current assets

(Note)

Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment

Amortisation of other intangible

assets

Amortisation of land use rights
Amortisation of prepaid lease

payments for coast

Loss on disposal and written
off of property, plant and

equipment

HESEUA,
SEAERIAZ
28

AEFRBREMT)

ZITE
At EYAESH

T lE RS

BERNEER
B

& RHEENE -
2B

Sales and
distribution
of LPG
HERSH
RiL®
HK$°000
FET

153,305

71,851

27,458
2,204

857

7,208

(o]]
products
business

R
HK$000
FET

36,504

926

1,079

we
HK$’000
FET

206,072

72,856

27,458

SEEHEE)
Htt 3 EEH
IEHAER
HZ2013F 12531 HIFFE
Sales of
electronic
products  Unallocated Consolidated
#E
BETER R
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
- 16,263
- 79
- 1,077

10,360

857

7,208

131



NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited ¥/ REBHR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre ISR M At

For the year ended 31 December 2013
E—E——FEf = —HIFE

7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEBHEE)
Other segment information (Continued) Htt3EE(E)
Continuing operations IFHEEH
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BHZE2012F 12531 HIFFE
Sales and Ol Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Unallocated  Consolidated
HERDH $HE
RILR B ER BTEM Aol e
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FET FAT
Amounts included in the measure s EDEEFISHBEE
of segment profit or segment Bt AZE%
assets:
Addition to non-current assets ERERBEE W2
132 (Note) 876,491 - - - 876,491
Depreciation of property, plant and 1% « B RREHE
equipment 80,522 - - 91 80,613
Amortisation of other intangible EBpAEEE
assets 27,023 - - - 27,023
Amortisation of land use rights TR 3,257 - - 9,705 12,962
Amortisation of prepaid lease BRRAAETESH
payments for coast 843 - - - 843
Loss on disposal and written off of ~ HERMENE « HER
property, plant and equipment REVER 262 - - _ 62
Amounts regularly provided to the ~ EHIZRT BELREE
CODM but not included in the BARBETAD BT
measurement of segment profit AEB R
or loss:
Impairment of goodwill recognised ~ BEREEHE 10,000 - - - 10,000

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and

deferred tax assets.

M FERBEETBREMETARETER
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. S¥EBHEE)
Geographical information BEZFFE
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country REB7REEBUNRNEB(FTELE
of domicile), Macau and the PRC. @)  BPIRAPE o
Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing REBINBELPHTRZIFEEBBAE
operations from external customers is presented based on BUNBEPEEZMNBEES - REBEIER
customers’ location of the operations. Information about HEEZENNEEMEBMNE 2510
the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the TS ¢

geographical location of the assets:

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
SpEERIBA FREEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET TAET FET
Hong Kong B
(country of domicile) (FEZEZEMRER) 2,464,567 318,737 351,698 246,178
The PRC F
(excluding Hong Kong) (TEERH) 8,327,055 8,742,547 2,481,145 2,247,935
Other Asia countries LR EENAIETER 3,641,824 3,395,092 - 1,712
Total BE 14,433,446 12,456,376 2,832,843 2,495,825
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and Mt SERBEEFBERERBEERT

) . - AT I
available for sale investment. HPERE
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEBHEE)

FREEEFRZRH

Information about major customers

R2013F " U TEFEBAEEHESE
EEE10% A EZ WA K 20124F 2 #8

Revenues from customers contributing over 10% of the
total sales of the Group in year 2013 and corresponding

figures in 2012 are as follows: FEEF :
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET FH&T
Customer A' Z2EA N/AFREH® 1,697,320
Customer B' =FB' N/AFER® 1,126,669
Customer C' 2EC 2,083,015 N/ATE A °
Customer D? =P D? 2,419,559 N/ATE A °
Notes: W -
1, Revenue related to the LPG business. 1. BRABRICAEB ZUWA -

2. Revenue related to the oil products business.

3. The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of

the total sales of the Group.

8. Other Income and Net Exchange Gain (Loss) 8.

2. AEHmMEBZIWA -

3. HERALEGEASBHERE10%

AE -

Htuk A RERBR (B5IR)FH

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000
F&IT FET
Continuing operations XS

Interest income on pledged RMB BEEMARBRITER
bank deposits LB A 104,356 118,055
Interest income FEUA 36,542 12,450
Others HAit 8,859 12,840
Other income HAK A 149,757 143,345
Net exchange gain (loss) (Note) P& 5 18 5 (B8 ) B &E (A7 at) 172,945 (83,889)

Note: The amount included net exchange gain arising from
pledged RMB bank deposits for USD borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$101,804,000 (2012: loss of
HK$85,996,000).

Bt BRI TERZEEMAR
BRITERMELEZEN KRS LD
101,804,0007% 7£(2012 : 85,996,000
BILZERE) °
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9. Finance Costs

9. MBEEZF

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Continuing operations BEES
Interests on bank trust receipts loans RITETBIEER K
and other bank loans HAaRITERZFIE 104,440 126,623
Interests on bank trust receipts loans AARERITHEFEAR T RT
and other bank loans pledged with EERBEERREMRITE
RMB bank deposits 2B 66,795 81,155
Interests on bank borrowings wholly AR5 FNEHEERE 2T
repayable within five years BB 35,405 67,923
206,640 275,701
10. Taxation 10. RIAZH

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

represents:

KRB BRE M EmEmRER AR
PR REHE

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Continuing operations BEES
Other regions in the PRC AR H At i
Current tax BIERFR 18 35,403 27,614
Deferred tax (note 37) BEER TS (A7 37)
Current year REFEAE (6,025) (9,889)
29,378 17,725

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

EBFNER IR EFE 2 (Gt ERE
HAIETR R 16.5% T & -
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10. MIRZH (&)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

There is no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements as the
Company and other subsidiaries had no assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong or the assessable profits are wholly

absorbed by tax losses brought forward.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation (from continuing operations) per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

BIEFEAREMBCERSRA( D
ERB#REDRECEMBREERIK
Bl - B EARH2008F1 A1 8
BAZRER25% -

HRARBREMHERREEBLE
FERRBUE F) > 3 FE SR A 2 1A AT Y
HEEEZEBRE - RitReMBERER
W I E BN SR A -

AERZHRBAXHAEGSEEREM
EEBERZBREHADENERAT -

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FET
Profit before taxation FR T50 Al A
(from continuing operations) (REFEED) 812,225 445,949
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% AR 25% 51 & 2 #iIA 203,056 111,487
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  NA[HIk ST 2 B £
for tax purpose 21,853 12,575
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax /BRI A 2 T 5 2
purpose (42,323) (13,015)
Tax effect of profit which are exempted 8% | 2 Tl 75 5 22
from tax (123,567) (88,065)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR IEEIE & i 28 18,459 20,133
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATHRE =58
differences not recognised TR (1,973) 12,421
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B L AT RIER 2
recognised HIEEE (46,127) (37,811)
Taxation for the year (relating to NEFZHIA
continuing operations) (MR AEA) 29,378 17,725

The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise income
tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group

is substantially based is used.

Details of the deferred tax asset and liabilities are set out in

note 37.

B2 BEATEEEEEE N E B
[ 70 2 75 8 B (B o B 4 3 49 L
%) -

EREMBEER B BFBHNMES?
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11.

Profit Before Taxation

11.

TE-ZFEFR

2013 2012

Profit before taxation from continuing
operations has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

Amortisation of land use rights
(included in administrative expenses)

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments for coast (included in cost
of sales)

Amortisation of other intangible assets
(included in selling and distribution
expenses)

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal and written off of
property, plant and equipment

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases:

— Premises

Gross rental income from leasing of oil
vessels
Less: Direct operating expenses

Staff costs

Directors’ fees (note 13)

Directors’ other emoluments
(note 13)

Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes excluding HK$90,000
(2012: HK$89,000) included in
directors’ emoluments

Staff salaries and bonus

B 5 AR A 2 HIBR (RTA)
THIER ¢

o b {5 P A 5
(BRETEHA)

BRENAE SRR
(BREHERAA)

H it I & & #
(BREEHE LD H
XHA)

ZEE B 2

WE - R RRETE

HE RS BN RE
ZER
REBEHRIEES

=
RS @SUA

B BEREEXH

BB A

EEZWE (WL 13)

EEHMIHS
(H1a£13)

F% 90,000 77T (2012 :
89,000 %7T) E&FA
BEMe 2 BIKER
FHEIH R

BET#HeRES

FRiATEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
10,360 12,962
857 843
27,458 27,023
3,657 3,150
72,856 80,613
7,208 262
22,574 31,898
(3,400) —
896 —
(2,504) —
330 330
8,427 8,593
8,006 7,652
78,323 75,191
95,086 91,766
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12.

Discontinued Operations

On 5 September 2012, Sound Hong Kong Limited (“SHK”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an investment agreement (the “Investment Agreement”)
with New Concept Capital Limited (“NCC”) and Integrated
Energy Limited (formerly known as Nitgen&Company Co.,
Ltd) (“IE”). NCC is an independent third party to the Group
and is a wholly owned subsidiary of a company listed
on the Stock Exchange. IE is a company incorporated
in Korea whose common shares are listed on Korean
Securities Dealers Automated Quotations (“KOSDAQ”),
a trading board of the Korea Exchange. Pursuant to the
Investment Agreement, both SHK and NCC conditionally
agreed to subscribe certain amounts of shares and
convertible bonds to be issued by IE (the “Subscription”).
The Subscription was completed on 12 December 2012,
SHK subscribed 17,136,230 IE shares (“IE Shares”) at
price of KRW11,070,005,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$80,809,000) and convertible bonds issued by IE
(“IE CB”) at price of USD10,369,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$80,672,000). The details of IE Shares
and IE CB are set out in note 39.

On 5 September 2012, SHK, NCC and Nitgen Eco &
Energy International Holdings Limited (“NEE”) entered into a
sales and purchase agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”)
in which SHK and NCC agreed to dispose their equity
interests in Success Pillar Limited (“Success Pillar”) to
NEE at a total consideration of HK$ 241,180,000 (the
“Disposal”). NEE is a wholly owned subsidiary of |E. Before
completion of the Disposal, SHK and NCC owned 65%
and 35% of equity interest in Success Pillar respectively.
Success Pillar owned 51% of Ego Time Limited (“Ego
Time”) and the remaining 49% equity interest is owned
by another wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Ego Time is a newly set up investment holding company
in May 2012 of two subsidiaries that incorporated in BVI
and engaged in the business of sales and distribution
of oil products in Hong Kong. Upon completion of the
Disposal on 24 December 2012, the Group lost control
over Success Pillar and Ego Time. The effective interest in
Ego Time reduced from 82.15% to 49%. The consideration
of HK$156,767,000 and HK$84,413,000 to SHK and
NCC were settled by the fund raise by IE through the
Subscription. Further information on the Disposal is set out
in note 40.

12.

AR

201249 A5H * Sound Hong Kong
Limited ([SHK] + &N A 7] 2 2 & it B
A a])ELNew Concept Capital Limited
(INCC]) K Integrated Energy Limited
(H1#E Nitgen&Company Co., Ltd)([IE])
R ERHE(TIEERZE]) - NCCA
REBZBIFEZH TABIFESD
—EWMRARZEEWNBAR - IEARE
Bz AR HIRHREERES
RE5EAEREW S ([KOSDAQ)) + 5
BRSHMRBIRLET o RIFHE Bk
SHKENCCE R ERESR TIE
B TFETIRMDRIRBRES([RES
H]) - RESFHEEN2012F12 A12 8
5E X ° SHKR B 17,136,230 A% IE A% 15
(MER % 1)+ E#& A&11,070,005,000 52
B (#8 £ 7 #780,809,00078 Jt ) M IE %
FzaBERESTETBERES] -
B % /410,369,000 T4 & B 4
80,672,000/ 7t ) ° IER% 17 K |E A # B%
BEHFIEHNMIFESY °

R2012%F 9 A5H * SHK* NCC &
Nitgen Eco & Energy International
Holdings Limited ([NEEJ) 5] 7 B &
&L & W& 1) SHKENCCH
Z 1 & 1% % M Success Pillar Limited
([Success Pillar]) Z f&# ¥ NEE » &1
& %241,180,000/8 su([HE F 1/ |)
NEEBIEZZ2EMBAR - HEFHRE
B A © SHK &2 NCC % 7l # A& Success
Pillar 2 65% 5 35% % # > Success Pillar
#48 Ego Time Limited ([Ego Timel) 51%
S MR T49% K EA B ARNF R
—2EMBARYESR -Ego TimeBR
2012F5 AN Y 2 EER AT
HMHEMNBRARREBE XS T MK
Vo RERBRBHEHERSHEKMRBEE
o HEEHEMN2012F12 8248 =
B 1% » 7N % B %k & Success Pillar &
Ego Time 2= #|# - Ego Time 2 EBX
T = 1 82.15% 3 2> £49% - X {F F
SHK K NCC 2 K {& 156,767,000 78 7T &
84,413,000 TTEHIEBBRESTEY
FIBESSf - HESFHEHZELZEREH
M EE 40 ©



Annual Report 2013 =F—=FFIf

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= AL AT £ 3
R SRR MY R
For the year ended 31 December 2013

E—E——FEf =+ —HIFE

12. Discontinued Operations (Continued) 12. ERFEXRE &)

The details of the Investment Agreement and Disposal
Agreement are set out in the circular issued by the
Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on 11 October 2012, and independent shareholders’
approval was obtained at a special general meeting of the
Company on 1 November 2012.

The retained equity interest in Ego Time is held by another
wholly owned subsidiary treated as interests in associates
to the Group. On 24 December 2012, the segment of
selling of oil products to marine transportation customers in
Hong Kong became discontinued operations to the Group.

2013 2012

REBZERLERE ZFBEHN2012
FI0AMMBARARELETRIE
14AZE T B 2 BEKA - 38 S IR AL
BEEARABR2012F11 B1HRTZ
ERERIAS EES -

Ego Time ZIRBERSZS —2EWBA
ARE HRANEERE QAR)ER -
R2012F 12 824 H  REBBE KR IFE
EHERBBTERBCHEREMEF
ZEBDLE -

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
The results of the sales and distribution  £E A48 & &5 84K S
of oil products for the year were as LEBIT
follows:
Profit of sales and distribution of oil $HE N 5 $H AR SR 2 0m T
products = 8,040
Gain on disposal of sales and & SHE R SHAK B FT S
distribution of oil products (note 40) (K15 40) - 376,277
- 384,317
The results of the sales and distribution €5 R84 E & 5 S5 SR H 2
of oil products for the year, *E(BEstAZEiER
which have been included in the FEMEEmRER)
consolidated statement of profit I N
or loss and other comprehensive
income, were as follows:
Revenue WA - 1,005,920
Cost of sales SHE AR = (967,216)
Gross profit EH - 38,704
Other income EMUA - 269
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HZH = (13,599)
Administrative expenses TTEE - (14,634)
Profit before taxation B B A V2 ) - 10,740
Taxation I8 - (2,700)

= 8,040

139



NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited ¥/ REBHR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR M
For the year ended 31 December 2013
E—E——FEf =+ —HIFE

12. Discontinued Operations (Continued)

Profit for the year from discontinued operations included
the following:

12. FIHEER (&)

ERIEFEBHRAENSFEATEE

2013 2012

Cost of inventories recognised as TRARZ ZIFEKA
expense

Depreciation of property, plant and VI - I REREITE
equipment

Staff salaries and bonus BT H® RIEAL

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

= 967,216

= 30

= 2,397

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Success Pillar
contributed HK$20,241,000 to the Group’s net operating
cash flows, HK$5,789,000 in respect of net cash generated
from investing activities and HK$15,349,000 in respect of
net cash used in financing activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of
Success Pillar at the date of disposal are disclosed in note
40.

HZE2012512 A31 HIEEE © Success
Pillar /2 78 & B 2 & 2 31 & R F 55 2K
20,241,000 7T ~ B EEFAS IR F
5,789,000 T R B & E BN TR &5
15,349,000 7T °

Success Pilar REERHZ EEREE
FREERN K40 K E -
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13. Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2012:
10) directors were as follows:

13.

EEHe

EARASRER T OARI(2012 1 10A1) EEE
AZBEIT -

Shum Chiu Cheung Chan

Shum Chun, Cen Sing Chung, Wang Kwan Hung,  Yuk Wai, Xu

SiuHung  Lawrence Ziniu  Raymond Jian  Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe

£ 7 B I ¢ L T

HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

T FET TET TET FET FET  FET  TET  TET TP
Fees o - - - - - - 130 100 100 3%0
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other beneffs £ RE T 3,000 300 1,300 1,550 1,384 803 - - - 8,337
Contrbutons to retrement VIR

benefits schemes 1 1 1 15 15 15 - - - 90

Totel emoluments Miag 301 85 135 155 139 818 130 100 0 87

Shum
Shum Chun,

SuHung  Lawrence Ziiy
I i

Chiu

Sing Chung,
Raymond
A8

Cheung Chan
i KwanHung, — YukWai,
Xikan Anthony  Benedict
i Riig

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T HEr T TET R FEr HEr TR AT TR FET
Fees s = - - - - - - 130 100 100 330
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other FERAMRH
benefits 3,000 300 1,300 1,590 1,286 803 265 - - - 8,904
Controutions to refiement  RAVEREEIES:
bengfits schemes 14 1 14 14 14 14 B - - - 89
Total emoluments JiEEet] 3014 314 1,314 1,564 1,300 817 210 130 100 100 8,923

Note: Cai Xikun was retired as director on 21 May 2012.

No director waived any emoluments during both years.

Htat -25851 R 201245 A21 ABHIES -

RAFALBEESHETAME -
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14.

15.

Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2012: four) are directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the above disclosures.
The emolument of the remaining one (2012: one) individual
is disclosed as follows:

14. EEM&

AEESUER=mFATEEA4M(2012 ¢
AND)ARRIES  HSBEHN Ll
BARA - HER142(2012 : 14 ) @ Bl
ALTZHEWEDT

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEIT FET

Salaries and allowances Fre MoERh 1,279 1,244
Contributions to retirement benefit RIREFIFT B R

schemes 15 14

1,294 1,258

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
or the above individual as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Dividend

AEBEY EmAESFN LA ER AL
Me - (FRBFEEMARMAREEIR
ZBE > BIERRERM 2 FE -

15. B2

2013 2012

2012 final dividend recognised as
distribution during the year — HKS3.8
cents (2011 final dividend: HK2.3
cents) per share

2.37810)

FAEREDIKLZ 2012 F
(2011 FREE S ¢

HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TAET
56,369 30,035

Subsequent to 31 December 2013, the directors proposed
a final dividend of HK5.7 cents (2012: HK3.8 cents) per
share amounting to approximately HK$84,554,000 (2012:
HK$56,396,000) to be paid to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members
22 May 2014. This final dividend is subject to approval
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. On 13 March 2014, the number of shares issued
and fully paid is 1,483,398,216.

R2013F12A31H%&  EFE&E R
R2014F5 22 H /% RERZ Mz A
RRREIRERBIE - FRIKES.7
BAL(2012 : 3.8l )+ & HEIR B4
84,554,000 £ (2012 : 56,396,000 7%
TC) ° koK BRRR B 7B £ AR A FE T AR R
RERE L#ER - FRIEE - K2014
#3A13H ' BEETTRBREZRHEE
/£51,483,398,216 % °
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16. Earnings Per Share 16. BEREF
From continuing and discontinued operations BFERIEBERR
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share ARARZERERFEABGESRER
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the RESERFN T T BIETE -

following data:

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F&Er
Earnings a7
Earnings for the purposes of basic and  5+& &I EAR & #58 E R Fr
diluted earnings per share (profit for HAZBAM(EAREHEE A
the year attributable to the owners of  JE{5EAHF))
the Company) 783,308 810,934

2013 2012

Number of shares Bin&E
Weighted average number of ordinary T E B EARZF|PTERH

shares for the purpose of basic 2 EB T2

earnings per share 1,425,090,095 1,305,853,374
Effect of dilutive ordinary shares Aggralkrye

Share options B A 22,238,462 22,806,035

Weighted average number of ordinary 5T & &I E & F AR A
shares for the purposes of diluted 2 LB INE T
earnings per share 1,447,328,557 1,328,659,409
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16. Earnings Per Share (Continued) 16. BEREFR (&)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to the owners of the
company is based on the following data:

HHERE

ARRZ EREREEABSEEES
T 45 R AR R B ) T T 31 B
Wi

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Earnings figures are calculated as BN eBEFENT :
follow:

Profit for the year attributable to the ZA/NGIE PN SRy
owner of the Company 783,308 810,934
Less: Profit for the year from JB - FEREEBENRF
discontinued operations - (384,317)

Earnings for the purpose of basic FTEREXEBEERER

and diluted earnings per share from N 58 BN et A

continuing operations -

783,308 426,617

The denominators used are the same as the detailed above
for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

From discontinued operations

For year ended 31 December 2012, basic earnings per
share for the discontinued operations was HK$0.29 per
share and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued
operation was HK$0.29 per share, based on the profit for
the year from the discontinued operations of approximately
HK$384,317,000 and denominators details above for both
basic and diluted earnings per share.

BREANREERNAAN D R Eat
o

I T

HZEZ2012F12A31H Lt FE - RIE
FEHF A8 2 75 F s A1) 49 384,317,000 78
TR EMGRERAREERN 2D
H BBEXEBERELARF BTR
02987 ' MIEFHEXEBTREERT
B 0.298 T ©



Annual Report 2013 =—Z—=FF#f

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
E—E——FEf = —HIFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. % BBREME

Plant Gasand  Gaspumps  Furniture,
Construction Leasehold and oil plant and fixtures and Motor

inprogress  Buildings improvements  machinery and facilities  equipment  equipment vehicles  Oil vessels
RERiLE R RE
ERIE BF BRANREE AHERAG Rl RRRAR Ritfi RE il

HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET

0OST iE
At 1 January 2012 R2012E1 718 304,270 34,51 2,766 3,259 599,711 207,298 14,243 29,957 - 1,196,075
Acquired on acquisition REBE-FHBAR

of a subsidiary note 38) Fiiss) - - - - 71,286 196,404 1474 = = 269,164
Additions hE 144,722 - 333 - 70,306 9,302 1,344 5,389 - 231,395
Tranger 83 6751) - 3459 - 200 - - - - -
Disposals and write-off HE Rt - - - - - (170) (621) (337) = (1,728)
Exchange realignment [ 418 ) 12 ] 669 655 5 12 = 1,764
At 31 December 2012 R2012% 12431 R 443,659 34,565 6,570 3,258 744,263 412,889 16,445 35,021 - 1,696,670
Additions HE 153,371 - 1,889 - 135 3,434 1,266 5,951 21,090 187,136
Transfer &z (250,143) - 4,494 - 245,285 - 364 - - -
Disposals and write-off HERKE - - - - (1.918) (9,589) (123) (044) - (19,168)
Exchange realignment ELA% 11,704 1,082 121 102 20,122 12,607 461 972 - 41
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12 431 R 358,501 35,647 13,074 3,360 1,001,887 49,347 17,813 41,000 21090 1,911,809
DEPRECIATION AND HERAE

[MPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2012 Ro012%1 A 1H - 12,394 2,544 462 126,227 89,928 9,931 12,805 - 254,291
Provided for the year FREE - 2,953 340 161 34,808 35,917 1,338 5,126 - 80,643
Eiminated on disposals R E Riisaes

and write-off it - - - - - (339) (49%3) (333) - (1,164)
Exchange realgnment EHAE - 8 - - 65 103 2 12 - 190
At 31 December 2012 KO£ A31A B 2684 63 1610 1560 10778 17610 )
Provided for the year R - 2,946 388 164 32,943 28,336 1,91 5,212 896 72,856
Eiminated on disposals RE L%

and wite-of 4 - - - - %) i) (006) - (e
Exchange realignment % = 532 19 28 3,390 4,169 329 524 - 8,986
A 31 December 2013 RO13E 1231 - B0 19508 0150 12067 22440 06 40385
GARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2013 Ro013E12A31H 358,591 16,814 9,783 2,550 806,825 269,188 5,446 18,560 20,194 1,507,951

At 31 December 2012 R2012%12 4318 443,659 19,210 3,686 2,635 583,163 287,219 5,667 17,411 - 1362710
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except

for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum.

Buildings Over the term of the lease
Leasehold 20% to 33"/,%
improvements

Plant and machinery 4% to 33'/,%
Gas and oil plant and Over the shorter of the lease
facilities term of coast use right and
land use right, or 25 years

Gas pumps and 10% to 33'/,%
equipment

Furniture, fixtures and 15% to 16%/,%
equipment

Motor vehicles 16°/:% to 33"/,%

Oil vessels 3% to 11%

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the PRC,
and are held on land under medium term leases.

The gas and oil plant under construction are situated
outside Hong Kong, in the PRC, and are held under
medium term leases.

LPG bottles with carrying values of approximately
HK$4,657,000 (2012: HK$5,743,000) included in gas
pumps and equipment are leased to customers for
short term to generate rental income. The rental income
generated was approximately HK$39,212,000 (2012:
HK$25,917,000) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Oil vessels with carrying value of approximately
HK$20,194,000 (2012: nil) are leased to an associate to
generate rental income. The rental income generated was
approximately HK$3,400,000 (2012: nil) for the year ended
31 December 2013.

17.

Y - BaR R EROW ()

bt #ERREBEB(EETRE
BRON) - THE TN ONFRABAREIE

BF LA 44 5P
HEMERE 20% % 33'/,%
28 K 54 4% % 33'/,%
RENBEREZE EERFEAERL
HfsE FAREFR A F
HAsk 25 FHA 2 8¢
RE
REREZAE 10% £ 33"/,%
Rl - HE 15% &= 16°/,%
P&
RE 16%/,% & 33'/,%
A 3% Z=11%

BFIMURFBE(FRBRI) - A IAPH
BT EFA -

fE RSB B Ty S b B (BB 550) -
AR AR 1

ATARRE RZEPREMEEL 4,657,000
7 7T (2012 : 5,743,000 7T ) 2 BAL R
WIOARBEABTFERS  UEELHS
WA - REIZ2013F 12 A31 HIEEE
FrEE A 2 e WA A 39,212,000 7T
(2012 : 25,917,000 7T ) °

R ™ 1B 920,194,000 7T(2012 : £ )
ZHAMBHET FXBEQRNUNELER
LW A - B ZE2013F12 8318 1IE 5
BEEEZHEEKALAS,400,0007%8 T
(2012 : &) o
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18. Land Use Rights 18. T ithfE g
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

The Group’s land use rights comprise: A% B 7 + b FA#E

B

Land use rights outside Hong Kong, R (FBHEIN) -

in the PRC under medium term W AR EARA XS 2

leases - b5 AR 257,080 240,813
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EE2FHREMDT
Non-current asset FERBEE 246,759 231,298
Current asset mBNEE 10,321 9,515

257,080 240,813

The Group acquired a leasehold land in Zhuhai (the AEBREAFWE—RUNKEZHE
“Land”) in previous years. The size of the Land is 15,750 T ([FZ L)) - Z L HEFEA 15,750
square meters. The Group is developing half of the Land FEHK e REBIEBRRZ I —F A
to construct a property for owner-occupied purpose and EE-TAEFERAYME BT —FAIE
the remaining half for properties for sales. The detail of the RIERFEVME - FEERDMEZFF
properties under development for sales is disclosed in note IERAMIFE S0 HFE ©

30.
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19. Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast 19. BERMHEERER
AEBZBFRNHEERIESRE

2013 2012

The Group’s prepaid lease payments for coast comprise:

HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FETL

Coast outside Hong Kong, in the PRC AR E (FHEIBIN) -
under medium term leases WAL E 28 10,275 10,809

Analysed for reporting purposes as: BE2ME DT

Non-current asset EMBEE 9,403 9,963
Current asset MENEE 872 846
10,275 10,809

The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the rights
to use coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to 28 years,

starting from 1 January 1999.

T F20FE28%F -

BEENHEERADNERKEZBFE
FAtE - B119994F 1 A1 ARt - HEH

20. Goodwill 20. W&
HK$'000
T
COST BE
At 1 January 2012 ®20124F1 818 96,429
Impairment loss recognised BERREERE (10,000)
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 38) Wi —RW B R R FTELE(H7E38) 202,509
Exchange realignment b H B 670
At 31 December 2012 R20124F 12 A31 H 289,608
Exchange realignment S 6,452
At 31 December 2013 # 2013412 A 31 B 296,060
CARRYING VALUES R (B
At 31 December 2013 R20134F 12 A31 H 296,060
At 31 December 2012 R2012F 12 A31 H 289,608
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20.

Goodwill (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
acquired a new subsidiary and the goodwill arising on the
acquisition amounted to approximately HK$202,509,000.
The details are set out in note 38. This goodwill is assigned
to a separate CGU.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to ten (2012: ten) individual
CGUs in the sales and distribution of LPG segment.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering 5-year period,
and discount rate of 10% (2012: 12%). The cash flows
for the financial budgets are using a steady growth rate
ranging from 0% to 6% (2012: 4% to 8%) for a 5 year
period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year period are
extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations related to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included budget
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
unit’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there is no
impairment on goodwill. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the management of the Group determined that there
was an impairment of HK$10,000,000 for the goodwill of
three CGUs (“Impaired CGUs”). There was no impairment
of the other CGUs containing goodwill. Due to keen market
competition in the locations of the Impaired CGUs, the
revenue of the Impaired CGUs in year 2012 was behind
management’s expectation, the management revised its
cash flow projections of the Impaired CGUs with the key
assumptions set out above and recognised an impairment
of HK$10,000,000 accordingly.

20.

[

g

i

,
(7

HE2012F12A31BILFE - K5 E
WEFHB AR MKBAEEZEE
#9/5202,509,000 78 7T ° =518 & A &E
38 - BENHEEFEAIRSEEEN -

MEENRME  EXFEZEER
PEEZHERDHEBILRDEZ10E
(2012 : 10 @A) ERIFR SEE SN °

NEBRSELBU AN OS R HE

REEZHEAEERMADT
EReEAE uZ—MﬁZ@i%EJHE?F
ﬁﬁﬁf@@aﬂi}% c ZAEERAE

@FE%EZ5¢%W%%“*$ZE
EREFEBRITIRE10%(2012 : 12%)
TE - MBEERBESRENSEH
ZEEEREEN F0%E6% (2012 :
A% E8%)HH - L5 FHRZEESHRE
AR R - BRAGTRSRAS
REFEREBEMEEZZEMEZBRE

BEEHEHERTENE - ZATERIEE
U BEEBENEREBEF ZHIBRE
e e

HZE2013F 12 A31 HILEE - WER
LR E - B 20126124318 &
SEEEEETCIMREEEEM TR
10,000,000 T2 B RE ([ ERER
CEABMN])  HEMWBEREZREE
EBUTELRRE - BRERERE
EEXBMAEMZTHERFHZ  BER
BEESELBMRN2012F 2 W AEKR
EEEEN WEEECEIIERER
CEABNZERESREEE EXTER
R XS - 3 SR 10,000,000
BILZRE °
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21. Other Intangible Assets 21. HtiEEEE
Distribution Business Leasing
network license agreements
SRR Exnm HERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
COST 5% 3
At 1 January 2012 ®2012%F1A1H 2,775 8,000 14,994 25,769
Acquired on acquisition of a PWE—RHE LA
subsidiary (note 38) FTis(#7#38) 355,038 20,894 — 375,932
Exchange adjustments PE I 72 1,218 71 ©) 1,286
At 31 December 2012 M2012F 12 431 H 359,031 28,965 14,991 402,987
Exchange adjustments PE 2 11,242 798 470 12,510
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 12 431 H 370,273 29,763 15,461 415,497
150 AMORTISATION AND e R R B
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1 H1H 988 3,873 11,979 16,840
Charge for the year FRZH 21,974 2,422 2,627 27,023
Exchange adjustments PE 5 A 75 6 7 88
At 31 December 2012 K2012F 12 A31 H 23,0387 6,301 14,613 43,951
Charge for the year FREH 24,355 2,720 383 27,458
Exchange adjustments S 1,146 162 465 1,773
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 A31 H 48,538 9,183 15,461 73,182
CARRYING VALUES RE{E
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 12 A31 H 321,735 20,580 = 342,315
At 31 December 2012 K2012F 12 A31 H 335,994 22,664 378 359,036
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21.

Other Intangible Assets (Continued)

The distribution network, the business license and the
leasing agreements were acquired from third parties in
business combinations.

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following periods:

Distribution network
Business license
Leasing agreements

10 to 15 years
5 to 15 years
5to 10 years

During the year ended of 31 December 2012, the other
intangible assets acquired on the acquisition of a new
subsidiary amounted to approximately HK$375,932,000.
The details of acquisition of subsidiary are disclosed in note
38.

For the purposes of impairment testing, other intangible
assets set out above have been allocated to four (2012:
four) individual CGUs in the sales and distribution of LPG
segment. The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering 5-year period,
and discount rate of 10% (2012: 12%). The cash flows
for the financial budgets are using a steady growth rate
ranging from 1% to 4% (2012: 4% to 5%) for a 5 year
period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year period are
extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations related to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included budget
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
unit’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development.

21.

Hth\izEE (=)

DIHMAE  EEMREEERREIER

BahRE=TEA -

el

LBV EEAGRAIERFH - &
B AENEREEIAT ARSI

7 AR 102154
EEHR 5E 154
HE = 5Z& 104

REZE2012F 12 A31HILFE @ Wi
B ARMES T EMBEREENA
375,932,000,8 7T ° WK B A 7 2 &
SR TE 38 R ©

FBEARME - EXFE 2 EMER
BEEHDEZHERDHERERDE
41E(2012 : 41&) @ B3R & E £ BEAL ©
&t&*fﬁﬁﬁiﬁfiZTuﬁzﬁégﬁmwﬁ
FREEBEFEEAMETE - ZATEEAKB
EEEE%EEZ5¢HJ§E7W‘%E”’*EPZ
R = TE R X3 IR E10% (2012 :
12%)sTE - BBEBER2REESRE
LEFHBEERENTF1%E4%
(2012 : 4% = 5% ) HElEf - IL 5 FHITE 2
REREASTHRE AL - BEMGETIE
i/m)\///w EE)EHF{EL'I' fZﬁfﬂEE
EMRBVEREBEEHEREFE -zt
EREBENZBAEEERERERZ
MHERMIELD -
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22. Interests in Associates 22. BiELTFESG
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Cost of interests in associates o WISl DN
Unlisted LT 294,044 231,722
Share of post-acquisition profits and DR EEE = A &
other comprehensive income H 2w des 12,283 —
306,327 231,722
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had MR2013F X 2012F 12 A31 H » N&EE
interests in the following significant associates: LA EBE R R R AR
Country of  Principal Proportion of nominal value
Name of Form of incorporation/ place of Class of of issued capital held Principal
entity entity registration  operation shares held by the Group activity
152 e,/ FEMFHERA

K2zl EREs BEEX FREENE FARROERN REEELH FRED
2013 2012

Ego Time (Note a) Incorporated BV Hong Kong  Ordinary 49 49 Investment holding
Ego Time (#ista) Bifimy  EBERS  BE Rk REER
Sinopec NewOcean Energy  Incorporated  PRC PRC Registered 49 - Sales and distribution
Company Limited By # i capital of energy
(“Sinopec NewOcean”) AfER products
(Note b) HERDHERER
PR ERERERAR

(Trafesis])(Hits)
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22. BEATRE S

Notes: Bt

22. Interests in Associates (Continued)

%ﬁ}’éﬁuu}ﬁiﬁlﬂ A RFEE
A 7 B Ego TlmeZ%ﬁﬁ

]
Al

(a) NewOcean Oil Products Company Limited and NewOcean (@)
Petroleum Company Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries

D)EEL

of Ego Time (“Ego Time and its subsidiaries”).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
setup Ego Time and its subsidiaries for expanding business
operation in the segment of sales and distribution of oil
products in Hong Kong.

Ego Time was a subsidiary of the Company in which 51%
were held by Success Pillar, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and 49% were held by another
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Success
Pillar was an indirect subsidiary of the Company and the
shares of which were held as to 65% by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and as to 35% by NCC. After the
Disposal on 24 December 2012 as set out in note 12, the
effective interest in Ego Time reduced from 82.15% to 49%
and the Group discontinued this operation. The details of the
profit and loss are set out in note 12. The fair value of the
investment retained in Ego Time at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under interests in associates.
The cost of interests in associates included goodwill and
intangible asset of approximately HK$142,936,000 and
HK$83,764,000 respectively. The intangible asset represents
the customers relationship for the business of sales and
distribution of oil products which will be amortised for 12
years based on the expected useful life.

On 10 April 2013, NewOcean Baifuyang Investment
Company Limited (“NBIC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company incorporated in the PRC, entered into an
agreement with China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
(“Sinopec”) to establish a joint venture company. On 1
September 2013, the joint venture company, Sinopec
NewOcean was established. Sinopec NewOcean had a
registered capital of RMB100,000,000, of which 51% is
owned by Sinopec and 49% is owned by NBIC. The principal
business of Sinopec NewOcean includes: (i) motor vehicle
refueling in Guangzhou for LPG vehicles; (iij motor vehicle
refueling in Guangzhou for liquefied natural gas (“LNG”)
vehicles, which will be added in stages to the business;
(i) sales of non-petrol chemical consumer item with sales
support from Sinopec’s chain of petrol filling stations; (iv)
sales and distribution of bonded oil products for marine
bunkering; and (v) sales and distribution of bottled LPG.

On 17 October 2013, Sinopec NewOcean entered into
a subcontracting agreement with NBIC (“Subcontracting
Agreement”) to subcontract from NBIC all the 17 LPG
refuelling stations in Guangzhou currently owned and operated
by the subsidiary of NBIC, Lianxin Energy Development
Company Limited (“Lianxin Energy”). Under the terms of
the Subcontracting Agreement, the subcontracting period
of Lianxin Energy’s business will be 10 years commenced
from 1 November 2013 (“Subcontracting Period”) during
which Sinopec NewOcean will pay a subcontracting fee of
RMB10,000,000 to NBIC each year and the Group is allowed
to charge Lianxin Energy for information and technical services
fee up to RMB48,300,000 each year. In addition, as set out
in the Subcontracting Agreement, the Group will be the sole
supplier of LPG to Sinopec NewOcean.

(ngo Time REMBRR]) ©

ﬁAéﬁzizo12¢12ﬂ31E¢¢ N
&£ @A Ego Time R EHEB A /(
iﬁﬁﬁff’éﬁﬁ’%& iﬁ/ﬁaﬁuuZ@

5 -

Ego TimeRAAXRRIZHB AR + &
51%BHARA 2 EEIEZEWNB QA
Success Pillar# A @ 49% HAR 75
—RXEEE2EWMNBARIIEAE ° Success
Pilar R AR ARz FHZEWEB AR H
BB ARAZEEK B2 A KRNCC
D RIFEE 65% K 35% ° Mzt 12 FrEk A
2012@12)%2452&«?&%%151&
M Ego Time 2 B BX# 22 B3 82.15% R
DEA%  MAEBEERIEEESIE
%a"% BREFBENWE12 - NEE
THIEE BHEgo TimeREB 2 IREAF
BRI 5?§QT$¥mIETﬁ&A il
ZHETHER - BE R REEK AR IE
EMEREFREED % 142,936,000
BT 83,764,000/ 8 7T - B EERD
HERDHEKMBEREB2EFPEA
% - EiSIRTERT Al A H S 12 4F -

R2013E4 A108 @ £ & & = it &
YZARNR2EMBRARFEEEF
EEBRAR([AEEFREEFH

BREIRHAERARTHRELDET
Sk AL A E R R] 0 R20134F
9A1H ' A8 RFALITEEK
VoA TEBZAMERAABARE
100,000,0007T + HE #H51%H +F A1t
HE - MAO%HEBEEFREHEG - &
BEFBZEBEKBE : ((\REMNA
WAL R ABEFEITAEIMNER 5 ()R EIM
BRIERAZ(RIERAR]) REE
TAENR  ZEBBIEEMNAZE
R (i) FEP A Z S I h Uk 2 8
EXHEHT HEFAHLLIEER
(iv) $5 8 o 888 E IR ERB AR - &
(V) SHE RS HEIRERILR -

MR2013FE10 8178 F A 1L # /&
EAEFERETVABHE(EBH
=1 Lxmﬁsa;ihﬁﬁ@ﬁa;ih
éZMﬂ% B RERER AR A
([t % ﬁJ)IﬁHﬂzﬁ*ﬁ&m# mAF
mz 517 A&Mb'ﬁbu'ﬁzﬁ B &
B R 2GR BT IR A 2 K
@ﬁﬁ&ﬁ#%ﬂazmsiﬂﬂﬁlfuﬂ%
H10F([EBHE ] R A1k
FEBRAEEFRESEIMARE
10,000,000 T Z A& B & ﬁ’ﬁwilT
& F R BT AR 7S & 4 (R0 B 3T A2 IR R
HX?%AE?!%AL&SOO,OOOE lit@l\'
A B E  NEBERK AR
BEEAERERZE—{HER -
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22,

Interests in Associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information of associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of

the Group’s associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance

with HKFRSs. All of these associates are accounted for

using the equity method in these consolidated financial

statements.

22. RMELRERZ)

BEQRZMEETHEER

AEBEBERAR LMBERBZER
TX - T BERBBRHIREBEEEY
Es SRkl vl NI by e Ea
SIRZ &8 - FIALEHERTE RS
B AR FHR A M RRAR -

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET T
Ego Time Ego Time

Current assets MENVEE 477,786 203,117
Non-current assets IEMBEE 157,133 172,520
Current liabilities nBEE (433,935) (194,442)
Revenue WA 2,633,194 =

Profit and total comprehensive AFEEaF EER
income for the year W e 4258 19,790 =
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22. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information of associates
(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial

22.

BEARER &)
BEAFZMERHEBE(E)
LB E MBI R BN AR A M HmR P

MRZBERNRERREEHERN
T -

statements:
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#EiT FET
Net assets of Ego Time Ego Time 2 BE #1E 200,984 181,195
Proportion of the Group’s REEBE P Ego Time 2
ownership interest in Ego Time AR 98,482 88,786
Goodwill Bl 142,936 142,936
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEEMR Ego Time Z
interest in Ego Time R REE 241,418 231,722
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
F&iT FEIT
Sinopec NewOcean AL
Current assets MENBE 180,242 =
Non-current assets JERBNE E 75 -
Current liabilities mEBE (47,850) —
Revenue WA 424,000 —
Profit and total comprehensive RELHMNREE
income for the year Wz 4a%5a 5,277 4
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22. Interests in Associates (Continued) 22, BiELREEZ)
Summarised financial information of associates BEARZMBEIEHEE(Z)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB ERBE BN A IS IRE T
information to the carrying amount of the interest in TRzBE A EaREEBE SRR
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial D
statements:
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Net assets of Sinopec NewOcean AR EEFE 132,467 —
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBMEFRALINEZ
interest in Sinopec NewOcean VG ERE S L 64,909 -
Carrying amount of the Group’s REERF AT
interest in Sinopec NewOcean E=REE 64,909 —

23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

23. —REELEER

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Cost of unlisted investment R—REEREZ
in a joint venture FEETIRERAR 13,073 13,073
Share of post-acquisition profits and AEUEEE = A
other comprehensive income RHE M2 RS (1,180) (2,653)
11,893 10,420
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23. Interest in a Joint Venture (Continued) 23. —RSERERER &)
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had interest R2013F K2012F 12 A31H » &N &
in the following joint venture: EEA TG S& g R

Proportion of

Form of Principal Fully paid nominal value of registered
business Country of  place of up registered capital held Nature of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation capital by the Group business
EER 3000 IEEX SRR F*RARAL
i E1 HER E 3 Mo -t BERESEELA £ 1,43
2013 2012
BMTREHEIERAA  Incorporated  PRC PRC RMB2,250,000 49% 49%  Sales and distribution
(“1&31") (Note) of LPG
ENTEFARERAR  EBaftRu  E i AR 2,250,000 HERDHRILR
(T30 1) (Hit)

Note: The Group’s entitlement to share in the profits of its joint Bet REB AR A SR M TR A
venture is in proportion to its ownership interest after the TEE IR K 2 AR B & B P %
subcontracting period mentioned in the following paragraph. ERZEARESLIIGE -
Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qingxin Bai BERARBIZZ2ENBAREN %A
Fu Yang Petrol Chemical Company Limited (“BFY”), a wholly ExABREIBERAR(TEEF] R
owned subsidiary of the Company, and the joint venture Bz AEBHR2006F 11 A3HE]
partner of &% on 3 November 2006, the operation of #&#7 N E - BHCEBENATES
has been subcontracted to BFY with a subcontracting period o OONHIERE 2014 F - BEISHE -

of 8 years until 2014.

e

s T )
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23. Interest in a Joint Venture (Continued) 23. —RSERERER~E)
The summarised financial information in respect of the AEBUEGZESTEARZAEE D ERE
Group’s interest in a joint venture which is accounted for mABERBMESHINOT o TRHHEE
using the equity method is set out below. The summarised MR EAREEEUBREEANRR
financial information below represents amounts shown BEMEVBRERAIIRZEEE -

in the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Current assets MENEE 4,162 3,155

Non-current assets EMBIEE 5,073 5,350

Current liabilities mEBEE (30) (66)

158 Revenue L ON 39,342 41,504
Profit for the year F N Fl 1,127 1,219

Other comprehensive income for the year R HM 2 E WS 346 =

Total comprehensive income for the year & N2 &S 4E 5 1,473 1,219
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24,

25.

26.

Deposits Paid 24. Bffé
The amount represents the deposits paid for purchase of DREAMBAYE HERIKBLER
property, plant and equipment. B o
Inventories 25. F8®
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
LPG B 256,757 322,123
Oil products Pl 12,753 —
Electronic products BFEm 463,200 383,032
732,710 705,155
The cost of inventories charged to the consolidated FHNBHREIERREMEE WK
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 2 TFEER AL H13,217,938,00058 7T
income for the year amounted to approximately (2012 : 11,398,888,000/8 7T) °

HK$13,217,938,000 (2012: HK$11,398,888,000).

Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors, 26. BINE IR - BURIE - HME
Deposits and Prepayments KER - HERAMTRIE

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Trade debtors FEUE 5 BR X 2,164,625 1,709,600

Bills receivable FEW =S 211,621 359,537

2,376,246 2,069,137
As at 31 December 2013, there was no bills receivable M2013F 12 A31H W& [ R 1T
discounted with full resource to bank. As at 31 December AINEMEZHEREIEBKERE -1
2012, included in the Group’s bills receivable approximately 2012612 A31H ' BiEEASEH &
of HK$114,621,000 were discounted with full recourse to W ZE i AR 47114,621,000%8 7T B A1 R 1T
banks. The details of those discounted bills receivable are BRIR - RITUHEE 2 HERE - 25D

disclosed in note 27. BRIRE U E R 2 s B R M 27 ©

159



160

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited ¥/ REBHR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 AL YA 22
ra BTG R R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2013
R E =1 —HILFE
26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days. The
bills receivable are matured within the range of 30 days
to 180 days for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012. The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors
and bills receivables at the end of the reporting period
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated
the respective revenue recognition dates:

26. ERHIER - ERE - HtfE
BRR - ReERAFMKRR(E)

AEEBZFHEEHAOK #HZE
20134 K 201212 A31 B L EfE
WEEZEHAHNFI0REI80K °
R EHR 2 FEIE 5 BR5k & M = 1%
RO ER BRI AR B
H)Z5)T

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$°000

F#EiT FET

0 to 30 days 0E30K 1,155,625 1,387,388
31 to 60 days 31 E60K 467,009 306,538
61 to 90 days 61 Z= 90K 238,606 303,795
91 to 180 days 91 = 180K 509,110 67,842
Over 180 days HBiE 180K 5,896 3,574
2,376,246 2,069,137

Included in the Group’s trade debtors, debtors of
approximately HK$2,142,000 (2012: HK$6,300,000)
denominated in USD, which is not the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customers. Recoverability of the existing
customers is reviewed by the Group regularly. Included
in the Group’s trade debtors balance are receivables
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,273,529,000 (2012: HK$1,859,331,000), which are
neither past due nor impaired.

AEE 2 FEKE FERFRF + 492,142,000
7 70(2012 ¢ 6,300,000/8 7T ) AETTE
B ZWIEEEEE TR 2 INEER -

REBRENEH TP RIS L EEE
BEPZEEEER  UREEEER - AK
EEMEHREBREL 2EREN - B
EASEZESRUERS - AEED
2,273,529,000%7T.(2012 : 1,859,331,000
ABIT) 2 FEUNE 5 BRI S i R stRI A
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26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$102,717,000 (2012: HK$209,806,000) which are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The trade debtors
past due but not provided for were either subsequently
settled as at the date of this report or no historical default
of payments by the respective customers. The average age
of these receivables is 129 days (2012: 79 days). As at 31
December 2013 and 2012, the Group has no provision for
allowance for doubtful debts.

Ageing of trade debtors based on the invoice date
which are past due but not impaired

26.

FEM S SRR - RN - HfufE
BRR - BRERAFMKRIKR(E)

REE 2 EWE 5 RFGET - BREE
#9102,717,0007% (2012 : 209,806,000
BILIZERERRBKRELERAE A
B BAREEWREREBERE - K
SEVYEREENERZEREEE
oo ERHEIERIERE 2 B E 5 R
BEENRARERSE  EEXFA
0 B 45 R B o ZE IR 2 T
BR#5 & 129 K(2012 : 79K ) » 72013
FR2012F 12 A31H » KEBE W EHR
RERVEH B -

E B8 Kt (8.2 B 55 M ok 75 B R
AR Z e

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FEIT

61 to 90 days 61 90K 29,830 205,932
91 to 180 days 91 180k 67,005 300
Over 180 days HBi® 180K 5,882 3,574
Total AF 102,717 209,806

Included in other debtors, there are trade deposits paid
to suppliers of approximately HK$278,639,000 (2012:
HK$614,042,000) in relation to the purchase of LPG
and oil products which will be delivered within one year
commencing from the date of the signed purchase
contract.

Also, approximately HK$51,692,000 (2012: HK$115,059,000)
included in other debtors are interest receivables from
pledged bank deposits and bank deposits, those amounts will
be received monthly or when the pledged bank deposits are
released.

EMmEKRERERENHER
B 5 1% & #278,639,000 7 st (2012 :
614,042,000 7T) * A REERIER K
MEBREYBESHOBT —FAR
) e

gt E M EWER R T B ED
51,692,000/ JT(2012 : 115,059,000
BIL) CERBRITHEREIBITHERZ
FEMF B » %52 B IE A WER S iR
B E AR T 17 SR URER ©
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26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,

27.

Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Included in other debtors, there are loans receivable which
a subsidiary of the Company entered into loan agreements
with an independent third party to provide short term loans
of RMB216,000,000 (2012: RMB200,000,000) equivalent to
approximately HK$274,729,000 (2012: HK$246,655,000).
The loans borrowed by the independent third party are
used for developing a potential property project in Zhuhai
in the PRC. Based on the loan agreements, the loans are
entrusted by equity share of an unlisted company owned
by the independent third party in the PRC and bear floating
interest rate of People’s Bank of China plus 3% per annum
and are matured in December 2013. In July 2013, a
supplemental agreement was entered with the independent
third party in which the maturity date of the loans are
extended to December 2014 and the interest rate is fixed
at 5% per annum from July 2013 onward.

Transfers of Financial Assets

As at 31 December 2013, there were no bills receivable
transferred to banks with full recourse. The following were
the Group’s bills receivable as at 31 December 2012 that
were transferred to banks on a full recourse basis for cash
proceeds of HK$114,621,000. Based on the agreements
entered into among the Group, the customers issued the
bills receivable and the banks, the interest expenses arising
from discounting the bills receivable to the banks, would be
borne by the customers. However, the Group was still the
primary obligator in respect of the settlement of the cash
proceeds. If the bills receivable were not settled at maturity,
the banks have the right to request the Group to pay the
unsettled balance. As the Group had not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these receivables,
it continued to recognise the full carrying amount of the
receivables and had recognised the cash received on
the transfer as a secured borrowing (see note 34). These
financial assets were carried at amortised cost in the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

26.

27.

FEM S SRR - RN - HfufE
BRR - ReERAFMKRR(E)

AW AR KB IEEWESR - JThRAAR]
MEBAR B E=HsI SR
LA HE £ 58 B B 58 A R % 216,000,000 7T
(2012 = A R #200,000,0007C ) (48 % 7
#9274,729,0007% 7T(2012 : 246,655,000
BIL)) e BYE=HFE 2 ERTYRE
BRPAKEMZEBEMEER - BIE
ERWE BERIUABYE=ZABHEZ
FEISE LT AR 2 ERRMDIEER - I
BRREARBITZZEHFFESIN3%
55 BR20135F 12 A% HI - 42013
F7H BHEBIYFE=FFNETH
HocB BERZEHAKEEE2014
F128 - WH2013F7 A B UEE
FRRE% S o

BAMERE

MR2013FE 12 A31H » WEZXKE2HER
EEEZTIRITZEREE - LT AR
SBEN2012F12 A31 B2 MERE
EfMEETRITZENEE - UESHE
L A5 FRIE114,621,000/8 T ° BEAR
£E - BROBEKEEZ2EFE RRITH
I 2 Whek 0 [MISRTTRAIR E R E R 2 F
BRAXEHEEFEE - A - AEBD
BXNESMBREZEEZEHFA © M
FEU =N EIHARE I RIE(E - SRITHARE
ERAEBI N REEE R - ANRAE
EVEEEEZERKEREEZEXR
[R B R Bl o - EL e 4 A TR R SR R UK
HREE  YERRAEBRMWERZIR
SEABEMBITER(RIEI4) © %
EUBEERBHERANRAIEBRLRE N
R R TIER o

2013 2012

Carrying amount of bills receivable EWEE 2 REE
Carrying amount of BRAERZ REE

associated borrowings

HK$°000 HK$000
FET T
- 114,621

- (114,621)
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28.

29.

30.

Amounts Due from Associates

The amounts due from associates are in trade nature aged
within 90 days based on invoice date. A credit period of 30
days to 90 days is granted to associates. All balances are
neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting
period.

Properties Held for Sales

During the year ended 31 December 2012, a subsidiary of
the Company entered into a purchase agreement with an
independent third party and Dongguan Langgin Garden
Development Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Langgin”), a property
developer in Guangdong district. Pursuant to the purchase
agreement, the Group acquired the properties held for sales
at the consideration of RMB180,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$221,989,000) from the independent third
party, in which those properties are located in Dongguan.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
realised approximately HK$17,400,000 (2012: nil) through
sales. The remaining carrying amount of approximately
HK$211,541,000 is expected to be realised within twelve
month after the end of the reporting period.

Properties Under Development for Sales

28.

29.

PR BE AT R

EU B E RRRACEH M ERERR
HIFH B 2 BRI R 90 R AR o K& [ (A Bk
BRAKTIOREQRZEEHR - AT
BHESRIRERRGRaHIRE -

HRTEME

HE2012F12 A31 BILFE © AR 7
MEAREBYE=ZANERBEY
X¥ERFERETCEAZER AR
(REREDILKREWZH - BIE
FEHE AEEEUREBEARE
180,000,000 7t (48 % 1 #7221,989,000
BT EBBYE=HTWEZEEEY
¥ ZEMEHUNRES - H 22013
F12A31 8 AEBFBHEZRLD
17,400,000 J£(2012 : £ ) o 2 T BR
EE#211,541,0008 LB EA R &
BRI 1218 A REE -

30. FERRPYE

HK$’000
FET

COST 5% 3
At 1 January 2012 201241 H1H 185,867
Additions NG 2,227
Exchange adjustments & 5 A (34)
At 31 December 2012 m2012412 A31H 188,060
Additions NE 14,024
Exchange adjustments & 5 A 6,134
At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31H 208,218
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30.

31.

Properties Under Development for Sales
(Continued)

The Group is developing half of the Land into properties for
sales. The details of the Land are set out in note 18. All the
properties under development for sales are not expected
to be realised within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amount of properties under
development for sales is situated on land in the PRC under
medium term leases.

Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and
Cash

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The deposits
have been pledged to secure short-term bank loans, and
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged
bank deposits of approximately HK$1,666,000 (2012:
HK$368,829,000) carry at floating interest rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 0.83% (2012: 0.55% to 3.4%) per
annum and will be released upon settlement of the relevant
bank borrowings. The pledged bank deposits included
an amount of approximately HK$3,860,364,000 (2012:
HK$3,687,181,000) carried at fixed interest rates which
ranged from 0.35% to 4.7% (2012: 0.35% to 4.5%) per
annum and will be released upon settlement of the relevant
bank borrowings.

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 4.5% (2012: 0.01% to 2.3%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2013, the RMB pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$3,859,479,000 (2012:
HK$3,606,395,000) were pledged for the bank trust
receipts loans.

As at 31 December 2013, the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$5,175,982,000 (2012: HK$4,866,012,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
into other currencies. Included in the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank balances, are approximately
HK$27,028,000 (2012: HK$167,494,000) denominated
in USD and approximately HK$2,788,452,000 (2012:
HK$2,553,571,000) denominated in RMB, which is not the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.

30. FERRPMRZ)

31.

AEBEERZ I —F¥REEY
X o I HITHNME 18 FAAR
EERTYEEHHTIEERSHREK
12BARER - HFERRTVEZRE
BB Z 30 AR BBL RS -

BEFRITHFER  BITERRRASR

ZHRBREBTROEAAEERE
BETHREZERZER %5
GREERBIELECSHBRTERZIE
R B EERDEE- EXKME
7 17 3 #1,666,000/8 7T(2012 :
368,829,000 7T ) % )% &) F F| L 7
T0.01%E0.83% (2012 : 0.55%
E34%)FT B WHERBBRITHER
BEEBR  DEBRITERERE
B B #93,860,364,000/8 JT(2012 :
3,687,181,0007% 7T ) » 1% @ & F #) &
N F0.35%F4.7% (2012 : 0.35% &
4.5%)T B WENEBRITEREE
Ry AERR o

BRITEHRIENTF0.01% E4.5% (2012 :
0.01% £2.3%) 2 TEFFIRFE

R 2013512 A31 B » #93,859,479,000
#71(2012 : 3,606,395,00078 7T ) 2 AR
kB IFRITERE RRITE MR E
B o

N20135FE12 A31 H - BHEMBITHER
T ER1T 4588 K 3R £ #95,175,982,000 4 7T
(2012 : 4,866,012,0007870) A A REE
B WTAERERAHMEE K&
B BEARITTFARRBITESS - D
27,028,00078 7t(2012 : 167,494,000 %
JC)BAETLIE(E © 492,788,452,0007 T
(2012 : 2,553,571,00078 70 ) Bl LA A R #&
EE EXLRARBWIERBEEES
ZIREEH -
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32. Trade Creditors and Bills Payable 32. ENEAERREMRE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FEr
Trade creditors JERTE SRR 1,789,966 890,097
Bills payable R 383,179 2,368,345
2,173,145 3,258,442
The aged analysis of trade creditors and bills payable is as ERNEZERZRROMIZEEHEE
follows presented based on invoice date: AT
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
0 to 30 days 02 30K 881,477 765,094
31 to 60 days 31Z60K 796,791 613,039 165
61 to 90 days 61 £ 90K 154,561 471,646
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 180,928 1,408,470
Over 180 days HiB 180K 159,388 193
2,173,145 3,058,442
33. Amount Due to a Joint Venture 33. BEfIEELERER
The amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on THRAERR RERAREXREE -

demand.
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34. Borrowings 34. fBER
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&IT FET
Bank trust receipts loans IRITEBIEB R 1,147,367 1,519,815
Bank trust receipts loans and other RITEFTBUR B R R E M IRTT
bank loans (pledged with RMB bank B (AARBIRITFRIE
deposits) ) 4,432,760 3,588,551
Bank trust receipts loans and other RITE B E R R EMIRTT
bank loans (pledged with HK$/USD B (AT ETTRITER
bank deposits) TEEIR) 105,424 31,007
Other bank loans HAhRITIE X 949,385 953,933
6,634,936 6,093,306
Repayable within one year shown under REIBEHE FFRR—FR
current liabilities EE
Borrowings fully secured by pledged BEBRITE R HIERL
bank deposits BN 2,876,760 3,588,551
Borrowings partially secured by B IR RITIE R E D E R
pledged bank deposits B 1,661,424 31,007
Borrowings secured by other assets E B EEROER 192,166 228,987
Borrowings unsecured EERAIE T 1,352,309 2,058,250
6,082,659 5,906,795
Repayable over one year shown under  JERENBEE NI —F
non-current liabilities ‘EER
Borrowings unsecured — more than one E{ERHME R — BB —F
year, but not exceeding two years BERZ M F 318,727 158,041
Borrowings unsecured — more than two ZEEREE K — BBHE
years, but not exceeding five years BARZRAE 233,550 28,470
552,277 186,511

6,634,936 6,093,306
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34. BORROWINGS (Continued) 34. BRE)

Bank borrowings include approximately HK$2,779,279,000
(2012: HK$3,522,543,000) fixed-rate borrowings which are
due within one year. They carry average interest at 2.36%
(2012: 3.14%) per annum. The remaining bank borrowings
are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at 1 month
LIBOR plus certain basis points and HIBOR plus certain
basis points per annum ranging from 0.92% to 3.64%
(2012: 1.2% to 7.2%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2013, other bank loans of
approximately HK$192,166,000 (2012: HK$228,987,000)
is secured by the Group’s bills receivable and guaranteed
by the Company and its subsidiary. Included in total
borrowings of the Group, approximately HK$3,430,058,000
(31 December 2012: HK$2,628,414,000) is guaranteed by
the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2013, there was no bank loan related
to bills receivable will full recourse to the bank. As at
31 December 2012, included in the other bank loans,
approximately HK$114,621,000 bank loans which are
related to bills receivable with full recourse to the bank.
Details of those discounted bills receivable are disclosed
in note 27. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group arranged bills receivable with recourse in aggregated
amounts of approximately HK$1,234,766,000 to banks
as short-term financing which constituted non-cash
transaction.

1T & W 492,779,279,0005 T
(2012 : 3,522,543,0007 7T ) A F &
B R—FRNEH FHEFXE
2.36% (2012 : 3.14%) - & T 4R 17 &
REZEBER  FHEE—EABBER
TREFREME TEE REBBRITRZE
P EMETER - N T0.92% % 3.64%
(2012 : 1.2% & 7.2%) °

R2013F12 A31 H » HMIRTERLY
192,166,000 7£(2012 : 228,987,000 7
TO) AR B E W R EIR R - WEARD
AINENBARIER - AEEZERE
%8 #93,430,058,000 7 70 (2012 FF 12 A 31
H :2,628,414,000/87T) DEAR R K,/
SREMTB A FIER -

M2013F 12 A31 8 - j’ﬁﬂi“ﬁf‘%ﬁuﬁz%‘e
BEmMRTEEZEHEREZRITER - ¥
2012412 A31H - ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ% B

#7114,621,00078 ;T 2 IBITERCF KR
TTWﬁEEL%%ZEW%T)@) BRAZ

LAA BRI 2 A M e 27 HEE -
HZE2012F12A31BIEFE  A&EEH
ZHW A2 HERECERERES LD
1,234,766, ooo;‘aﬁﬁﬁﬁ EREHR
Z BRERERS
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34. BORROWINGS (Continued) 34. E®W(E)
The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies AEBEFRAEEEEERBINGEE
which are not the functional currencies of the relevant we o EHCEE o HAT

group entities are set out below:

RMB usD
AR® Xt
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FET
As at 31 December 2013 MR2013F 12 A31 H — 985,122
As at 31 December 2012 R2012F 12 A31 H 366,641 1,266,270
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. =&
Number
of shares Amount
EHneE &8
168
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEOC.1 BT TR
(2012: HK$0.1 each) (2012 : ®RO0.1%ET)
Authorised share capital: EERRA
At 1 January 2012, 31 December R2012F1H1H 20124
2012 and 2013 % 2013412 A31H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital: BBEITRBERAE
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December R2012F1 H1HK
2012 2012412 A 31 H 1,305,8583,374 130,586
Issued of shares pursuant to a RIEAC &S BTN
placement (Note a) (Htita) 166,500,000 16,650
Issued of shares pursuant to exercise  1RIE{ TR TTA(D
of share options (Note b) (HfaEb) 11,044,842 1,104

At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31H 1,483,398,216 148,340
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 22 April 2013, arrangements were made in accordance
with a placing and subscription agreement dated 17 April
2013 (the “Placing and Subscription Agreement”) for a
private placement to independent placees of 166,500,000
shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company held by Uniocean,
at a price of HK$4.68 per share representing a discount of
approximately 13.49% to the closing market price of the
Company’s shares on 17 April 2013.

Pursuant to the Placing and Subscription Agreement,
Uniocean subscribed for 166,500,000 new shares of
HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of HK$4.68 per
share on 29 April 2013. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$748,648,000 would be used as follows: (i) to upgrade
and expand the handling capacity of LPG facilities at the
Group’s LPG terminal in Zhuhai, Guangdong Province, the
PRC; (i) for funding of the set up of Sinopec NewOcean
as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 10
April 2013; (i) for the installation of LPG or LNG facilities
in certain gas stations owned by Sinopec; (iv) to build two
propylene tanks in Zhuhai Terminal to support the upgraded
sea terminal in Zhuhai, Guangdong Province, the PRC; (v) to
acquire LPG bottles in relation to the Company’s business in
Hong Kong and (vi) for general capital purposes. These new
shares were issued under the general mandate granted to
the directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 21 May 2013 and rank pari passu with other shares
in issue in all respects.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
issued and allotted a total of 11,044,842 shares of HK$0.10
each in the Company at exercise price of HK$0.625 each
to certain share options holders who exercised their share
options. These shares issued rank pari passu with other
shares issue in all respects.

MR2013FE4 228 2R BEBEH A
2013F4R17TH 2R & KRB &
((RERRBEHE DIEDZHE -
M) 98 3 & BL AR B i 4.68 78 T (8K
NARHDHR2013FE4817B 2 W™
B EL18.49%) 2 BRI AR E
166,500,000 & /8Bt A &k E &
0.10 BT Z AR BIIKD ©

BRI E RREHE - BB E R 2013
F4R208 & FR4.68%8 T2 B
2 8% 166,500,000 f% & I Tl E0.10 %5
TLZ ARG © TS sRIEFEL
748,648,000 i FAELA N A& -
(VAR RERANEERPEERE KT
MRICRBBE 2RI R R 2 EEE
775 (i) A AR A AR 201364 10 H
Rz NEME - BT AIEHE
REES : (\RPALEEEZE TN
RIEZEBERBBICRAREZN
(iv) FA 2k /8 75 o8 B 2 W 8 R 4% R T -
NS EPEEREHKEN 2B TR
B (VVRARARRBEZEBARER
{ERIB RV IE—RAESZA - L5
B 1R ThiRIE AR R FE 20134 5 A 21 B
BUOIZREAFAS IR TFTEEZ—
MR EMEIT YEMEHEEEM
BBEITRGZH RS -

HE2013F12A31BIEFE » AR
AIRITEEBE0.625/8 7T MBITHEE
HEEREZETERESEARTR
Bt B84 11,044,842 IR A E{E 0.10
BILZARNRRG - WEE BTG
EREFAEEMBEETRNEER

EHAL
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36.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Special
General Meeting of the Company held on 18 June
2003, the Company adopted an option scheme (“Option
Scheme”). The Option Scheme was expired on 17 June
2013. Pursuant to the terms of the Option Scheme, the
options granted prior to the expiration of the Option
Scheme are continued to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Option Scheme was to provide
incentives or rewards to participants including directors,
employees, suppliers and customers etc. Under the Option
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company, may at
their discretion grant options to participants to subscribe
for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme. The subscription price be a price
determined by the directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
offer for grant of options, which must be a trading day; (i)
the average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer for grant of
options; and (iiij the nominal value of a share. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue. Based on
the 1,305,853,374 shares in issue as at 31 December 2012
and 32,582,284 options outstanding under the Option
Scheme, the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Option
Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 130,585,337 shares.

36.

LI R ERZIHES
R MER

BIEARDRN2003FE6 F18H BT
BRFFASBR TBRFER
UNEIEZS R -9
2 1) - BB ER2013F6 A17
HEm - BIREIRE B 255K - RIE
RS E MR L 2 RS ER
R WA AR IR RS AR AT BT (E -

BERErEZENARNES  E8 - #
JERREFE2MEEREBREHER -
RIFERETE ARFEZSEIRIGB
)2 BE 1% 1 0] AR 55 BB IR A A 2 IS TR
BARQRKRMD 2 HBRE - RBEERE
EET - ETBER()RLE T ERE
ZBWEARSH)  BRNDEBIME
HRERABRZWHE () BEREE
FHEEREZHNAERXSA @ RHOEH
R ARERAFZFHETE: &
(il EE(AEREEAE) - RERE
A& 4 51 B R AN £ B (o] E fth BE AR A AT 2
BHZ BB EETEE TRITZ
ey SR TNESBEBEETRGZ
10% ° R 2012F 12 A 31 B Z B 817
% 7 1,305,853,374 A% K B B #5121 T
HARITIE 2 32,582,284 D B I ETE -
RIEER T 8 R EREME SR 2
B REIETE R TEITZRDE
- 5T 5H1B 130,585,337 % ©
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. LIRS ERZIHES (&)

(Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to a participant, when aggregated
with shares issued and issuable (including exercised and
outstanding options and the options cancelled) under any
option granted to the same participant under the Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme within any 12
month period, must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the option
for a certain period before exercising the option save as
determined by the board of directors of the Company and
provided in the offer of grant of option.

The exercise period should be any period fixed by the
board of directors of the Company upon grant of the option
but in any event the option period should not go beyond 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be made
within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee to the Company.

HaRE MR (=)

2 BRI R AT B ST () H A P A
ERT2EEZEMBERE(RED
TEERRITEZEREREFH I BK
B)ERCBBEITRA FRITZRNE
BafMtstER  RMEM12EARNEER2
HERER 2 BREMY R 2 RRBRNE
BETBEATREERTRNZ1% -

BRARREZEREMNIELR TER
BZEZTREIN  UEREARAR
RITEBRERN SR A BRE - RY
i o

TERARRAREETSN R LERE
e 2 M EE - REMMBERT -
BRESETEBERIELRTZEE
10614 o

AR AR MERE - BARKRE B
HEF 28 KA AR BB T Al R E R
1.00/8 7T °
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Option Scheme

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s
share options granted under the Option Scheme held by
employees (including directors) and movements in such
holdings during the two years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012:

Both 2013 and 2012

36.

LIl B BRZIHES (&)

MRAR iRt

TRBENEZE2013F K% 2012412 A
JTAEMEFERE(RREES)FARN
NERIBEERETERE 2 BRERE
BB Rz B2 -

2013 F R 20124

Number of

share options
outstanding at Number of
1 January 2012 share options
and Exercised outstanding at
Exercisable Exercise 31 December during 31 December
Option type Date of grant Vesting period period price 2012 the year 2013

R2012%F
172 1A18R R2013%
20125 12A31H 128318
RETHELZ RETHELZ
BREEN RHAY kEnE f BRERA

HK$
V73
2006A 15 May 2006 16 May 2006 to 17 June 2006 to 0.625 14,910,637 - 14,910,537
16 June 2006 31 December 2015
006F5A15H 20068516  200646A17A%
200646 A 168 20155124318
20068 16 June 2006 - 17 June 2006 to 0.625 17,671,747 (11,044,842) 6,626,905
31 December 2015
2006664160 — 200656 A17HZ
015512318

32,582,284 (11,044,842 21,537,442

>

B L |

SEOESARE TN
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 36. LR BERZHEZS(E)
(Continued)
Option Scheme (Continued) MEEgEBI(2&)
Both 2013 and 2012 (Continued) 20134 R 20125 (&
Details of the share options held by the directors included RSB ESHAECEREFBR
in the above table are as follows: IS &

Outstanding at
1 January 2012

and Outstanding at
31 December 2012 Exercised during the year 31 December 2013
®2012F1A1BR #2013 12A 31H
2012 12 A 31 HRAKT{E FHETHE RERITE
22,641,926 (11,044,842) 11,597,084
There was no share option granted for the year ended 31 B E2013F ;k2012F12H31H It F
December 2013 and 2012. J& 0 MR R AR o
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37. DEFERRED TAXATION 37. BERE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) FARBAZERTE  A5EEER
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during EREEHBaE(EE) RIBEZE N
the current and prior year: o
Accelerated Other
tax intangible
depreciation assets
mERTIRE Hth R & E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T S T T
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1 A1 H 19,157 (1,781) 2,304 19,680
Acquisition of a subsidiary g ) E/NC]
(note 38) (K17#38) 40,233 — 93,983 134,216
(Credit) charge to profit/loss ~ RFEAREZ
for the year ONE]S (3,609) 476 (6,756) (9,889)
Exchange adjustments b 5 AR (77) 1 426 350
174 At 31 December 2012 RK20129F 12 A31H 55,704 (1,304) 89,957 144,357
Charge (credit) to profit/loss ~ REREZE
for the year R (ABR) 1,168 7) (7,186) (6,025)
Exchange adjustments PE W A #E 1,746 (47) 2,642 4,341
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 H31H 58,618 (1,358) 85,413 142,673
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances AT AEEHKI2HAE 2 BEERG &S
for financial reporting purposes: SHT
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET TFET
Deferred tax assets TEIEFR TS & B 1,358 1,304
Deferred tax liabilities BRERBRE (144,031) (145,661)

(142,673) (144,357)
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37. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 37. BERKE#)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated RERBAKR A& B G T HEH
unused tax losses of approximately HK$248,401,000 ARGz ABBAFEBEBEBERELY A

(2012: HK$358,857,000) available for offset against future
profits. Deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$5,432,000 (2012: HK$5,216,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
remaining balances of approximately HK$242,969,000
(2012: HK$353,641,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$13,014,000 (2012: HK$32,602,000)
will be expired before year 2016 (2012: year 2015). Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$81,096,000 (2012: HK$88,988,000) in respect of
accelerated accounting depreciation. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$465,517,000 (31 December 2012:
HK$418,248,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

248,401,000 7£(2012 : 358,857,000
B IT) o B Bt 495,432,000 7£(2012 :
5,216,000 78 70 ) FERIE LR 7S B EE © |H
R B1% 2B TSRS ATE R - S
£ 4 8 49242,969,000 5 7T(2012 :
353,641,000 7T ) IERIEERIEEE ©
#913,014,000 7% 7t(2012 : 32,602,000
BIL) 2 RFERBIIEE 1B 15 102016 F
(2012 : 20154 ) g HAjm o E b /&5 18 A
Al EEPR HA A o

EWMBR BEEMRSFITEFR - K
%@ﬁ—ﬁlﬁﬂaHq%%ﬁ%’ﬂ81,096,000/%

J£(2012 : 88,988,000 7T ) o A A
AR A F B MB LR =3 AR AR

3R 2 ERBUE M Z ATREME TR » 8
ERZEUHANER ZREDELCHE

BIEFRREMERE - 200841 H1H
2 AR BB B A B BT BN 2 5k I i = R
Z IR BRI TEINR o AEBE DL IE
FATRBEMB AR B AR 2 B
Z¥E465,517,0007% 78 (2012 4F 12 A 31
H : 418,248,000 0) Rir & BT 53k &
WrHRIBEEF GG - L ARAEE
RGBS E TR =R B mMBEER
ZER RN G A A] B R A -
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38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

In January 2012, the Group exercised the Call Option
to acquire 95% equity interest in Lianxin Energy from an
independent third party ZREMEBEMBERAR (‘R
7%”). The acquisition was completed on 22 January 2012
(“Acquisition Date”). This acquisition has been accounted
for using the acquisition method of accounting. The initial
exercise price of the call option of RMB580,000,000
(equivalent to HK$712,884,000) was adjusted by the
outstanding amount due to shareholder and the shortfall
in the agreed carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB310,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$381,009,000) and RMB11,937,000 (equivalent to
HK$14,672,000) respectively. After taken into account
of those adjustments, the total exercise price for the
acquisition was approximately RMB258,063,000 (equivalent
to HK$317,203,000) and the settlement of amount due to
a former shareholder was approximately RMB310,000,000
(equivalent to HK$381,009,000). The primary reason
for the acquisition of Lianxin Energy is to expand a new
business segment of retail operation business of LPG gas
stations in Guangdong district. The amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK$202,509,000.

#BRR

Total consideration

Call Option (Note a)

Fair value of previously held 5% equity interests
(Note b) b)

Exercise price for acquisition of 95% equity
interest (Note c)

38.

REBHR(MiZEa)
RIBEFERE 5% RIE 2 N FE(H 7

KRB LR

R2012F1 A AEER—BILE=F
HEMHEBMIEER AR ([EBME])
TTERIEEARE - LABE ABEFTAE R 95% 2
fefE o BB E 7201241 A 22H
([WEER SEK - LIBEHEE KB ST
EANR c REHBECEVNTEEAAR
# 580,000,000 7T (48 % 74 712,884,000
BL)  ERMEMNBBREZREAE LD
¥ MERIHzZHEREEZTRE
HHAE BEEEESIOAARE
310,000,000 (48 % 7 381,009,000
Bt ) & A R 11,037,000 (1 &
M 14,672,000/ L ) > £ & B 7 &
AR WEZBTEEHNAEARE
258,063,000 7t (#8 5 74 317,203,000 /8
) REERNBRRERZREBELOAEAR
310,000,000 7T (#8 % 74 381,009,000
BL) c WEHMFTERZEERARR
BARICREEEBEERE ZRER
MEER - ARBMELEZRENA
202,509,000 7T °

HK$’000
FET

36,909

27,409

U BE 95% A 2 1118 (E
(Hitce)

317,203

381,521
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38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 38. WHEMBLATE (&)

Notes: Biat -

(@) HL#@MFE issued a Call Option to a wholly owned subsidiary, (@) M2010F 128238 B B M &
NBIC to acquire 95% of the registered capital of Lianxin MAEE -—FR2ENBARIEEF
Energy on 23 December 2010, which is amounted to AR B AR
RMB37,061,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$45,524,000 TRBBZEMER REBLHAAR
as at Acquisition Date). The exercise period of the Call # 37,061,000 7t (48 & M W & A &
Option was from 23 December 2011 to 22 January 45,524,000 7T ) © REEEE 21T
2012. The fair value of the Call Option on the date of 2011612 A28 HE20124F 1 A 22
exercise was RMB30,030,317 (equivalent to approximately He- RTTEERBHEZLAFE
HK$36,909,000). The change in fair value of approximately A A R %30,030,317 T(# & R 4
HK$8,615,000 was charged to profit and loss for the year 36,909,000 7T ) ° 498,615,000 7T
ended 31 December 2012. ZATFEZHE B E2012F12 A

31 AIEFE BRI -

(b) 5% registered capital of Lianxin Energy was acquired at a (o) M2010F12H23H ' 2EHBE 2N
consideration of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately BARNERER(AE)BRAE(EH
HK$3,685,000 as at Acquisition Date) by a wholly owned BRER(PE)DRAEMNRERRER
subsidiary, ¥TE8IR(FE) BR AT (“¥EEER(FE)”) from A A LA E AR % 3,000,000 T (10
ENZREMRRBR AT on 23 December 2010. The amount R UL EE B 493,685,000 7% 7T ) B A B 57
has been classified as available for sale investment as at 31 BEIRS5% 2 ikt & AR o 3 B IB R 2011
December 2011. The amount is treated as if it was disposed F1I2A3IBH S BEAATHREER
of and reacquired at fair value of RMB22,303,000 (equivalent B ZERBEUKERAZATFEAR
to HK$27,409,000) on the Acquisition Date. The gain on ¥ 22,308,000 7T (48 & # 27,409,000 177
deemed disposal of approximately HK$23,724,000 was BILIERARLEXEFTWBEEAE
credited to profit and loss for the year ended 31 December o H=E2012F12A31HEFE -
2012, #923,724,00078 T 2 18 R HE IS

EEBEAR-
(c) A deposit of RMB57,000,000 (equivalent to approximately () M2011F12 8218 & UKEE B 3 88

HK$70,015,000 as at Acquisition Date) was prepaid for the
acquisition of Lianxin Energy on 21 December 2011.

JRE B —% A R¥ 57,000,000 7T (7
LRI B 470,015,000 7T ) 2 1%
f_é °
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38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 38. WHEMBLATE (&)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of RIEBAREEERAR
acquisition
HK$’000
FHET
Net assets acquired: S EEFE :
Non-current assets B EE
Property, plant and equipment L E T Y 269,164
Other intangible assets BEmmpEE 375,932
645,096
Current assets B EE

Inventories FE 2,771

Trade debtors and bills receivable FEUE 5 8RR K B IR R IR 172,546
Other debtors, deposits and prepayment HEUWERR « e RTEN TR 11,426
178 Bank balances and cash RITHEB MRS 104,902
291,645
Current liabilities REEE
Trade creditors and bills payable ENE SRR RENEE (99,620)
Other creditors and accrued charges Ha RN ERTEA (16,516)
Borrowings — repayable within one year Bk — R—FRNEER (126,368)
Amount due to former shareholder (Note) FEA T —BIRR R 2 sRIB (M1 7E) (381,009)
(623,513)
Non-current liabilities FEREIE &
Deferred tax liabilities BELERBEE (134,216)
Net assets at the date of acquisition R EEFE 179,012
Note: The amount due to former shareholder was fully settled Bizt - TR R 2 FIEE RIS

immediately after the completion of the acquisition. BN HIEHE -
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38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 38. WHEMBLATE (&)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of REBARREERARZ)
acquisition (Continued)

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade RKERAMBZRIKER(EZAEK
debtors, bills receivable, other debtors and deposits) with a BHEN  BRER EMEWRERR
fair value of HK$178,451,000 at the date of acquisition had %<& )2 #178,451,0008 T2 A EZ
gross contractual amounts of HK$178,451,000. The best WA S EBH A 178,451,000 7T 1
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows WEER - FEE Tl E 2 AR R E
not expected to be collected amount to nil. ZEEMET AT -
The acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,200,000 RELE2010F 12 31 BIEFEAEAE
incurred in the year ended 31 December 2010 were #91,200,000 7% 7T 2 W HE A RE B A - A
recognised directly as an administrative expense in that ZEENEEERRBITEEZ L - RE
year. There is no acquisition-related costs being incurred ZE2012F 12 A1 BIEFER @ WE
during the year ended of 31 December 2012. I EESN 2 WIBAB R A o
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEECHS
HK$°000
FRET 179

Total consideration wRE 381,521
Less: Recognised amount of identifiable net JB - Rl R E EIHERTS

assets acquired (100%) B RS E (100%) (179,012)
Goodwill arising on acquisition I E A 7 & 202,509
None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was F BN T E £ 2 BB Tk

expected to be deductible for tax purposes. TiIE o
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Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

The goodwill arose on acquisition of Lianxin Energy was
attributable to the anticipated profitability of distribution
of LPG to Guangdong district market through the LPG
network owned by Lianxin Energy and the anticipated
future operating synergies that the Group can leverage
on the existing LPG sourcing team, revenue growth and
future market development from the combination. The LPG
network owned by Lianxin Energy are mainly located in
favorable locations next to public transportation stations. In
addition, Lianxin Energy is one of the major LPG suppliers
of public transportations in Guangdong district. In the
opinion of directors, this acquisition would improve their
market share in southern region of the PRC. In order to
ensure the quality and continuous supply of LPG to the
business of Lianxin Energy, the Group has set up an
offshore subsidiary with experienced LPG purchasing team
to act as the purchasing arm for Lianxin Energy to source
international LPG. This offshore subsidiary and Lianxin
Energy is counted as a separate cash generating unit and
the goodwill of HK$202,509,000 is allocated to this CGU.
The business of Lianxin Energy is subcontracted to Sinopec
NewOcean on 1 November 2013 for a subcontracting
period of 10 years. The details of the subcontracting
arrangement are set out in note 22b.

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 38. WHEMBLATE (&)

BRHERERRZEE

WS T RERATE A 2 B B BENE
BETEEREARERBEBRERE D
HRIER BT - k& HHETEEG
REBZpEREAISAEEHEASE
ERA 2 RIEREEEK - WAERR
RRMBER - B RERS 2 BRIER
MR EEMR AR BT AT 2 HHAL
BB BFEERAERA AKX
Eh—EAFXZ2REREER - EFR
B ZBEREBREERTERmE M
BIEEE - BEERRABNEREEED
MiBEBE 2 RIER - NREBEKILT —
B EBLEHRBER B=EHBAR -
TERE AR < RSP - IREBEER
bR - ZBEFMB QG KRB R
BEEAE—ERRIZHESEEENMN 4
202,509,000/ L 2 FZE N E 5 A Bl it
WEEESBNAM- R2013F11 A1H -
B R EBEABTHRALTE -
SNHIER A 10 « BB R HE 2 FHIBEA M
FE22b e

B SEE 2 B & B8R H

HK$°000
FET

Consideration paid in cash

Settlement of the amount due to former
shareholder KIE

Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances

MHREZHRE
EREN AR Z

247,188

381,009

B TSRS RERE S
acquired I8 B #p58

(104,902)

523,295
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39. AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENT AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

39. HHERBRTEEKRS

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAETL
Available for sale investment comprise: AI Lt HEREBIE
— Equity securities listed in Korea — REER ETh 2 RAE
(Note a) (Hfita) 136,534 80,809
Designated as fair value through profit 5 R I8 E A FE
or loss: E
— Convertible bonds of listed entity, — EERTIRRES
at fair value (Note b) BRFE(MED) - 79,971

Notes:

(@)  The Group holds 32.45% (2012: 24.20%) interest in IE.
Although the Group holds more than 20% of the voting
power in |E, the directors of the Company consider the
Group has no significant influence to govern the financial
and operating policies of IE. As such, IE is not accounted
for as an associate. IE is accounted for as available for sale
investment as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. As at 31
December 2012, the directors of the Company expected to
realise the IE shares in the market within one year and thus,
the amount was classified as current asset. However, the
equity market in Korea was remained unstable in year 2013
and the directors of the Company expected the IE shares
would not be realised within twelve months after the end of
the reporting period. Therefore, the amount is classified as
non-current asset as at 31 December 2013. The fair value
of |IE Shares is determined based on quoted market bid
price of shares of |IE traded on KOSDAQ and amounted to
approximately HK$136,534,000 as at 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$80,809,000).

(b) IE CB was unlisted, non-interest bearing and issued for
a maturity term of 36 months from 11 December 2012 to
11 December 2015. The holder has the right to convert
the IE CB into shares in IE at any time on or after the first
anniversary the date of issue of the convertible bonds up to
the close of business on the date one business day prior to
the maturity date of the IE CB. The IE CB was non-interest
bearing and the conversion price for conversion share is
USDO0.585793 (equivalent to approximately HK$4.55) per
conversion share.

HaE -

(@)

A £ B ¥ BIEZ32.45% (2012 :
2420%)*&wo1§§$%@ﬁﬁ|9§
ERI20% AL RRABEERE
%j’ﬁé&aix%%ﬁwﬁ”émz,ﬂﬂk
REBERR - At - IEX & ARSI E
%%“ﬂoﬁ2m3¢&2m2¢mﬁ
CEMARAIETHEHERE -
#2012@12)%31 = /NI =3
FEHMN I EREMS EZFRIERD -
Eit  ZeBHOBEARDEE - A
ﬁﬁ C BER TR 2013 FENATE - A
NEIBEEB TSN REHRE 1218 A
AERIER D - At - B2013F 12
A31H BN HoEAERHE
E c IERR D 2 A FE TR K KOSDAQ
BEZIERNMBEAREBET - ©
2013412 A31 8 # %136,534,000
7T (2012 : 80,809,000/ 7T) °

ERMRESFR/IELTRAGE « &
TZEHESRB2012F12/811HE
201512 A11H * A& Hi36ME A
BEANBERIEABRERESZEITA—
BAEERNZEEIENRIRESDIEH
ARl —EA4¥EE 2 eERHEER
IEEAIBERE - SR IER R E 5 i
BIERD - IEATRBRESF I A& E
BB BRD 2 RBRE RS RRKEG
0.585793 &7t (HHE R 494.55 BJT) °



NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 188 REBBR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A\ H

e BHmRN T
For the year ended 31 December 2013
E—E——FEf =+ —HIFE

39.

40.

AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENT AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

The Group converted the IE CB into IE shares on 27
December 2013 (“Conversion Date”). As at 31 December
2012, the fair value of IE CB was determined by, Norton
Appraisals Limited, an independent valuation company and
amounted to approximately USD10,279,000 (equivalent to
HK$79,971,000). The fair value of liability component was
calculated based on the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the
required yield, which was determined with reference to the
credit rating of the convertible bonds issuer and remaining
time to maturity. The effective interest rate of the debt
component of IE CB was 15.56%.

The Trinomial Option Pricing Model was used for the
valuation of conversion option of the IE CB. The key inputs
into the model for the conversion option of the IE CB as at
31 December 2012 were as follow:

Valuation Date As at 31 December 2012
Spot Price: USDO0.61

Conversion Price: USDO0.585793

Time to maturity: 2.95 years

Risk-free Rate: 3.16%

Volatility: 39.38%

The fair value of each of the liability components and
conversion option of the IE CB at the end of the reporting
period were determined by valuation performed by Norton
Appraisals, firm of independent valuer not connected with
the Group.

IE CB was designated at fair value through profit or loss. The
changes in fair values of convertible bonds for IE CB is a
loss of approximately HK$4,564,000 at the Conversion Date
(2012: HK$701,000) and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

As part of the transactions under the Disposal Agreement
referred to in note 12, SHK disposal of the entire issued
share capital of Success Pillar to NEE, a wholly owned
subsidiary of IE at a total consideration of HK$156,767,000.
Before the Disposal under the Disposal Agreement, the
shareholding of Ego Time is 51% indirectly held by the
Company through Success Pillar, and the remaining
49% equity interest is owned by another wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The Disposal was completed
on 24 December 2012, the effective interest in Ego Time
was reduced from 82.15% to 49%. The net assets of
Success Pillar at the date of disposal were as follows:

39. AIHHERBRAIRKESRZ)

Mzt - (&)

R20136E12 A27 B([®@EAH]) » K
SEBEMBRRESEBRABIERD -
MR2012F12 A31 8 ABILEER
AEHBEBRFHEERARMEE ZIE
AR E S 2 A FEH 510,279,000
EL(HE R 79,971,000 7T) » B
BHPZRFEDRIBANEE ZAK
BeneRA T RERTEZHER
B MARRESRETIKELRERRR
BEEBTAGHILREDHB 2 6%
TEHMET IEATRBRESFBEEIH
ZEBFIEE15.56% ©

G IERT AR E SRR 2 (BERF
RA=EABEEEERER - R2012F 12
A31 8 BIER R EHEREZE
RNZEBMABENOT

HEBH #2012 12A31H

REE : 0.61%7T
HRR(E - 0.585793 %7
FIHAFER - 2.95%
EEHFIER 0 3.16%

I 39.38%

REHBRZ EFATRRER ZEB R
BmEEEAZ A EIHEREEL
S B BT R R AT
BERABETZHEMEE °

IE AT AR (& 5 o e E B IR A EaT
o NP ERRRESZ AR
REH A FEES AEEL 4,564,000
#IT(2012 : 701,000/ 7T) @ WA
BEkEMEERERPER

40. HE—RMELR

BERFI2AFZEHEHBBZZBIR
%  SHKAINEE(IEZ 2 BB A A K
£ Success Pillar 2 2B BT A - 48
KB A156,767,000/8 7T - RIBIE HE
WhRiEITH EEIEA - Ego Time Z %4
i AN A 7)4% @B Success PillarfB#E#F A
51% ' B N 49% RIERARNR S —2F&
MEBARER HEFHEENR2012F
12 A24 BXEFK ' Ego Time Z B
H82.15% L E49% - REEBH
Success Pillar Z EEFELMT -
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40. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Net assets of Success Pillar disposed of

HK$’000
FET

40. HE—RMBLE (&)

—E_=zER

FrtH &2 Success Pillar ;3 & &

Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment L E YN 283
Loan receivable R E 1,257
1,540
Current assets B EE
Inventories FE 3,172
Trade debtors and bills receivable FEUE IR B & 134,561
Other debtors, deposits and prepayment H R - e RTBN A 7,164
Bank balances and cash RITEHEE S 10,681
155,578
Current liabilities BB &
Other creditors and accrued charges H e R BT E A (1,251)
Amounts due to group companies EANESEINGIES (137,084)
Tax liabilities MBEE (2,700)
(141,0835)
16,083
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— I E ]2 HKas
Consideration received and receivable on the  HE&E=EE 7 EW K&

Disposal e AE 156,767
Fair value of the retained 49% equity interest  FT{R®E ~ 49% I~ A& 231,722
Non-controlling interests P il = 3,871
Less: Net assets disposed of B BHEFEE (16,083)

376,277

Net cash inflow arising on disposed of HEMEELEZFRERA
Cash consideration received BUWHEeRE 156,767
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of o BEHERITEBRKIRS (10,681)

146,086

183
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40.

41.

42,

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The Group had lost controls and instead had significant
influence over Ego Time. The net asset value held by the
Group after the Disposal was HK$5,022,000 and the fair
value of Group’s interest in Ego Time was approximately
HK$231,722,000 as at date of lost control, determined
based on fair value report issued by Norton Appraisals
Limited, an independent valuation company, had been
regarded as cost of interests in associates, and the
difference of approximately HK$226,700,000 had been
credited to consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The details of the interests in
associates are set out in note 22.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2013 and 2012.

LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

40.

41.

42,

HE—RMB2TE (&)

NEE D k£ Ego Time 2 HI#E - MR
HETFEEAFE N - RHESRIAR -
NE B TR 2 & E F1E A5,022,000
BT MASEBRKEEHEE B
MEgo TmeZz #Em 2 A FEADNA
231,722,000 7% 7T (1R & & 37 fh (B A A
THRBIEERARAEL 2 AFE
HREETE)  BWGRIERE A REDK
0 T Z A 49 226,700,000 T E 5 A
B kEME2ENKES  BEARERZ
FEBHAR 22 ©

BRAR

MR20134F K2012F 128318 KX &
BIWESERHAEE -

HEXIE
FREMEREEA
REBHR - AKERE LA HHLS

MHAxNzAREIAETHE - 218
SRUNNE

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$°000

FAEiT FAET

Within one year —FR 27,154 20,250
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERFN(BEEEMSE) 35,001 39,674
Over five years b c ke 19,572 22,888
81,727 82,812

As at 31 December 2013, rentals are fixed for an average
of 6 years (2012: 6 years). Operating lease payments
mainly represent rentals payable by the Group for LPG
gas stations owned by Lianxin Energy amounting to
approximately HK$67,041,000 (2012: HK$69,795,000)
as at 31 December 2013. Since 1 November 2013, the
business of Lianxin Energy has been subcontracted to
Sinopec NewOcean and details of the subcontracting
arrangement are set in note 22b.

MR2013FE12A31H M4 B #F
¥ B6F (2012 : 64 ) o R2013F 12
AS1H KEMEREDNETEELSE
B AR R IEE 2 R & R uh e
2 8 & 467,041,000 75(2012 :
69,795,000%7T) - B20134F 11 A1 H
i BEEER 2 XK B AP A LFEE
B MmABLHEZFBHRI 220 -
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42. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued) 42. HEREE)
The Group as lessor XEEESHBAAN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIEHR - AEEERUA TR A
contracted with an associate for the following future BRI HeT L EEEAREIL

minimum lease payments for the oil vessels:

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$’000
TFHET FAET
Within one year R1ER 2,038 =
In the second to fifth year inclusive FoERFESF(BIEERE2F) 1,803 =
3,841 —
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RmEBR  AEEEHUATBEEASR
contracted with an associate for the following future gt NI PO
subcontracting payments:
185
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Within one year R1ER 12,691 =
In the second to fifth year inclusive Fo2EFSF(PIEERE2F) 50,904 —
Over five years 5FA 61,503 =
125,098 —
The details of the subcontracting arrangement are set out EB L FIGE R 22D ©

in note 22b.
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43. OTHER COMMITMENTS 43. Hhkiz
HK$°000 HK$’000
F&IT FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but ¥ &IUATEERME 514
not provided in the consolidated BRNERE T ERE
financial statements in respect of: Bz BEARRY
Purchase of property, plant and A - R R
equipment 532,497 90,086
44. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 44. EBFEFIEE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. Starting from 1
June 2012, the Group and each employee employed in
Hong Kong are required to make a contribution of 5% on
the employees’ monthly relevant income with a maximum
monthly contribution of HK$1,250 per person (prior to 1
June 2012: HK$1,000 per person).

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute fixed percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

AEBEAEREBZ2BAEREER
BRIt RAEeTE - ZFtEICEESR
AEBEESRAFNE  AGTEANRES
izl e 520126 A1 HE - A%
BRREBEAZEMNEEEST ARE
BEHEBABAZSRIELHER - §AHK
ERABSA1,250% (20126 A1H
AT : 8 A 1,000/87T) °

AEERTENBARZEESNTE
BE B ZRREHGE - ZFHER
ARERAEARBATEIATERAZ
[E 7 LE I 5K o AN B 3R IR A 5+ &
ZME—BERERIEEHRK -
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following

Annual Report 2013 =—Z—=FF#f

45. REALTR S

transactions with related parties during the year: 2

2013 2012

Sales to a joint venture

Rental expenses to Shum Ho, Neo
(Note 1)

Sales to associates

Rental income received from an
associate
(i) Qil vessels
(i) Office premises

Subcontracting fee received from an

associate

Information and technical fees received

from Lianxin Energy (Note 2)

M—RXEETEHE
BESESE Pk
(Hia1)

M D RS E

| — KB A RURE 2
AN

(i) My

(i) PrREWE
B A RIURER 2
BB

BT RE R UER 2 B A R B
& (ffaz2)

BRiRa MR EM T FREEIN
AEERFRNEBEALTETTIIR

HK$°000
FET

HK$°000
FET

2,446 1,176
960 960
2,803,660 =
3,400 =

660 =

2,083 =

3,125 =

Notes: Htat -
1. Shum Ho, Neo is the employee of the Group and also the 1.
son of Shum Siu Hung and Tong Shiu Ming. Shum Siu
Hung is the executive director of the Company.
2. The operation of Lianxin Energy is subcontracted to 2.

Sinopec NewOcean. The details of the subcontracting

arrangement are set out in note 22b.

On 16 May 2012, Sound Management Services Limited
(“Sound Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an office tenancy agreement with
Shum Ho, Neo for the use of office premises provided
by Shum Ho, Neo located on 20th Floor, Times Tower,
393 Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$80,000 per
calendar month for a period of one year commencing on 16
May 2012. On 16 May 2013, the agreement was renewed [&] 16 5K
for one year to 15 May 2014 at HK$80,000 per calendar

month with the same terms.

REBEESHET S DIERE A
ZF ZOMBARRBZHTESE -

¥ AL R 2 & E B P AL # g R
a

EB LB FBERHFE22b

MR2012FE5 816 H » "R A2 & &/
BRARFESEERBBERAR(FEE
B EBETTRAZTEHLY KAME
80,000 & LAl A2 AR N BB & 11 i1 28
BRI ER P D20 ZHAE

¥ HEHR2012F5 816 B A H —
F o PR2013FE5 816 B » % H 4 1%

BH—FE2014FE5 8158 -

F 780,000 7T °
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45. REALTRZ(E)

Save as disclosed above and note 28, there were no other A E R MIsE28 FTif B & 5N - FINEERE
significant transactions with related parties during the year BALTTEEMEARS @ RIFEHR
or significant balances with them at the end of the reporting B ENEE KNER - IBIR ETRAIE
period. The transactions disclosed in this note and note 33 14AE - A RMFEISFAERE RS
are connected transactions of the Company under Chapter BARBIZHER S  WEREEST L
14A of the Listing Rules, but are exempted from reporting, MRBITE RN Z B - ANE MBRERIER
announcement, and shareholders approval requirements JE °

under Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel FTEETHABZREH
The directors of the Company consider that the directors ARAESRRESTALAEB EEE
are the key management of the Group, whose emoluments BAE - A& 2R 13 NIKRE -

have been disclosed in note 13.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is BEERFETHRABZTFMNETMEE
determined by the remuneration committee having regard SRBEARREMSBEEE -

to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY

V55 R P

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HWELRER

BFY (Note b)
AEA(HED)

NewOcean Resources (Singapore)
Pte Ltd.

Shenzhen Baorun Liquefield
Petroleum Gas Company
Limited

AITEEREERAA

SHK

Sound Agents Limited
(“Sound Agents”) (Note a)

MERBABRARF
(THBRBALMita)

Sound Management (Note a)
MBER(Wita)

Qingxin Yong Long Gas and
Chemical Company Limited
(“Yong Long") (Note b)

EHGKERCERAA
(IxEl) (M)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

operation

3 A3 v
Eank

PRC *
E -

Singapore

#ng

PRC *
R

BVI
RERKS

Hong Kong
&k

Hong Kong
&R

PRC *
E -

Issued and fully
paid up share
capital/registered
capital
BETREE
k% gMEs

Class of share
held

PR R R

Registered capital RMB5,000,000
AMER AR5,000,0007T
Ordinary SGD100
LER 1003 I3 7T
Registered capital RMB15,000,000
EMER AR 15,000,000 7T
Ordinary USD1
LAk 1%
Ordinary HK$2
LER 28T
Ordinary HK$2
R 28T
Registered capital RMB4,280,000
&R AR 4,280,000

ZN
Z

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued/registered
capital held by the
Company
FARMBCERT/
EMEFEELH
PIK] 2012
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
80 80

—B-=FER

46. ERTFZEEMELFIHR

A B R 20134F k2012412 A31 H
FTEWBRARFBOT

Principal activities

FERE

Sales and distribution of LPG
HERDHERILR

Sales and distribution of LPG
HERDHERILR

Sales and distribution of LPG
HERDERILE

Investment holding

REER

Sales and distribution of LPG,
selling of oil products and
electronic products

HERDHRILR - HEMm
BREFER

Providing management
services to group
companies

EL NG5

Sales and distribution of LPG
HERDHERILR



NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited ¥/ REBHR A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
E—E——FEf = —HIFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 46. ERTFZEEMBATFFHE 2)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELFER

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

operation

AL R
EEnk

Class of share
held

iR iR R

Issued and fully
paid up share
capital/registered
capital
BRITREE
k% gMEs

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered

capital held by the

Company
FARMBERT/
BERESTELH

PIK] 2012

Principal activities

FRRE

EMBeRERARAR PRC # Registered capital HK$6,600,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
HE # AR 6,600,000/ HERDHERILR
EREBEMRARAA PRC # Registered capital HK$1,400,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
R # HRER 1,400,000 7 HERDERILR
BMERREERAR PRC # Registered capital HK$ 1,600,000 100 100 Investment holding
WE # HRER 1,600,000 87T RAER
BHmHERRERAH PRC * Registered capital RMB500,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
(TEEMNEE ) (Note ) (Hiite) B AR ARE500,0007C HERDHERILR
AREHSHABRAR PRC * Registered capital RMB500,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
(TERZE]) (Note d) (Hfita) HE* AR AR 500,0007C HERDHRILR
MEEERE)EBRAT PRC # Registered capital  USD44,150,000 100 100  Sales and distribution of LPG
BE # FREX 44,150,000% 7 HERDHRILR
ENTEERREBR AT PRC * Registered capital RMB7,755,100 90 90 Sales and distribution of LPG
HE HER AR 7,755,100 HERDHERILR
NBIC PRC # Registered capital USD60,000,000 100 100  Sales and distribution of LPG
BEARE RE # HREA 60,000,000 %7 HERDHRILR
EMmERRERAT PRC * Registered capital RMB2,000,000 90 90 Sales and distribution of LPG
i - HREX AR 2,000,000 HERDHERILR
EEEMERRERAT PRC * Registered capital RMB990,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
i - HER AE%990,0007C HERDERILR
Baifuyang Macao Commercial Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000 100 100  Sales and distribution of LPG
Offshore Limited pidis TRk 100,0002M T and electronic products

BEFRFRRARREARAR

HERNHRIERRETER

|

REITH




Annual Report 2013 =—Z—=FF#f

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE R R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
E—E——FEf = —HIFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

46. ERFZEEMBAFFSZ)

Proportion of

Name of subsidiary

WELFER

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

operation

AL R
EEnk

Issued and fully
paid up share

nominal value of
issued/registered

Class of share
held

LAk

capital/registered

capital
BRITREE
2 Y430

capital held by the
Company
FARMBCRT/
EMEFEELH

2013

2012

Principal activities

FRRE

NewOcean (Shenzhen) Energy BVI QOrdinary USD1 100 100  Investment Holding
Investment Limited KERRE LBk 1%L RARR
MR ERREERAR
MER(RE) PRC # Registered capital  USD107,670,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
e HMER 107,670,000 % HERDERIR
NewOcean Development Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USD50,000 100 100  Investment holding
MEERARLR EBRXE Lak 50,0007 REER 191
Best Resources Base Limited BVI Ordinary USD50,000 100 100 Investment holding
EEERAA EERENS LAk 50,000%7T REER
Rise Smart Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
REEXARAA &k LAk 10,0007 HERDHRIR
BEFNSHERCAE)BRAT  PRC* Registered capital  RMB79,182,085 79.2 79.2 Ol products business
i - AR ARH79,182,085 0 AmEL
rEm=HRRERA" PRC * Registered capital RMB5,015,700 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
- HMER AE#5,015,700 7T HERDHELR
RARBBRAR Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 3,300,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
i LRk 3,300,000 277 HERDERIR
HETREESERAR PRC * Registered capital  RMB33,000,000 100 100 Property development
i - HER AR 33,000,000 7T NEEE
NewOcean Energy (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 68 68 Investment holding
Company Limited 75 LER 100787 REER
MER(EB)ERAA
Lianxin Energy PRC* Registered capital ~ RMB371,850,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG'
BinaeR i HMER AEH® HERDERICR

s T )

o -

371,850,0007C
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 46. ELAFZEEMBLFES &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Proportion of
Place of Issued and fully nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up share issued/registered
registration/ Class of share  capital/registered  capital held by the

Name of subsidiary operation held capital Company Principal activities

s R ERFTRBE  FLRRBCRT/
MELRER EEnk i B {0 R ) B#/gfRE  SRRFEERA FERE
2013 2012

Fruto International Macao Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000 100 100  Sales and distribution of LPG
Commercial Offshore Limited 25 TLEmk 100,000 277 HERDERILR
ELERRPIR R B RY
BRAF
Ocean Union Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Owner of an oil vessel
Limited A LR 1A mHZEEA
BEERERAT]
HESMARESR AT PRC # Registered USD30,000,000 100 — Treasury
mE# AR (Note ¢) 7%
30,000,000% 7
(Hite)
ERIEETRRERAR PRC* Registered capital ~ RMB10,000,000 60 —  Sales and distribution of LPG
Tk AR AR 10,000,0007C HERDBERIR
Stareach International Limited BVI Ordinary UsSD1 100 —  Owner of an oil vessel
ARERERAR ZBERS LRk (B hhZEAA
Quickmark International Limited BV Ordinary USD1 100 —  Owner of an oil vessel
wEERARAT B Lk e lipd; ZIN
Creative Ocean Developments BVI Ordinary USD1 100 —  Owner of an oil vessel
Limited EBRENS LAk = iliipa 2N
B RRARAR
Trade Vantage Investments BVI Ordinary USD1 100 —  Owner of an oil vessel
Limited ZBERE Ak 1% mHZEEA
EEREERAA
* Domestic — invested enterprises * NERE

2 Wholly-owned foreign enterprises # 2EINEDFE



THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(&)  Sound Agents and Sound Management are indirectly held
by the Company through the declarations of trust executed
by Shum Chun, Lawrence who held the interest in Sound
Agents and Sound Management of 50% respectively. The
remaining interest in Sound Agent is indirectly held by the
Company.

(b) Pursuant to an agreement entered between BFY and the
non-controlling shareholder of Yong Long (“PRC Investor”),
the operation of Yong Long was sub-contracted to BFY with
a sub-contracting period of 5 years since April 2010. The
PRC Investor was entitled to a fixed sum of sub-contracting
fee payable of RMB200,000 (2012: RMB200,000) per year
by BFY. BFY entitled to 100% of the results of Yong Long
during the subcontracting period.

() HBINFE is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by Z#st and 2|\ who
held the interest in &I #7)& of 20% and 20% respectively.
The remaining interest in F&MFT/& is indirectly held by the
Company.

(d) EMBHE is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by Z-F4 and 2/ who
held the interest in E#E¥18 of 20% and 20% respectively.
The remaining interest in E#B#7)& is indirectly held by the
Company.

(e)  The registered capital of ZR@¥NEREMEBRAR] has not
yet paid up to the date of this annual report.

Except SHK which is owned directly by the Company, the
above principal subsidiaries are owned indirectly by the
Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no material
non-controlling interests and the summarised financial
information about these subsidiaries is not disclosed.

46.
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

FOFZEEMBLRERE)

Hat

(a) %ﬁ/ifkfﬁ/\&%ﬁ/i%l@éiﬂﬂﬂ rQuT
Y ERERERAR TF'EJTx%ﬁ
SEDRFBEHERBALEE
250%&%511 ° %ﬁiﬁ@/\iﬁéﬂ’%ﬁ
AN RIREERE -

(o) RIEAEFEKEEIFFEHRR(HE
REE DRI 2% KEZEHD
SNFlsE B R - SNHIHIB 20104 4 A
ERHsE - PEKREEFRKNAE
EFAENZBEEARERASFARE
200,0007t(2012 : A R ®200,000
Jo) e RABHE - AEFEAKE
100% 2 %45 -

© TEMNHEEBRFTETRENFTL
ZERBAEAARAMERE - F
BETT e B/ NSE 1945 B 1R N HT 8 20% #E
@ BMNFTEG T 2SR AR AR
BHE -

d) ERBFHESBBHZSTHERENFEL
ZEAEBBEERAQABERE - 2
THERBENFHLRBFEERBTE
20% D e ERBFBH T ZESEHAAN
NRIEERES -

o) BEAFHEH KEMSHEEER
BRRAZEMEARHARBE

BRSHK RARRIERBERS Ll & E
EMBARIHHAREREES

& Y8 2 B 2R 3 I o] B PR 50
ERREEERKES

ERFINEFTRAEIBREAKERE
SEEZARAMBLRR - EERBI
HEMMBAR ZERNEBNITE -

EERA
% A m BB ED
BB R -

REE Y B EARIE SR
Az ER

193



NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1882 REBHS R A 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ra BTSSR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-FT—=F1-A=1—HIFEF

47. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47. FTEMBIR

Derivatives financial instruments

TEMBEIR
Assets Liabilities
=& -1
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&IT FET
2013 2013
Current M ED
Cross currency interest rate swaps RN EEHN I EH
contracts - 10,345
Interest rate swaps contracts F =B EE 4 1,313 9,957
1,313 20,302
2012 2012
Current M ED
Foreign currency forward contracts HNESRERE H) 6,906 10,072
194 Cross currency interest rate swaps R X EMFIRIEHRE L
contracts - 13,334
Interest rate swaps contracts FEBEE %) - 8,012

6,906 31,418
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47. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47. GTEMBIRE)
(Continued)
Major terms of the derivative financial instruments are PTEMB IR EZHEFBMRAT -

summarised as follows:

A. Foreign currency forward contracts — net A. HSMEEEHISH — HHEBEHE
settlement
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
£t 34 8 H Ex
2012
Buy USD264,564,899 (approximate to 8 January 2013 to RMB/USD6.21 to RMB/
RMB1,671,803,724) 20 September 2013 USD6.48
H A 264,564,899 % 7T 201341 A8B=E 6.21 AR¥ E1ZE
(AR 1,671,803,7247T) 201349 A20H 6.48 AR¥ ETT
B. Cross currency interest rate swaps contracts/ B. XRNRAHHFHYPEH FlHAN
interest rate swaps contracts — net settlement aN-EHBH
Notional amount Exchange rates/interest rates
ZREH Ex FlE
2013
USD153,149,670 (approximate to 19 February 2014 to  Floating rate ranging from one month
RMB926,555,507) 12 August 2016 LIBOR to six months LIBOR + 3.5% per
153,149,670 3% 7T 20142 H19H= annum to fixed rate ranging from 1.15%
(HI AR 926,555,507 7T.) 20168 A12H to 3.79%
RMB/USD6.55 to RMB/USD6.82
FEFHENT—EAAMBERITRAEFESE
NERRBERITRIERE + FHE3.5%
ZEEEFFENTF1.15% £3.79%
6.55 AR¥ ETL%E6.82 AR %
2012
USD168,748,112 (approximate to 10 January 2013 to Floating rate ranging from one month
RMB1,075,766,805) 28 January 2015 LIBOR to six months LIBOR + 3.5% per
168,748,1123% 7T 201341 H10H=Z annum to fixed rate ranging from 0.9%
(Y9 ANR*1,075,766,805 7T ) 201541 A28 H to 3.68%

RMB/USD6.55 to RMB/USD6.82

FERENENT—EAARIBITRERES
ANERRBERITRIERE + FFE3.5%
ZEFEFFENT0.9% £ 3.68%

B.55 ANR#E ZETE6.82 AR ETT
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47. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

C.

Netting arrangements on derivative financial
instruments

The Group has entered certain derivative transactions
that are covered by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association Master Netting Agreements
(“ISDA Agreements”) signed with various banks.
These derivative instruments are not offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position as the
ISDA Agreements are in place with a right of set off
only in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
so that the Group currently has no legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts. Other
than derivatives transactions mentioned above, the
Group has no other financial assets and financial
liabilities which are offset in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position or are subject to similar
netting arrangements.

Net financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements by counterparty.

47.

TEMBIRE)

C.

TERMBIRZBABHRH

AEBEE TRITR A TER
EHMROTETAGE X FED
Z(BREHEITETAHE W
BOBEZTERS - WETE
TARGA MBANER AL EIEE
o ARBREREITETARS
W] RRNEN - BHEE
SEIF AR T - 7 BREEER
BASERFE I BELELATH
TR NEHEER SR - K
EXF 2 OTER BN - AEENL
BEMNARBERAMBHREE
R BOUFREE ZHER 2 81
BEERMHAE -

RRHT A BHHITEFEEE
RHRRBUGZRAR 2 M EE R
MBAEFHE -
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47. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47. FTEMBIRE)
(Continued)
C. Netting arrangements on derivative financial C.

instruments (Continued)

—E_=zER

MEMBIAZBEARERE(A)

Carrying amounts of Carrying amounts of

financial assets
presented in the
consolidated

statement of

financial liabilities
presented in the
consolidated
statement of

financial position financial position Net amount
RiFEMBRR RizEMERR
FRHEFZ KR
HEREREE MEAREEE BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET FET
As at 31 December 2013 7 2013F 12 A31H
Counterparty A RHHA 1,313 (863) 450
Counterparty B REHB - (5,105) (5,105)
Counterparty C RH5FEC - (14,231) (14,231)
Counterparty D R5AD - (103) (103)
Total st 1,313 (20,302) (18,089)
As at 31 December 2012 R 2012F 12 A31 H
Counterparty A RHHA 951 (4,476) (3,525)
Counterparty B R5HB 820 (10,205) (9,385)
Counterparty C R57C - (8,074) (8,074)
Counterparty D RH5HD 3,705 (1,575) 2,130
Counterparty E RHHE 1,430 (7,088) (5,658)
Total Bt 6,906 (31,418) (24,512

s T )

o -

197
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48. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

48. MBEIRZAFHRE

BEFHEEEUATFEABEZFREM
BRERMBARZLFE

RBEHR  ETAKEZMBEER
BBABTINUARATFERE - TREIEF
A EENEMBEERMBRESZ
RPEEFRRAFER 2 GERTEE
ABE)  URAFEFEZAFER
BARNMEIRAFEAERARIEZA
BEEREIB(E—REF=4) -

s FARARFEFEDNEHREER
BEREBRMSTHHRZERCR
RHEB)FAFH

s FRRFEAEDAKRASZ—
MZREN BERABZER
(BER)HEEETEBBR) A
BReABEMRGEL - &

s FERARFEAEDNABRELIFR
BABRMSEBR(ELIBEERA
BRI ZEERRBERABE 2
BIEMBH °
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48. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets/ Fair value as at
financial liabilities 31 December 2013
20135128 31H

HERE HER/R ZOFE

Equity securities classified as Listed equity securities in Korea —
available for sale investment in the HK$136,534,000
consolidated statement of financial
position

RERBBRRKRDIER BE FiERES — 136,534,000

AHRHERE 2 RAES BT
Cross currency interest rate swaps Liabilities — HK$10,345,000

contracts classified as derivative
financial instruments in the
consolidated statement of financial
position

R MBARRERDBAITE B1E — 10,345,000/ 7T
I TAZR XN ERFIXBHEL

Interest rate swaps contracts classified ~ Assets — HK$1,313,000 and
as derivative financial instruments liabilities — HK$9,957,000
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

EMBHRARIBETENBRTAZ EE — 1,313,008 TKER
ﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁm # — 9,957,000/ 7T

There was no transfer between Level 1 and 2 in the year.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

48. BREFRHEELULATFEHEZFSE
EMERERMEBERARZIAFEE)

Fair value

hierarchy  Valuation techniques and key inputs
LFERE FERGREIEBANE

Level 1 Quoted bid price in an active market

Level 2

Level 2

|5°d§
|
s

mRMS L BARE

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows

are estimated based on forward interest
rates (from observable yield curves at
the end of the reporting period) and
contracted interest rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties

HRBRERE - ARALRENRERHF

Z(ARERR IBRUBRHREFL)
Re®F G TERBREERS S
EERRZMEHER

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows

are estimated based on forward interest
rates (from observable yield curves at
the end of the reporting period) and
contracted interest rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties

HEASRE - ARRERENRBERN

(ERERRIRRRERHEFL)
ReEHNRMEE TRRRZERSH 2
EERR XA

FRE—BRBE-_GZEWEEZE -

ARBEBEFRRNEE P BHRERPER
ZHBARENRYBAGKREEREQF
(ERiEES
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RESULTS iR

For the year ended 31 December
H#FE12A1BLLERE

2010 2011 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET FAET FET FET
Revenue A 6,483,119 8,477,715 10,116,643 13,462,296 14,433,446
Profit before taxation BB A 4 A 155,093 155,451 332,944 832,966 812,225
Taxation charge BIEZ (42,642) (18,067) (29,915) (20,425) (29,378)
Profit for the year FNHF 112,451 137,384 303,029 812,541 782,847
Attributable to: FEAh
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIESYEUN 112,451 136,647 306,159 810,934 783,308
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E¥%#il#E%E = 737 (3,130) 1,607 (461)
112,451 137,384 303,029 812,541 782,847
200
Earnings per share FREF
Basic (in HK dollars) EAR(Er) 0.12 0.12 0.23 0.62 0.55
Diluted (in HK dollars) g (ErT) 0.12 0.12 0.23 0.61 0.54
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SERAE
At 31 December
®12831H
2011
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET F&T FEr FET FET
Total assets BEE 4,206,442 5799599 10,622,135 12,353,147 13,291,766
Total liabilities BEE (3,210,225)  (4,321,008) (8,774,600) (9,768,171) = (9,174,969)

1,016,217 1,478,591 1,847,535 2,684,976 4,116,797

Equity attributable to the ~ ARABZHEFEZEE A

owners of the Company FEfG R 1,014,690 1,468,708 1,823,754 2,568,404 4,095,536
Non-controlling interests FEE s 1,627 9,883 23,781 16,572 21,261

1,016,217 1,478,591 1,847,635 2,584,976 4,116,797




NewOQOcean Energy Holdings Limited

5 b =
%ﬁ/@ﬁb/ﬁ%ﬁ BE’A EJ
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(REFREEMKLZBRAE)




	封面

	目錄
	公司資料
	董事簡介
	主席報告
	管理層之討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底

